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Q Technology (Group) Company Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a global leading mid-to-high
end camera and fingerprint recognition module manufacturer for
intelligent mobile terminals. The Group is primarily engaged in
the design, research and development, manufacture and sales
of camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules, and
centred on mid-to-high end camera and fingerprint recognition
module market for intelligent mobile terminals such as global
smart phone and tablet PC brands, Internet of Things (IoT), smart
vehicles, etc. The Group is one of the first few manufacturers in
the PRC to use chip on board (“COB”) and chip on flex (“COF”)
technologies and molding on board (“MOB”) and molding on chip
(“MOC”) technologies in the manufacture of camera modules,
as well as to produce and sell ultra-thin camera modules with
resolutions of 200 mega pixels and above, dual/multiple camera
modules, 3D modules, under-glass fingerprint recognition modules
and fingerprint recognition modules with various technologies
on a mass production scale. Currently, the Group’s product mix
covers ultrathin camera modules ranging from 2 mega pixels
to 200 mega pixels, dual/multiple camera modules, optical
image stabilization (OIS) camera modules, periscope camera
modules, 3D camera modules, automotive camera modules,
smart home camera modules, capacitive fingerprint recognition
modules, optical under-screen fingerprint recognition modules
and ultrasonic fingerprint recognition modules. In addition,
the Group also develops and sells the full line of automation
equipment with Automated Optical Inspection (AQOI) as core
technology. The Group is committed to becoming an advanced
intelligent vision company and continuously enhancing ability
building of three aspects of intelligent vision products, being
optical designs, computational imaging and system integration.
We believe, through resolute and consistent promotion of the
three strategies of large-scale intelligent manufacturing, research
and development of new technology and vertical integration,
we will stand out in the fast-growing camera module and
fingerprint recognition module markets and realise the mission of
“to illuminate machines”.

Corporate Profile
QTN

FERR (EE) BRAE ((R28)) »
BREENBAR ((F&EE) n—B2
KELNEEBH RGP InEER
RABRIEC A RARNSH AEET
BRERF L RENBEERER
RAERIEHRRAE > WA EIRE T
1 52 AR B B o~ WD B AR (1o T) A 5 BE
RBEERERHRRN R S i EEE
BREANBNHNBEETERE - FEH
APELHERANBEREARERSH
BRAMR LR #4(COB) ERE & H
HE(COF)$fif ~ tr _E#BE(MOB) & it/ 28
HMOC) KM U REES I EL ERIHE
“REERN LBERGEEE -8
ZBEABRE  SDREEMF T FEaH# 7!
REZARITEBMHNEENRES
BZz— BR FAEBEREBEZET A
BREE_REBENBERBGEERES
& ZHRGERE B EOIS)E
GREHEH EBENBEREBERE DER
BREE EHBEEREE BERER
BREBERE BENIEAHA B IEE L E
NE T HEMHEAREREBE KI5
R R AR o IESh ) AEEE B I8
EMUBHEREER(AON R Z OB AY
EHRBEHEREBE - XEBBRNNASE
ENBREGERT LHREMBRE R
BERNABRRST FERERRATKE
=5 EZETER KRG B
BEEFERAEEREEREELCR
E RMMENEERIREG =K
BS L RAEREROARNBERRAEE
MIERHE B RATHZTRAML > BIR
[ 28 W 2R BRI B am o

20235 5% BRI (EE) FR2E §



Five-Year Financial Summary

B FRIEE

(In Renminbi (‘RMB’”) thousands, except per share amounts or (A RIEF 7> /B2 58505 B 585550
otherwise indicated)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER BE+-_A=+—HALEFE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-= =B TR —fF CZEBEIZEHF ZB—NE

Consolidated

=X

Operating results RERE
Revenue WA 12,530,799 13,759,170 18,662,626 17,400,369 13,169,678
Gross profit EF 508,856 541,342 1,761,982 1,770,585 1,179,872
Finance costs ME A (171,327) (59,874) (30,050) (53,524) (52,811)
Profit before taxation FR#3 BT e ) 68,133 107,084 957,297 970,068 606,901
Income tax Fri2M 15,398 63,146 (94,451)  (129,960)  (64,529)
Profit for the year FEREN 83,531 170,230 862,846 840,108 542,372
Attributable to: BB

Shareholders of the %NS

Company 81,917 171,151 862,976 840,108 542,372
Non-controlling interests ~ FEIERE 1 1,614 (921) (130) = =

83,531 170,230 862,846 840,108 542,372
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Five-Year Financial Summary

R FIEHE

ANRETr REEESBIEHEI)

(In Renminbi (“RMB’) thousands, except per share amounts or
otherwise indicated)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER BE+_A=+—HILEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E”= & B4 _ECEF —E—NE
Consolidated
aif
Basic earnings per share BEAEBREBF
(RMB cents) (ANR®7) 6.9 14.5 73.2 71.9 47.6
Diluted earnings per share BESRERT
(RMB cents) (NR#5) 6.9 14.5 72.8 71.4 47.2
Assets and liabilities BERER
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,836,061 3,691,338 3,733,091 3,520,863 3,271,908
Current assets TMEBEE 11,106,689 8,594,138 9,315,017 7,882,131 7,363,293
Total assets BEMAE 14,942,750 12,285,476 13,048,108 11,402,994 10,635,201
Bank borrowings RIS 4,370,999 2615977 1,757,670 1263232 1,328,785
Other liabilities Hihae 5,740,000 4,902,094 6,585,209 6,353,936 6,439,461
Total liabilities BEEEE 10,110,999 7,518,071 8,342,879 7,617,168 7,768,246
Net assets BEFE 4,831,751 4,767,405 4,705,229 3,785,826 2,866,955
Total equity Em iR 4,831,751 4,767,405 4,705,229 3,785,826 2,866,955
Key Financial Ratio FEMKLEE
Gross profit margin (%) EFE %) 41 3.9 9.4 10.2 9.0
Net profit margin (%) HF) (%) 0.7 1.2 4.6 4.8 4.1
Gearing ratio (%) (Note 1) BEAREREER%) W) 90.8 55.4 38.0 34.6 48.2
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio LRHEEAEEZE
(%) (Note 2) ELE(%) (H72E2) 30.9 27.2 10 (17.8) 33.9
Rate of return on net asset (%)  F & ERIIRE (%) 1.7 3.6 18.3 22.2 18.9
Current ratio (times) (Note 2) MENLLE (18) (WaE3) 1.1 1.2 1.2 5 1.0
Quick ratio (times) (Note 3) RENLLE (f8) (H524) 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7
Net asset value per share KAB R B AEDL
attributable to equity BEREFEE
shareholders of the Company 4.08 4.03 3.98 3.23 2.48
Price per share as at +ZR=+T—H&8K
31 December (HKD) &% (Bl 4.44 4.1 10.08 13.14 12.90
Price earnings ratio (Note 4) MBX (K/:25) 58.31 29.85 11.48 15.38 24.28
Market capitalization as at +ZB=+—Hmf&E
31 December (HKD thousand) (BT ) 5,259,349 4,986,905 11,914,416 15,403,378 14,931,440
Dividend per share (RMB cents) SRS (ARD) - - - 4.2 9.0
Dividend yield BB = - a - 0.46% 1.30%
EBITDA (Note 5) BRI E R AT F
(Hzte6) 683,102 633,856 1,487,283* 1,408,093 951,027

202355 BB (@) BRAE 7



Five-Year Financial Summary

B FRIEE

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Gearing ratio represents the total balance of bank borrowings and
lease liabilities as of the end of the year/period divided by total
equity as of the end of the year/period.

Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio represents the total balance
of bank borrowings and lease liabilities less cash and cash
equivalents as of the end of the year/period divided by total equity
as of the end of the year/period.

Current ratio represents total current assets divided by total current
liabilities as of the end of the year/period.

Quick ratio represents total current assets less inventories divided

by total current liabilities as of the end of the year/period.

Price earnings ratio represents the market price of shares divided
by earnings per share as of the end of the year/period.

EBITDA represents earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) +
depreciation cost + amortization cost.

There was an inadvertent error in the calculation of the EBITDA for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022 as
disclosed in the Company's 2021 annual report and 2022 annual
report. The original disclosed amounts were RMB514,108,000
and RMB1,377,618,000,
RMB633,856,000 and RMB1,487,283,000, respectively.

respectively, which were corrected to
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B FIEHE
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

We are very honored to present to the shareholders the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year”), the
tenth annual results of Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
since its listing on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back on the Year, the instability of global social and
economic development has further intensified. The ongoing
geopolitical conflicts, the rising international trade protectionism
and the continuous tightening monetary policies of major
developed countries and economies have made the global
macroeconomic situation more complicated and challenging,
and many major economies fell into the unfavorable situation of
high inflation and low growth. According to the World Economic
Outlook Report released by the International Monetary Fund on
31 January 2024, it is estimated that the global economic growth
for the Year shall be approximately 2.9%, which is far lower than
the 3.4% expected on 31 January 2023, which is also lower than
the average growth rate of 3.8% from 2000 to 2019. It showed
that the sluggish growth of global economic development affected
the global sales of smartphones, automobiles and Internet
of Things (loT) terminals and other intelligent mobile terminal
products. According to data released by the National Bureau of
Statistics of China on 17 January 2024, China’s gross domestic
product (GDP) growth rate for the Year was 5.2%, representing
a significant recovery of 2.2 percentage points from the Previous
Year. However, the total import and export of goods for the
Year was only 0.2% higher than that of the Previous Year, of
which the amount of exports of goods increased by 0.6%. Poor
overseas demand also affected the sales of smartphone in China
and other intelligent mobile terminal products. According to the
publicly available information, the report in January 2024 from
International Data Corporation (IDC), an independent third-party
research organization, stated that the global smartphone shipment
volume in 2023 was approximately 1.17 billion units, which once
again set the new lowest record in shipment volume since 2013,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 3.2%. The
decline in the smartphone shipment volume had a direct impact on
the sales of camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules
applied to smartphones.

1 0 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2023
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At the same time, affected by the macroeconomic situation and
changes in the situation of semiconductor industry, the sales of
loT intelligent terminals were also unsatisfactory. According to
the report released by IDC on 20 December 2023, the shipment
volume of augmented reality (AR) and virtual reality (VR) headsets
was estimated to be 8.1 million units, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 8.3%, thereby affecting the number of camera
modules sold for application in loT intelligent terminals.

Under various unfavourable factors, the sales volume of the
Group’s camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules
applied to mobile phones for the Year declined by approximately
12.3% and 1.1% year-on-year, respectively, and further
contributed to the regrettable decline in the Group’s operating
results, with revenue for the Year amounting to approximately
RMB12,530,799,000, representing a decrease of approximately
8.9% as compared to RMB13,759,170,000 in the Previous
Year. Meanwhile, the Group’s gross profit for the Year amounted
to approximately RMB508,856,000, representing a decrease
of approximately 6.0% as compared to the Previous Year, and
the gross profit margin for the Year was approximately 4.1%
(2022: approximately 3.9%). The gross profit margin remained
relatively low, which was mainly due to: () the decline in global
sales volume of smartphones due to macro factors, intensified
market competition, which squeezed unit price and profit margin.
Meanwhile, the year-on-year decline in the sales volume of
the Group’s camera modules applied to smartphones resulted
in a decrease in the Group's revenue as compared to that of
the Previous Year and an increase in fixed costs such as unit
product depreciation; (i) the exchange rate of RMB against
USD remained weak during the Year, with the central parity rate
adjusted from 6.9646 at the beginning of 2023 to 7.0827 at
the end of 2023, representing a depreciation of approximately
1.7%, and the average exchange rate for the trading days of the
Year was approximately 7.0467, representing a depreciation of
approximately 4.77% compared with that of approximately 6.7261
for the Previous Year, and the spot exchange rate of RMB against
USD is generally higher than the above mentioned central parity
rate, resulting in the high cost of USD denominated imported
materials, which had a negative impact on the gross profit margin;
and (i) although the automotive camera module business has
made significant progress compared with the Previous Year, it
is still at the stage of investment and market development in
general. Therefore, the utilization rate of production capacity has
yet to be improved, which affected the comprehensive gross profit
margin. During the Year, the Group’s profit was approximately
RMB83,531,000, representing a decrease of approximately 50.9%
compared to the Previous Year. The decrease in profit was mainly
attributable to: (i) a decrease in revenue of approximately 8.9% as
compared with the Previous Year; and (i) the Group’s investment in
an associate which continued to operate unsatisfactorily during the
Year, with losses widening compared with the Previous Year.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Despite all kinds of unfavourable factors, the management and
all employees of the Group remained confident in the long-term
development. With perseverance and resilience, and the trust and
support of our customers, the Group has, on the one hand, always
adhered to the strategy of upgrading its product structure with a
focus on the development of mid-to-high-end camera modules,
including promoting the market expansion of mid-to-high-end
camera modules such as those of 32 megapixels and above, with
optical stabilization, periscope zoom, large-size Complementary
Metal Oxide Semiconductor (CMQOS), automotive modules, and
loT terminal application modules. The shipment proportion of
mid-to-high-end camera modules reached approximately 41.6%,
representing an increase of 11.6 percentage points as compared
to approximately 30.0% in 2022, fully achieving the business
target of the product structure optimization proposed by the
Company in March 2023 and August 2023 successively. It also
drove the unit price of the Group’s camera modules to stop falling
and rebound. The average sales unit price of camera modules
for the Year increased from approximately RMB29.63 in the
Previous Year to approximately RMB30.95, of which the average
unit price was approximately RMB29.49 for the first half of 2023
and approximately RMB32.16 for the second half of 2023, which
showed a significant increase in the second half of the Year. On
the other hand, the loT and automotive camera modules in which
the Group made strategical layout showed a steady increase in
sales volume, representing an increase of approximately 15.4% as
compared with the Previous Year, and the proportion of revenue
increased significantly, gradually showing the results of the
strategic layout. In particular, in terms of the automotive modules
business, the Group has established business relationships
with seven automobile brands which ranked among the top ten
automobile brands in terms of the number of new energy vehicles
shipped in the PRC as announced by the China Passenger
Cars Association (the “CPCA”) for the Year. The Group has also
established business relationships with a number of leading
intelligent driving system solution companies in Europe, the United
States and the PRC, and has become an automotive module core
supplier for various hot-selling new energy vehicles, providing
various types of automotive modules for intelligent driving, such as
advanced driving assistance system (ADAS), Surround View (1%157)
and Intelligent Cockpit.
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The Group had published the Strategic Planning for the Five-Year
(2021-2025) Operation and Development of Q Technology (Group)
Company Limited (E#i#$: (EE) BIRABEF (2021-2025
F) SRS IRS])) (the “Five-year Strategic Planning”) for
the first time in the 2021 interim results announcement of the
Company, setting out a development blueprint for the next five
years. Entering the third year, although the external environment is
full of thorns, all employees of the Group had faith in the future and
followed this strategic deployment to make great progress, actively
seeking changes, and making progress and reinforcing strengths
while seeking changes. During the Year, the management had an
early insight into the impact of the macro environment and weak
consumption on global smartphone market, and clearly realized
that being caught up in irrational price competition was not in line
with the Group’s long-term development strategy, thus focusing
on improving the product structure and enhancing the quality
of revenue. On the one hand, the Group has been vigorously
expanding its overseas market and its share of camera modules in
various overseas smartphone brands has continued to increase.
On the other hand, the Group has focused on strengthening the
technological development and customer expansion of high-end
camera modules products applied to smartphones, such as 32
mega pixels and above, optical stabilization, periscope zoom and
large-size CMOS. In particular, the Group has been vigorously
promoting the market expansion of camera modules in the non-
handset field such as smart cars and loT intelligent terminals.
The Group has not only successfully become the core camera
module supplier of the world’s leading commercial drone brand,
but also made strategic breakthroughs in the camera modules
applied to smart cars, and have successively established business
relationships with nearly 30 automobile brands or intelligent driving
solution providers, for which we have provided various types of
automotive modules such as ADAS, Surround View and Smart
Cockpit. Based on this solid foundation, the Group will steadfastly
accomplish its strategic objectives, face challenges and organize
all resources in an effort to achieve the goals set out in its five-year
strategic plan.

Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

REBREAAT S - —FEhHEE
NEFERBR(ERBE (EE) B
N RE (2021-20254F) K& 2% B B
BRFRE ) ((HEEREHRE) » 5T FERK
AEMNERER - BAFL=F > BRI
HIRIEF Mma EXEEE2EBETAF
S0 BRHELEEKEBESTEE =
ESRE > Bh R BRKRE o RAF
EEEEXEIIRINRBIRIERE
BRSHEKEEFHTHEH RN A
B, EMERIBAFFEENERRS
TAFEAEENRPEREREHE KM
BITEEMHENSERGEEEREH
WABE —FEANERBIINTE
EZRBINEEFHRENERER
HOBEFELHA B—FE AEEE
EMR="FTEB®REKRMNEAZEEH
F BEAEE - ASDARSEEANEE
FHNSIHEREEAE RO
FHERIRE LERARKNEEESE
AENOTRIGEIFFHBINIERE
BEERNTZIRE TERIIEA 2
REBLENEAEAKESERENZLO
mEGEEARER METEEBRE
FEMNBEGEEBAE FEINE T BN
BIZER  EEE T =+ KA E RN
EER T EBBEUTESNSFRBG
AEH2EIZBMHADAS B BAEEMRE
EXRBHEINEFEMA-FILLBRENE
B b AEER R E R 5T S B
T HEkE EBFTEERESNER
hEHKEREGETNEZ

2023 5% ESRE EE) ARAE 13



Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

PROSPECTS

In 2024, global macro situation remains confusing, with both
challenges and opportunities. On the one hand, the Russian-
Ukrainian military conflict is still ongoing, and the risk of war in
the Middle East has intensified tensions in geopolitical, economic
relations and the global security situation. At the same time, the
situation of economic globalization is constantly being reversed as
a result of the game between major powers, soaring total global
debt, a decline in global inflation that is still at a high level in certain
countries, and intensified international trade protectionism. The
world is gradually developing from a “flat” to a “square” or even
a “torn” world, and economic cooperation has become more
difficult, with global economic growth continuing to face various
challenges. On the other hand, the global economy continues
to show “impressive” resilience, with an increased possibility of
a “soft landing”. The “World Economic Outlook Report” released
by the International Monetary Fund (IMF) on 30 January 2024
indicates the growth rate of the global economy to be 3.1% in
2024, representing an increase of 0.2 percentage points from the
2.9% forecast made in October 2023. The IMF continued to be
optimistic about the growth momentum in China, the United States
and various emerging markets and developing economies, and
the global economic growth rate is expected to be 3.2% in 2025,
with a stable mid-term development trend. Meanwhile, the IMF
raised its forecast for China’s economic growth in 2024 to 4.6%,
representing an increase of 0.4 percentage point from the 4.2%
forecast made in October 2023, to reflect the continuation of the
higher-than-expected growth momentum of China’s economy in
2023 and the driving force of the relevant policies introduced by
the Chinese government.

The resilience of economic growth will help restore the confidence
of various industries and consumers, which will benefit the
increased demand for consumer goods such as smartphones,
smart cars and loT terminals, and leading companies in these
sectors will continue to enjoy better development opportunities.
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In terms of smartphones, according to the report from IDC, a
third-party research institute, in January 2024, although global
smartphone shipments declined year-on-year in 2023, market
demand has rebounded since the second half of the Year. In the
fourth quarter of 2023, global smartphone shipments increased
by 8.5% year-on-Year, reaching 326.1 million units, higher than
the previous expected growth rate of 7.3%, of which, China’s
smartphone market shipped approximately 73.63 million units,
representing a year-on-year increase of 1.2%, rebounding for the
first time after 10 consecutive quarters of year-on-year decline.
The high-end market share of smartphones with a per unit price
of over US$600 increased by 3.7 percentage points year-on-year
to 27.4%. IDC further forecasts that China’s smartphone market
shipment will reach 287 million units in 2024, representing a
year-on-year increase of 3.6%. Counterpoint, another third-party
research institute, also believes that market demand is gradually
recovering and expects global smartphone shipments in 2024 to
grow by 3% year-on-year.

In terms of loT terminals, despite the year-on-year decrease in
global augmented reality (AR) and virtual reality (VR) headset
shipments in 2023, according to the report from IDC in December
2023, IDC believes AR/VR headset shipments in 2024 are
expected to increase by 46.4% year-on-year, driven by Meta’s
Quest3 and Apple’s VisionPro headset. In this regard, China’s AR
shipments will continue to grow rapidly, with growth rate expected
to be 101%. In addition, demand in China’s smart home market is
set to pick up gradually, with device shipments in 2024 expected
to increase by 6.5% year-on-year. Rising demand for IoT intelligent
terminals is expected to bring good market opportunities for
camera modules. In addition, the artificial intelligence (Al) industry
has grown significantly in the past, with several applications not
only attracting widespread interest from consumers and public
opinion, but also bringing more concrete guidance on the direction
of the Al industry. Perceptual intelligence is a highly significant part
of artificial intelligence, and machine vision is the most significant
part of perceptual intelligence. As the most significant and mature
means of implementation of machine vision, camera module
will also usher in their own opportunities in the era of artificial
intelligence, equipped with artificial intelligence mobile phones,
loT terminals, bionic robots, smart cars, and other Al devices are
conducive to increase the number of camera modules. Also out
of the perceived need for intelligent upgrading may bring more
advanced demands on the functions and performance of the
camera modules, thus contributing to the improvement of the
specifications and added value of the camera module.
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In terms of passenger vehicles, according to the CPCA in January
2024, the retail sales of China’s passenger car market in 2023
were approximately 21.699 million units, representing a year-
on-year increase of approximately 5.6%, of which domestic
retail sales of new energy passenger vehicle were 7.736 million
units, representing a year-on-year growth of 36.2%, with the
penetration rate for the Year at 35.7%, representing a year-on-
year increase of 8.1 percentage points; export sales amounted
to 1.048 million units, representing a year-on-year increase of
72.0%. The rapid development of new energy passenger cars
has significantly accelerated the development of the autonomous
driving industry, and the rapid development of autonomous driving
and driving assistance has provided a good opportunity for the
rapid development of the automotive camera module business.
According to the industry’s commonly used technical analysis,
automotive camera is a necessary sensor for the ADAS perception
layer, while L2 level autonomous driving often requires to carry
5-8 camera modules, and upgraded to L3 level usually requires
to carry 8-16 camera modules. According to public information,
vehicles including AITO M7, XPeng G6 and P7 are equipped with
more than 10 camera modules. In the second half of 2023, the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, the Ministry of
Public Security, the Ministry of Transport of the PRC and other
ministries jointly issued the Notice on Launching the Pilot Work
of Intelligent Connected Vehicle Access and Road Use ({BEi*
FRESEMAEAEAEAMNLEBTAMIIENBAD), which
specified that intelligent connected vehicles in the pilot work will
be equipped with the autonomous driving functions of Level 3
(conditional autonomous driving) and Level 4 (high autonomous
driving) in the national standard “Taxonomy of driving automation
for vehicles”, which are commonly referred to as the “L3” and
“L4” autonomous driving systems. This will further support the
development of China’s automatic driving industry, which will
not only benefit the growth of the number of automotive camera
modules, but also the specifications of automotive camera
modules in terms of function and performance. The proportion of
application of chip on board (COB) process in automotive camera
modules will continue to increase, and companies with large-scale
and reliable packaging and testing history for handset camera
modules will obtain more market opportunities, which will be
beneficial to the development of the Group’s automotive camera
module business.
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To sum up, the recovery of demand in industries such as
smartphones, meta-universes and loT intelligent terminals and
the rapid growth of the smart car industry will bring impetus to
the growth in the number of camera modules and fingerprint
recognition modules. Meanwhile, the restoration of consumer
purchasing power and consumer confidence is conducive to the
sales of high-end mobile phones, thereby bringing positive help
to camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules to get
back on track with specification upgrades. As such, the business
development of the Group is expected to develop in a positive
direction. In particular, the camera module business in the field
of intelligent driving is expected to achieve sustained and rapid
growth in the future after years of accumulation, which will provide
a new impetus for the development of the Group’s comprehensive
development.
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In summary, the Directors believe that development opportunities
and challenges coexist in the intelligent vision industry in the
future. In the long run, the optical design, structural design
and integration of key components and algorithms of camera
modules became more important and complex, and smart vision
product manufacturers that can provide overall intelligent vision
solutions that are both technology-rich and cost-advantaged
are expected to keep up with the needs of the times and stand
out in the fierce competition. In this regard, the Group will
continue to promote large-scale intelligent manufacturing and
research and development (the “R&D”) of new technology and
vertical integration, in firmly propelling the strategies in platform,
components and system integration, in adhering to a customer-
centric service strategy, and provide high-end and high-quality
products and quick-response services to our general customers.
The Group will also continue to focus on increasing the sales
proportion of products with resolutions of 32 mega pixels and
above, especially rapidly expanding the business scale of camera
module applied to the non-handset field such as smart cars and
loT intelligent terminals rapidly. The Group will strive to achieve the
following targets in the year 2024: (i) the combined sales volume
of camera modules with resolutions of 32 megapixels and above
applied to mobile phones and camera modules applied to other
fields accounting for more than 45% of the total sales volume
of camera modules, which was approximately 40% during the
Year; (i) a year-on-year increase of not less than 50% in the sales
volume of camera modules applied to the non-handset fields
such as automotive and loT; and (i) a year-on-year increase of
not less than 5% in the sales volume of camera modules applied
to mobile phones. Taking into account the market conditions and
the Group’s actual development and comprehensive capabilities,
the Directors are confident in leading the Group to embrace the
challenges in the year ahead, make further efforts to achieve
good development, endeavor to advance the five-year strategic
planning, uphold the vision of the Group as “to illuminate
machines” and strive to create greater value for the shareholders of

the Company (the “Shareholders”).
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AWARDS AND HONOURS

During the Year, the Group continued to adhere to our customer-
oriented service strategies, constantly considered the provision
of good personal experience for customers as our operation
direction and devoted our best efforts to satisfy customers’ needs
in product R&D, sales delivery, after-sales service, product quality
and technology innovation, and gained high recognition of the
Group’s comprehensive ability, products and services from the
local governments, industry and our customers. The major honors
the Group has recently received are as follows:

In April 2023, Kunshan QTech Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (ELL &
HIMEBEBFRIFEBMHBELAT) (‘Kunshan QT China”), a subsidiary
of the Company, was awarded the “Excellence in Delivery Award
2022” by Honor, the world’s leading smartphone brand.

In May 2023, the Company received the “Outstanding
Serviceability” award at the 2023 Lenovo Group Global Supplier
Conference.

In June 2023, Mr. He Ningning, the chairman of the Board and
an executive Director of the Company, was awarded the “Friends
of Suzhou Honour Award” by the Suzhou Municipal People’s
Government.

In October 2023, the Company was awarded the “Quality
Operation Award” at the 10th Supplier Quality Forum of Lenovo
Group.

In January 2024, Kunshan QT China, a subsidiary of the Company,
was awarded the “Automotive Camera Outstanding Partner
Award” by Huawei, one of the world’s leading companies in smart
cars.
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In February 2024, Kunshan QT China was awarded the “Kunshan
Qutstanding Contribution Enterprise Award for Industrial Output
2023” by the Kunshan Municipal People’s Government, Jiangsu
Province.

In February 2024, Kunshan QTech Biological Recognition
Technology Limited (B ESKEYHBBEBRAE) (“QT
Biological Recognition”), a subsidiary of the Company, was
awarded the “Kunshan Outstanding Contribution Enterprise Award
for Research and Development Investment 2023” by the Kunshan
Municipal People’s Government, Jiangsu Province.

He Ningning
Chairman

Hong Kong
21 April 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

During the Year, the revenue of the Group was approximately
RMB12,530,799,000,
of approximately 8.9% as compared with approximately
RMB13,759,170,000 in 2022. The decrease in revenue was mainly
attributable to the fact that, due to the impact of macro factors,

representing a year-on-year decrease

the sales volume of smartphones worldwide dropped in the Year
as compared with that of the Previous Year, resulting in a decrease
in the demand for camera modules and fingerprint recognition
modules applied to smartphones, and the sales volume of the
Group’s camera modules declined by approximately 11.9% year-
on-year.

Cost of sales

During the Year, the cost of sales of the Group was approximately
RMB12,021,943,000,
of approximately 9.0% as compared with approximately
RMB13,217,828,000 in 2022. The decrease in cost of sales was
primarily attributable to the year-on-year decline in revenue during

representing a year-on-year decrease

the Year which has resulted in a corresponding decline in various
costs of sales such as materials cost, utilities and direct labour.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the Year, gross profit of the Group was approximately
RMB508,856,000 (2022: approximately RMB541,342,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 6.0% as compared with
that in 2022, while gross profit margin was approximately 4.1%
(2022: approximately 3.9%). The gross profit margin remained
relatively low, it was mainly because: (i) the sales volume of
smartphones worldwide dropped affected by macro factors,
intensified market competition, and unit price and profit margin
were squeezed. Meanwhile, the sales volume of the Group’s
camera modules applied to smartphone declined year-on-year,
representing a decrease in the Group’s revenue as compared
to that of the Previous Year and an increase in fixed costs such
as unit product depreciation; (i) the continued weakness of the
exchange rate of RMB against USD during the Year, with the
central parity rate adjusted from 6.9646 at the beginning of
2023 to 7.0827 at the end of 2023, representing a depreciation
of approximately 1.7%, and the average exchange rate for the
trading days of the Year was approximately 7.0467, representing
a depreciation of approximately 4.77% as compared with that
of approximately 6.7261 for the Previous Year, and the spot
exchange rate of RMB against USD is generally higher than the
above mentioned central parity rate, resulting in the high cost of
materials imported and settled in USD, which led to a negative
impact on gross profit margin; and (i) although the automotive
camera modules business has made significant progress as
compared to the Previous Year, it was still at the stage of
investment and market development in general, therefore the
production capacity utilization rate still needed to be improved,
which affected the comprehensive gross profit margin.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other income

During the Year, other income of the Group was approximately
RMB384,067,000, representing an increase of approximately
33.4% as compared with approximately RMB287,838,000 in
2022. The increase in other income was mainly attributable to:
(i) the increase in bank deposits and the Group's flexibility in
arranging deposit term and deposit currencies with commercial
banks to secure better interest rates resulted in an increase in
interest income of approximately RMB109,429,000 as compared
to that of the Previous Year; (i) in accordance with a new policy
issued by the PRC government, the Group was entitled to an
additional deduction of 5% for value-added tax input tax, resulting
in an income of approximately RMB48,768,000, and there was no
such policy in the Previous Years; (i) in accordance with the income
and expenditure plan, the Group arranged wealth management
products and structured deposits in accordance with the
Company's financial policy under circumstances with the insurance
of safety, resulting in an increase in income of approximately
RMB30,772,000 as compared with that of the Previous Year;
which was partially offset by (iv) the fair value changes of the
outstanding forward exchange contracts at FVPL incurred loss
of approximately RMB31,883,000 as compared with a gain of
approximately RMB20,634,000 in the Previous Year.

Selling and distribution expenses

For the Year, selling and distribution expenses of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB19,783,000,
increase of approximately 43.5% as compared with approximately
RMB13,790,000 in 2022. The ratio of selling and distribution
expenses to revenue was approximately 0.2% (2022: 0.1%). The

representing an

year-on-year increase in selling and distribution expenses for
the Year was mainly due to the increase in travel expenses and
agency fees of the sales department in order to speed up business
expansion in overseas markets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Administrative and other operating expenses

During the Year, the total of administrative and other operating
expenses of the Group was approximately RMB149,254,000,
representing an increase of approximately 5.2% as compared
with approximately RMB141,923,000 in 2022. The increase
in administrative and other operating expenses was mainly
attributable to: (i) in order to strengthen the construction of the
Group’s project operation management and control system,
the Group engaged external organisations to provide process
construction services, resulting in an increase of approximately
RMB8,170,000 in external service fees as compared with that
of the Previous Year; and (i) in order to improve the office
environment for employees, the Group commissioned its new
administration building in Kunshan City, resulting in an increase in
depreciation and amortization of approximately RMB5,363,000 as
compared with that of the Previous Year.

R&D expenses

During the Year, total R&D expenses of the Group were
approximately RMB435,550,000, representing a decrease
of approximately 7.3% as compared with approximately
RMB469,626,000 in 2022. The decrease in R&D expenses was
mainly attributable to the Group’s improvement of R&D efficiency,
enhancement of the utilization management of R&D materials and
reduction of investment in R&D, such as material requisition.

Finance costs

During the Year, the finance costs of the Group were approximately
RMB171,327,000, representing an increase of approximately
186.1% as compared with approximately RMB59,874,000 in
2022. The increase in finance costs was mainly attributable to the
increase in bank borrowings drawn by the Group as compared
to the Previous Year and the increase in interest rates on USD
borrowings as the Group adhered to the policy of maintaining
sufficient liquidity during the Year in order to better cope with
the complex and volatile macro-environment. On the other hand,
however, the Group’s bank deposits, wealth management products
and the balance of cash and cash equivalents also increased
significantly as at the end of the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Share of loss of an associate

During the Year, Newmax Technology Co., Ltd, an associate of
the Company, recorded a loss. The share of loss of an associate
attributable to the Company was approximately RMB49,578,000,
representing an increase of approximately 35.3% as compared
with the loss of RMB36,640,000 in 2022.

Income tax expenses

During the Year, the Group recorded income tax income of
approximately RMB15,398,000, while the income tax revenue
in 2022 were approximately RMB63,146,000. This was mainly
attributable to: the amount of deferred tax arising from and
reversal of temporary differences for the Year was approximately
RMB15,504,000, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB34,779,000 as compared to approximately RMB50,283,000
in 2022.

Profit for the Year

Based on the foregoing, the profit of the Group for the Year
amounted to approximately RMB83,531,000 (2022: approximately
RMB170,230,000), representing a decrease of approximately
50.9% as compared with that of 2022. The decrease in profit was
mainly attributable to: (i) a decrease in revenue of approximately
8.9% as compared with the Previous Year; and (i) the Group’s
investment in an associate continued to operate unsatisfactorily
during the Year, with losses widening compared with the Previous
Year.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Bank Borrowings

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s bank borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB4,370,999,000, an increase of
approximately 67.1% from approximately RMB2,615,977,000
as at 31 December 2022. Among the bank borrowings, short-
term borrowings repayable within one year or on demand were
approximately RMB4,151,506,000 whereas long-term borrowings
were approximately RMB219,493,000.

As at 31 December 20283, the Group’s bank borrowings were
mainly denominated in Renminbi and/or USD. The cash flow
overview of the Group for the Year and 2022 was set out as
follows:
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For the year ended
31 December

B#=E+_"_A=+—H

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities

Net cash generated from financing
activities

REFER

R P

As of 31 December 2023, the cash and cash equivalents of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB2,893,084,000,
representing an increase of approximately RMB1,544,200,000
from approximately RMB1,348,884,000 as at 31 December 2022.
The increase in cash and cash equivalents was mainly attributable
to management appropriately increasing bank borrowings based
on its analysis of the international situation and taking into account
factors such as financing costs and deposit rates, thereby leading
to an increase in cash reserves.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Operating activities

During the Year, the Group recorded a net cash outflow used in
operating activities of approximately RMB378,783,000, while a net
cash inflow of approximately RMB1,048,352,000 was recorded in
2022, which was mainly attributable to the increase in outstanding
receivables as a result of the significant improvement in sales in
the fourth quarter of the Year, as well as the increase in inventories
of spare parts and payments to chips and other suppliers based
on future customer demand, which in turn affected cash flow from
operating activities for the Year.

Investing activities

The net cash inflow generated from investing activities
of the Group during the Year amounted to approximately
RMB366,724,000 (2022: net cash outflow amounted to
approximately RMB1,941,098,000),
from investment activities was mainly derived from: (i) the net cash

and such cash generated

generated from the purchase and redemption of other financial
assets such as wealth management products of approximately
RMB704,362,000;
RMB238,189,000 as the redemption amount on maturity of time

(i) the net cash generated of approximately

deposits with a maturity of over three months was greater than
the amount of new mandates; (iii) the net cash outflow for the
entrustment and redemption of large transferable time deposits of
approximately RMB590,000,000; and (iv) payment of amounts due
for acquisition of fixed assets such as equipment of approximately
RMB136,314,000.

Financing activities

The net cash inflow generated from the financing activities
of the Group during the Year amounted to approximately
RMB1,550,685,000, while the net inflow recorded in the year
2022 was approximately RMB468,475,000, which was mainly
attributable to the excess of proceeds from bank borrowings
over the repayment amount of bank borrowings by approximately
RMB1,687,593,000.
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Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio

The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio of the Group as at
31 December 2023, as defined by the total balance of bank
borrowings and lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents
divided by total equity at the end of the Year, was approximately
30.9%, representing an increase of 3.7 percentage points from
approximately 27.2% as at 31 December 2022, which was mainly
attributable to the increase in the balance of bank borrowings
(including long-term bank borrowings) by approximately 67.1%
from approximately RMB2,615,977,000 as at 31 December 2022
to approximately RMB4,370,999,000 as at 31 December 2023.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group’s treasury policy was disclosed in the prospectus of
the Company dated 20 November 2014 (the “Prospectus”), and
was amended by the risk management committee of the Company
(the “Risk Management Committee”) on 24 March 2016 and 6
December 2022, the details of which were disclosed under the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section of the 2016 to
2022 annual reports. On 12 April 2024, the Risk Management
Committee and the Board reviewed and approved certain new
amendments to the Group's treasury policy, mainly to expand
the scope of the counterparties for wealth management product
transactions from banks to banks and/or their subsidiaries
engaged in wealth management business (including but not
limited to bank wealth management subsidiaries), based on actual
changes in the market and policies in recent years.

The Board, the Risk Management Committee and the staff of
the Company at the relevant positions always remain alert to the
performance and risk assessment of the wealth management
products. At the same time, the Company also pays close
attention to the liquidity and debt asset position of the Group in
order to ensure the sufficiency of its working capital and maintain
the debt asset ratio at a reasonable level.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 15 December 2020, the Company submitted an application
in relation to a possible spin-off and separate listing of Kunshan
QT China on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange or Shanghai Stock
Exchange in the PRC (the “Proposed Spin-off’) to the Stock
Exchange for approval pursuant to Practice Note 15 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), and received the approval from the Stock
Exchange on 23 April 2021. On 23 June 2021, Kunshan QT China
submitted an application to the ChiNext Market of Shenzhen Stock
Exchange for the proposed listing (the “Proposed Listing”), and
has received approval from the listing committee of the ChiNext
Market of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 17 August 2022.
Kunshan QT China has also submitted the registration application
to the China Securities Regulatory Commission (the “CSRC”)
for the Proposed Listing, and has received the official notice of
acceptance from the CSRC on 30 December 2022, and is still
undergoing the relevant approval process. For details, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 15 December 2020,
23 April 2021, 23 June 2021, 30 June 2021, 16 December 2021,
23 February 2022, 27 June 2022, 4 August 2022, 17 August
2022, 29 September 2022, 2 December 2022, 30 December 2022
and 11 September 2023.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any material
acquisitions or disposals of its subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group did not hold any significant investment for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no any plan authorized by the Board for other material
investments or additions of capital assets as at 31 December
2028.

CONTINGENCIES

Kunshan Q Tech Microelectronics (India) Private Limited (“India
Q Tech”) has been involved in inspections initiated by relevant
Indian authorities including the Income Tax Department and the
Directorate of Revenue Intelligence in relation to compliance with
relevant income tax regulations and custom duties regulations.

In connection with one of the inspections mentioned above, on
30 December 2023, India Q Tech, a subsidiary of the Company,
received a draft assessment order (‘DAQ”) from Government of
India Ministry of Finance Income Tax Department Office of The
Assistant Commissioner of Income Tax, Central Circle 30, Delhi
(“the relevant Indian authorities”). The DAO is looking into the
treatment of costs and expenses, including purchase costs of raw
material and machineries paid to companies within the Group,
when computing its taxable income during the year ended 31
March 2021.

Management assessed the aforesaid matter related to India
Q Tech, taking into considerations of all relevant facts and
circumstances including opinions from tax advisors, and
concluded India Q Tech has valid grounds to object to the relevant
Indian authorities. The Group, hence, has not made any provision
as of 31 December 2023 pertaining to the matter.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Tax disputes of this nature is expected to take a long period
of time and involve various levels of government and court
authorities before a judgment or settlement can be reached. The
Group could receive judgments or enter into settlements that may
adversely affect its operating results or cash flows. Considering
the current early stage of proceedings, quantifying the related
financial effects is not practicable at this stage.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023,
Group included bank deposits and shares of associates of
approximately RMB1,413,436,000,
approximately RMB364,112,000 as compared with approximately
RMB1,049,324,000 as at 31 December 2022. These pledged
assets were used as guarantee for bank borrowings and bank

the assets pledged by the

representing an increase of

guarantee letters.

EMPLOYEE POLICIES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2023, the number of staff of the Group
was 9,629 (the “Staff”,
contractual staff such as staff under internship agreements and

including contractual staff and non-

labour service agreements) (as at 31 December 2022: 7,780).
The Group is committed to providing all Staff with fair working
environment, providing newly recruited staff with induction
training and job technical counseling to help them to adapt
to job requirements quickly, providing all Staff with clear job
responsibilities guidelines and for employees at different positions
with on-the-job training together with other training programmes
to help improving their skills and knowledge, and strived to
provide all staff with competitive remuneration packages. For the
Year, the remuneration of the employees (including staff under
labour service agreements and internship agreements) of the
Group was approximately RMB801,194,000 (2022: approximately
RMB897,273,000).
includes performance bonus, medical insurance, share options

Apart from basic salary, the package also

and provident fund (staff under labour service agreements and
internship agreements are treated according to the laws and
regulations of the PRC).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily due to certain
receivables, payables, cash balances and loans that are
denominated in foreign currencies other than RMB arising from
the operating activities such as bank borrowings, product sales
and purchase of raw materials. The Group is also exposed to
currency risk from the exchange or translation of USD and Hong
Kong Dollars into RMB and USD into Indian rupees (“INR”). During
the Year, the sales income of the Group was still mainly settled in
RMB, but there was a significant increase in sales income settled
in INR. Various raw materials for production and some equipment
for production were purchased from overseas and settled in
USD. Therefore, any depreciation in the value of RMB and/or INR
against the USD would not be favourable to the Group. During
the Year, the exchange rate of the INR against USD depreciated
from 0.01209 at the beginning of 2023 to 0.01201 at the end of
2023, but remained largely stable. Affected by various factors,
despite the favorable rebound of the economy in China after the
pandemic, the central parity rate of RMB against USD still adjusted
from 6.9646 at the beginning of 2023 to 7.0827 at the end of
2023, representing a depreciation of approximately 1.7%, and
the average exchange rate for the trading days of the Year was
about 7.0467, representing a depreciation of approximately 4.77%
as compared to approximately 6.7261 of the Previous Year. The
spot exchange rate of RMB against USD is generally higher than
the above mentioned central parity rate. The trend of exchange
rate which deviated from the economic growth increased the
difficulties in foreign exchange risk management, however,
the foreign exchange option contracts and foreign exchange
forward contracts adopted by the Group effectively cured part
of the exchange rate cost of RMB against USD and recorded an
aggregate net income of approximately RMB1,868,000 for the
Year (2022: recorded an aggregate net income of approximately
RMB51,364,000). As affected by multiple factors such as politics,
economic, and supply and demand, the trend of RMB against USD
and INR against USD in the future is subject to great uncertainties.
It is difficult to adjust the business model of the Group in the short
run. Therefore, the profit or loss of the Group may still be affected
by exchange rate fluctuation in the future. The Group will, on one
hand, continuously strive to strengthen the expansion of overseas
business in an effort to increase the revenue in USD; on the
other hand, the Group will continuously enhance daily monitoring
of the exchange rate, and fix the future foreign exchange costs
by properly using financial instruments, so as to strengthen the
management of foreign exchange risks and strive to reduce foreign
exchange loss. However, the Group is also clearly aware that there
are many factors affecting exchange rates, and the mechanism
to determine exchange rate is complicated and fickle, making it
is difficult to estimate its trend. Therefore, the profit or loss of the

Group may still be affected by exchange rate fluctuation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

DIVIDEND

Given that the Proposed Spin-off has not yet been completed,
taking into consideration of the capital expenditure required by
the Group’s plan to continue to expand camera module capacity
planning and increase investment in camera module business for
automotive and |oT fields, the Board recommended not to declare
any final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 (for the
year ended 31 December 2022: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the eligibility to attend the annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) to be held on 24 May 2024, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from 21 May
2024 to 24 May 2024 (both days inclusive). All transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 20 May 2024.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
MANAGEMENT

The Group has strictly complied with the applicable environmental
protection laws and policies in the jurisdictions where the
respective members of the Group are located. During the Year,
the Group had continued to revise, improve and implement a
number of internal rules and regulations in relation to environmental
protection management such as the implementation of
Wastewater Management Regulations, Waste Gas Management
Regulations and Greenhouse Gas Management Measures, and
to further perfect the wastewater, waste gas and greenhouse
gas treatment system in order to strengthen its management
and control in production and domestic sewage so as to ensure
that the wastewater discharge is in compliance with statutory
requirements, and clarified the ranges, procedure and instrument
of collecting the data of greenhouse gas for the effective
management of greenhouse gas of the Group in the long run and
prepared for reducing carbon emissions. At the same time, the
Group had also amended and implemented certain regulations
and measures including improving the Fire Safety Management
Regulations and Emergency Plan, held fire drills with particular
focus on strengthening of self-check of the fire control facilities and
improving the fire prevention and control capability, and Kunshan
QT China and QT Biological Recognition successfully obtained
the compliance certificate in terms of work safety granted by
Administration of Work Safety and Environmental Protection of
Kunshan Hi-tech Park.

Particulars of the environmental protection management of the
Company will be disclosed in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report set out in this annual report.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEEBZEEFE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company currently
consists of six Directors, comprising three executive Directors,
namely Mr. He Ningning, Mr. Hu Sanmu and Mr. Fan Fugiang, and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Chia-
Hsiang, Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Ms. Hui Hiu Ching.

Executive Directors

Mr. He Ningning ({12 28) (“Mr. He"), aged 53, was appointed as
a Director on 5 May 2014 and was re-designated as an executive
Director on 13 November 2014. Mr. He has been the chairman
of the Board and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) of the Board of the Company since 13 November
2014. He is primarily responsible for overall strategic planning
and formulation of investment strategies of our Group. Mr. He
founded Kunshan QT China in October 2007 and has more than
20 years of experience in the electrical and electronic industries.
Prior to founding the Group, Mr. He served as a sales officer of
Samsung Electro-Mechanics Dongguan Co., Ltd. (RE=2%
#HER /AT, a manufacturer of electronic components, from
July 1992 to April 1997 where he was primarily responsible for
sales and delivery management. In November 2000 and June
2004, Mr. He founded Surewheel Asia Pacific Limited (Z:HEE
i KABRAR) (“Surewheel”), a company principally engaged in
agency sales of printheads, and Shenzhen Xike Dexin Telecom
Equipment Co., Ltd. CRIIT AP EEBEXMRERRAR)
(“Shenzhen CK”), a company principally engaged in the research,
development and sales of complete handsets components, and
was the chairman of Surewheel and Shenzhen CK. Mr. He is
primarily responsible for the strategic planning. In December 2004,
Mr. He founded CK Telecom Limited (F& R @ISR MIza 4 (ol
J8) BBR/A T (“Heyuan CK”), a company principally engaged in
the sales and manufacturing of complete handsets and handset
components and modules, and has been the chairman of Heyuan
CK. Mr. He is primarily responsible for the strategic planning of
Heyuan CK. Mr. He is the sole director and the sole shareholder
of Q Technology Investment Inc. (“QT Investment”), a controlling
shareholder of the Company as at the date of this report. Mr. He
received his bachelor's degree in science, majoring in weather
dynamic, from the Peking University in July 1992 and his master’s
degree of business administration from the University of California
in March 2002.
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Mr. He is also a director of each of Q Technology (Great China)
Inc., Kunshan Q Technology (Hong Kong) Limited (“‘Kunshan QT
Hong Kong”), Kunshan QTech Ever Capital Limited (B LL A%
EHEAHRAT)(“Qlech Ever Capital”), Kunshan QT China, QT
Biological Recognition, Kunshan QTech Optoelectronic Technology
Limited (R W E#X BRI AR AR) (“QTech Optoelectronic”),
Kunshan Q Technology International Limited (“‘QT International”), Q
Technology (Singapore) Private Limited (“Singapore QT”), Kunshan
Q Tech Microelectronics (India) Private Limited (“India QT”) and
Kunshan QTech Smart-Forward Limited (B ESAE{TREAR
‘A7) (“QT Smart-Forward”), each of which is a subsidiary of the
Company.

Mr. Hu Sanmu (B8=K) (“Mr. Hu"), aged 48, has been an
executive Director of the Company since 8 July 2016, and
has been the chief executive officer of the Company since 15
December 2020. He is primarily responsible for the daily operation
management of the Company, especially in the operation
management of biological recognition module business of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Hu held various positions
in VTech (Shenzhen) Electronic Limited ({8 3 E & F&Em CEII)
BBRAE]), a company principally engaged in manufacturing of
telecommunication products, from July 1998 to November 2002,
where he last served as a mechanical structure engineer and was
primarily responsible for the mechanical design. From November
2002 to August 2004, Mr. Hu held various positions in Tianjin
Amphenol Kae Co., Ltd. (REZEHKINEETFHRAA), a
manufacturer of connector products, where he last served as a
sales engineer and was primarily responsible for maintaining the
relationship with existing customers and the expansion of sales
network. From July 2005 to November 2009, Mr. Hu held various
positions in Van Telecom Limited (MZ & A RAE]), a company
principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of precise
connectors, where he last served as the sales director and was
primarily responsible for sales management and product planning.
Mr. Hu received his bachelor’s degree in engineering, majoring in
mechanical design and manufacture from the Xi’an University of
Science and Technology (FAZ &l X&), previously known as
Xi'an Mining Institute (FAZHEZE2T) | in July 1998.
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Mr. Hu is also a director and the general manager of QTech
Ever Capital and QT Biological Recognition, each of which is a
subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Fan Fugiang GEZ38) (‘Mr. Fan”), aged 46, has been an
executive Director of the Company since 15 December 2020.
Mr. Fan has been a member of the Risk Management Committee
of the Company since 13 November 2014. Mr. Fan is primarily
responsible for financial management, securities affairs and risk
control functions. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fan held various
positions in Heyuan branch of the Bank of China, a state-owned
bank principally engaged in providing a range of corporate
banking, personal banking, investment banking and other services,
from July 1996 to June 2011 and last served as the general
manager of Heyuan High-tech Zone sub-branch of Bank of China
and vice general manager of the corporate department of Heyuan
branch of Bank of China, where he was primarily responsible for
the grant of the credit facilities, risks management and international
settlement. From May 2013 to April 2014 and July 2011 to April
2014, respectively, Mr. Fan served as the assistant to the chief
financial officer of Shenzhen CK and Heyuan CK, and was primarily
responsible for legal compliance matters and risk control. Mr. Fan
received a professional certificate from Guangdong International
Finance College (B EEE&RIZ ) located in the PRC, in July
1996, majoring in international finance. He received a university
diploma from the Central Party School of Guangdong Provincial
Committee (I EREZER)located in the PRC, in January
2008, majoring in public management, and received a graduation
certificate from South China University of Technology GERGIE T
AKE)in July 2019 with a bachelor’s degree in management. Mr.
Fan was one of the joint company secretaries of the Company
before his resignation on 21 November 2017. Mr. Fan was also the
chief financial officer of the Company since 8 July 2016 before his
resignation on 15 December 2020.

Mr. Fan is also a director of QTech Ever Capital and QT
International, the secretary of board and chief financial officer
of Kunshan QT China, and the director and general manager of
Shenzhen Q Technology Limited CRYIT Bt EFRIEEARA
&) and Huizhou DEPAM Precision Automation Co., Ltd (B
EEERBZEEFEBEAT), each of which is a subsidiary of the
Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ko Ping Keung (& %35&) (‘Mr. Ko”), aged 73, JP, has been
an independent non-executive Director (the “INED”), a member
of each of the audit committee (“Audit Committee”) of the Board,
the remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”) of
the Board, the Nomination Committee and the chairman of the
Risk Management Committee of the Company since 31 May
2017. Mr. Ko holds a Bachelor of Science (Honours) degree from
The University of Hong Kong, and holds a Master of Science
degree and a Doctor of Philosophy degree from the University
of California at Berkeley. He is an Adjunct Professor of Peking
University and Tsinghua University and Emeritus Professor of
Electrical & Electronic Engineering and the former Dean of the
School of Engineering of The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology. Mr. Ko was the Vice Chairman of Electrical
Engineering and Computer Science Department of the University
of California at Berkeley from 1991 to 1993 and a member of Bell
Labs in USA from 1982 to 1984. Mr. Ko is an independent non-
executive director of each of Henderson Investment Limited (Stock
code: 0097), Henderson Land Development Company Limited
(Stock code: 0012) and VTech Holdings Limited (Stock code:
00303) respectively, all of which are Hong Kong listed companies.
Mr. Ko is also an independent director of Primarius Technologies
Co., Ltd. (/BB EFRIDAERAE) (stock code: 688206),
and a director of Beken Corporation ({#@&EMBER (Li8) i
B EFR/ATE) (stock code: 603068.SH) (“Beken”), Smartsens
Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (B45E (£#E) EFRFERKRMD
BPRAR]) (stock code: 688213.SH) (“Smartsens”) and Googol
Technology Co., Ltd. (stock code: 301510), each of which is a
Chinese listed company.
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Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang (#15##) (‘Mr. Chu”), aged 54, has been
an INED, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company since 13 November 2014. From
June 1997 to June 2002, Mr. Chu served at various positions in
Hewlett-Packard Taiwan Ltd. (EERERMHERAE),
is a provider of computing devices, testing and skilled solutions,

which

and last served as a sales expert and was primarily responsible
for overseeing its sales department in respect of the computing
devices. From May 2002 to August 2004, Mr. Chu served as the
investment manager of CDIB Venture Capital Corp. (FHZEERH2E

BIERERMBBRAF),
of China Development Financial Holding Corporation (FZ%ERH
BRI HERAT) (Stock Code: 2883) listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange and was primarily engaged in enterprise

which was a wholly-owned subsidiary

operations, management, and consulting services. Mr. Chu was
primarily responsible for exploring and assessing investment plans
and post-investment management. In January 2014, Mr. Chu
established WK Innovation Ltd. (B:AIFRMDERRE),

venture capital firm, and served as the managing director and
acted as its chairman and chief executive officer, where he was
primarily responsible for its strategic planning. From August 2004
to January 2014, Mr. Chu served as the general manager of WK
MEIZE > previously known asiZ:flAl 2
a venture capital firm. Mr. Chu was primarily

Technology Fund (&
KERNDEBERRE),
responsible for exploring and assessing investment plans and
post-investment management. He was the legal representative
of Litmax Electronics Inc. (S3Z/ERRMDBPRAE > Stock code:
4995) and Raydium Semi-conductor Corporation (B &l
BB R/AE] Stock code: 3592), each of which is listed on
the Taiwan Cretai Securities Market (BEZEHBEBEEE D).
Mr. Chu is a director of Beken (stock code: 603068.SH) and
Smartsens, each of which is a Chinese listed company, and he is
also an independent director of Chicony Electronics Co., Ltd. (a
company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange, stock code: 2385),
Chia Chang Co., Ltd. (ZERHBRAE)(a company listed
on the Taiwan Stock Exchange, stock code: 4942) and Cincon
Ltd. (EEBFRMHBERAE) (@ company listed
on the Taipei Exchange, stock code: 3332).

Electronics Co.,
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Mr. Chu received his bachelor of science degree in electrical
engineering from the National Tsing-Hua University in Taiwan
in July 1993 and his master’s degree in management from the
National Cheng-Kung University in Taiwan in June 1995. Mr. Chu
served as an executive council member of the Taiwan Private
Equity & Venture Capital Association (B/EE|EREFEREAN
) from May 2008 to May 2010.

Ms. Hui Hiu Ching (BFBE&) (‘Ms. Hui”), aged 36, has been an
INED, the chairlady of the Audit Committee and a member of
each of the Remuneration Committee and the Risk Management
Committee of the Company since 25 March 2024. Ms. Hui
has been admitted as a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants of Hong Kong since 2015. Ms. Hui
has extensive experience in the areas of accounting, auditing,
finance and taxation. Ms. Hui is a Certified Public Accountant in
Hong Kong, a Chartered Accountant in England and Wales, and
serves as a school manager of a Hong Kong school sponsoring
body. Prior to becoming an audit partner in Hui Sik Wing & Co.,
Ms. Hui worked as an audit manager at PricewaterhouseCoopers,
where she was involved in a number of audit and assurance
projects advising large corporates including listed companies and
multinational companies. Ms. Hui holds a bachelor's degree in
accounting from the University of Southern California.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEEBZEEFE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE GROUP

Mr. Cai Yun (“Mr. Cai”), aged 40, has been the chief financial
officer of the Company since December 2020 and is primary
responsible for the finance management of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group in April 2017, he served as a cost accountant
in Fulinmun Food Co., Ltd. of the COFCO Corporation from July
2005 to December 2006, where he was primarily responsible
for cost accounting and cost control. From December 2006 to
March 2017, Mr. Cai held various positions in Suzhou Samsung
Electronics Co., Ltd., and last served as a financial manager,
where he was mainly responsible for financial control, analysis and
the preparation of the annual budget. Mr. Cai received a bachelor
degree in management from Yanzhou University (35 A £3),
majoring in accounting. Mr. Cai has been a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since March 2021.

Mr. Cheng Zhihua (22 1E) (“Mr. Cheng”), aged 48, was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company on
21 November 2017. Mr. Cheng graduated from the Jinan University
(BmAE)with a bachelor of accounting degree in 1999 and
further obtained a master of business administration degree from
the Jinan University in 2010. Mr. Cheng is also a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is currently a
senior finance manager of a private company in Hong Kong and
has more than 26 years of experience in handling accounting and
compliance matters at various companies and accounting firms in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Cheng has been a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 2017.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREIRE ZREFE

Mr. Wang Jiangiang (Ef#35&) (“Mr. Wang”), aged 52, is a
director and chief executive officer of Kunshan QT China (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), he is primarily
responsible for operation and business management of Kunshan
QT China. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang served as a
supervisor of the quality assurance department of SAE Magnetics
(REHRBEFH , a computer hardware manufacturer, from
October 1995 to September 1996, where he was primarily
responsible for product quality assurance. From August 1998 to
January 2005, he served as the sales assistant manager of the
Shenzhen office of Samsung Electro-Mechanics (H.K.) Limited
(ZEE® (F8) ARRE),

components, where he was primarily responsible for the sales of

a manufacturer of electronic

the electronic components. From February 2005 to April 2014 and
December 2005 to April 2014, respectively, Mr. Wang served as
the chief financial officer of Shenzhen CK and Heyuan CK where
he was primarily responsible for audit management and budgeting.
Mr. Wang had been a Director of the Company since 5 May 2014
and was re-designated as an executive Director of the Company
since 13 November 2014 until his resignation on 15 December
2020. Mr. Wang was the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
from 8 July 2016 until his resignation on 15 December 2020. Mr.
Wang received his bachelor’s degree in engineering, majoring in
fluid machinery and engineering, from the Sichuan University of
Science and Technology (F)11 T2 8 in June 1995. Mr. Wang
is the step-brother of Mr. He.

Mr. Wang is also a director of Kunshan QT Hong Kong, QT
International, Singapore QT and India QT, and a director and the
general manager of QTech Optoelectronic, QT Smart-Forward and
Q Technology North America Limited, each of which is a subsidiary
of the Company.
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The Directors of the Company are pleased to present the annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design, research and
development, manufacture and sales of mid-to-high end camera
modules and fingerprint recognition modules.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five accounting years are set out on pages 6 to 9 of this
annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 179 to 181.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 10 to 20 of this
report. Description of possible risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing can be found in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 10 to 20. Also, the financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group and particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the Year
are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 21 to 34 of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the Group Five-year Financial Summary
on pages 6 to 9 of this annual report. In addition, discussions
on the Group’s environmental policies, relationships with its
stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the Group are contained in the
Chairman’s Statement, the Management Discussion and Analysis,
the Corporate Governance Report, the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report and this Directors’ Report on pages 10
to 20, pages 21 to 34, pages 78 to 110, pages 111 to 168, and
pages 43 to 77 respectively. These discussions form part of this
Directors’ Report.
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Directors’ Report
EFERE

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are aware,
there was no breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
businesses and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet
its immediate and long-term business goals. During the Year, there
were no material and significant dispute between the Group and its
employees, customers and suppliers.

FINAL DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

The Board recommended not to declare any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder has waived
or agreed to waive any dividends for the Year.

For determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend the annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) to be held on 24 May 2024, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from 21 May
2024 to 24 May 2024 (both days inclusive). All transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 20 May 2024.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the trading between the Group and its major
customers and suppliers were as follows:
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The Group’s purchases from its largest supplier accounted for
approximately 21.7% (2022: approximately 18.0%) of the total
purchases of the Group whilst the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 56.3% (2022: approximately 56.9%)
of the total purchases of the Group.

The Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
30.5% (2022: approximately 30.3%) of the total turnover of the
Group whilst the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 82.1% (2022: approximately 76.7%) of the total
turnover of the Group.

During the Year, none of the Directors, their respective close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any shareholders of
the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any beneficial
interest in any of the five largest suppliers or customers of the
Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2023
are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements of
the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company did not issue any
shares or debentures during the Year.
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Directors’ Report
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution to the
shareholders of the Company subject to the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles of Association”). As at 31 December
2023, the aggregate amount of the Company’s reserves (including
share premium and retained profits) available for distribution
to the equity holders of the Company was approximately
RMB1,446,752,000 (2022: approximately RMB1,452,465,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Ningning (Chairman) N
Mr. Hu Sanmu
Mr. Fan Fugiang ™

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang M?
Mr. Ko Ping Keung NARM
Mr. Ng Sui Yin AfM
(resigned from his position as an INED on 25 March 2024)

Ms. Hui Hiu Ching A™
(appointed as an INED on 25 March 2024)

& member of audit committee of the Company
. member of remuneration committee of the Company
4 member of risk management committee of the Company

N member of nomination committee of the Company
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In accordance with article 83(3) of the Articles of Association,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of the Company after
his appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Ms. Hui Hiu Ching (appointed as an INED on
25 March 2024) will hold office until the AGM and, being eligible,
will offer herself for re-election at the AGM.

In accordance with articles 84(1) and 84(2) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Fan Fugiang and Mr. Hu Sanmu will retire by
rotation and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the AGM.

During the Year, other than Mr. Ng Sui Yin’s resignation as an INED
as he would like to devote more time to his personal affairs (please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 25 March 2024
for details), no Director resigned from his/her office or refused to
stand for re-election to his/her office due to reasons relating to the
affairs of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 35 to 42 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our Directors has entered a service contract with our
Company since their appointments, among which, Mr. He
Ningning, Mr. Hu Sanmu, Mr. Fan Fugiang, Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang
and Mr. Ko Ping Keung has renewed their service contracts with
the Company for a term of three years on 1 June 2023, while Ms.
Hui Hiu Ching has entered a service contract with the Company for
a term of three years on 25 March 2024.
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Directors’ Report
EFERE

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the AGM
has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions
and Continuing Connected Transactions” below, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company, its
holding company, its controlling shareholder or subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares (in
relation to the positions held pursuant to equity derivatives) and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance,
Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded
in the register required to be maintained by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO; or otherwise to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules, were as
follows:
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(@)

Interest in the Shares of the Company

Directors’ Report
EFERS

(a) MAERERRIGZEm

Approximate

Number of percentage
Name of Directors/ Capacity/ issued of the issued
Chief Executive Nature of interest Shares held Position held Shares
(Note 2)
BEx B PRz B 817 HEFBERT
THABYS Bin/ HatE kRr#E H=E R BE AL
(Hzt2)
He Ningning Interest of a controlled 752,491,000 Long position 63.53%
AEE corporation (Note 1) A&
RELEER (Mizt1)
He Ningning Beneficial owner 1,180,000 Long position 0.10%
AEE BaEBA 59
Hu Sanmu Beneficial owner 2,995,000 Long position 0.25%
=K BaEBA 59
Ko Ping Keung Beneficial owner 200,000 Long position 0.02%
SEF: BaEBA 59
Fan Fugiang Beneficial owner 2,635,000 Long position 0.22%
EER BaEBA 59
Notes: Kiaz .
1. Mr. He Ningning, an executive Director and the chairman of 1. BESEHTESHRIEMNEREL

the Board, is the sole beneficial owner of QT Investment which

owned approximately 63.53% of the issued Shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2023. Under Chapter XV of the
SFO, Mr. He Ningning is deemed to be interested in the Shares

held by QT Investment.

2. The percentage represents the number of Shares divided by 2.

1,184,538,475 issued Shares of the Company in total as at

31 December 2023.
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(b) Interest in Associated Corporation

(b) HEABEHERE 2

Approximate
percentage of

the issued

Number shares in

Name of Directors/ Name of associated Capacity/Nature of issued associated

Chief Executive corporation of interest shares held corporation

WEMEECEE

BEx B Fifsz B &137 B#1TRkG

THABHS il R Bip/ #mtE R &E Bt

He Ningning QT Investment Beneficial owner 2 100%
AIZEE 7€ BEREAA

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of PR EXFIBEEIN R _ T _=ZF+_

the Directors nor chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any shares, and underlying shares (in respect
of positions pursuant to equity derivatives) or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange or as recorded in the register
referred to in the SFO or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions”, no
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Shareholder had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2023, so far as the Directors were aware
of, the following persons (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares (in respect of positions pursuant to
equity derivatives) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO as follows:
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Approximate
percentage of

total issued
Shares in the
Capacity/ Number of Company
Name of Shareholder Long/short position Nature of interest Shares held (Note 1)
ESEE ¥ VNG
ERITROEH
R R %18 e/ %R B/ #miEn FRiERIPEE Bt W)
QT Investment Long position Beneficial owner 752,491,000 63.53%
IEE7€ 5] BmEAA (Note 2)
(Hiz#2)

Note: Kz .

1. The percentage represents the number of underlying Shares divided
by 1,184,538,475 issued Shares of the Company in total as at
31 December 2023.

2. Mr. He Ningning is directly interested in the entire interest of QT
Investment, which owned approximately 63.53% of the issued Shares
of the Company in total as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company has not been notified of
any other person (other than a Director or a chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or a short position in the Shares
and underlying Shares (in respect of positions pursuant to equity
derivatives) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December
2028.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the schemes disclosed in the section headed “Share
Option Schemes” below, at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provide that each Director, secretary
or other officer of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which any of them may incur or sustain in or about the execution
of the duties in their respective offices. The Company has taken
out and maintained appropriate insurance to cover potential legal
actions against its Directors.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company has not come into
any permitted indemnity provision with the Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group or
existed during the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group had made charitable donations of
approximately RMB5,000.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING YEAR

Saved as disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 21 to 34 and above, there were no other important
events affecting the Group that had occurred after 31 December
2023 and up to the date of this report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five individuals
with the highest emoluments for the Year are set out in notes 7
and 8 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

There were no important changes in the information of Directors
required to be disclosed in this report pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 13 November 2014, the Company adopted the pre-IPO share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and a post-
IPO share option scheme (the "Share Option Scheme") and
granted a total of 59,935,000 share options under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme to the eligible participants with an aim to
reward their contribution to the Group made or possibly made.
None of the share options was exercised or lapsed under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme during the Year. As at the date of this
report, none of share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme remained outstanding, and the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme had lapsed accordingly.
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The Company also granted an aggregate of 89,561,600
share options under the Share Option Scheme to the eligible
participants: () on 26 October 2016, the Company granted an
aggregate of 39,425,000 share options (the “Share Options 2016”)
to 165 eligible participants; (i) on 9 June 2017, the Company
granted a total of 8,083,000 share options (the “Share Options
2017”) to 48 eligible participants; (i) on 7 December 2018, the
Company granted a total of 12,720,000 share options (the "Share
Options 2018") to 883 eligible participants; (iv) on 21 June 2019,
the Company granted a total of 11,454,000 share options (the
"Share Options 2019") to 68 eligible participants; and (v) on 16
September 2020, the Company granted a total of 17,879,600
share options (the "Share Options 2020") to 119 eligible
participants. During the Year, none of the Share Options 2016,
Share Options 2017 and Share Options 2018 were outstanding.
During the Year, details of the outstanding share options under the
Share Option Scheme are set out below:

Share Option Scheme
1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme:

The Share Option Scheme is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions that the Eligible Participants
(as defined in paragraph 2 below) had or may have made
to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will provide the
Eligible Participants with an opportunity to have a personal
stake in the Company with a view to achieving the following
objectives:

(i)  motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going
business relationship with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term
growth of the Group.
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Participants of the Share Option Scheme:

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
the following persons (collectively the “Eligible Participants”)
to subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board
may determine:

() any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers,
distributors and such other persons who in the sole
opinion of the Board will contribute or have contributed
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme and percentage of the total number of issued
Shares as at the date of this report:

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
19 May 2017, an ordinary resolution was passed by the
Shareholders to approve the refreshment of the maximum
number of Shares that may be issued upon the exercise
of all options which may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company to not exceeding 10% of the total number of
Shares in issue of the Company as at the date of approval
by the Shareholders of the refreshed limit. On the date of
approving such ordinary resolution (i.e. on 19 May 2017),
the total number of Shares in issue of the Company was
1,095,597,000 shares, therefore, the maximum number of
Shares relating to the options that may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company were refreshed to 109,559,700
Shares, representing approximately 9.25% of total number of
1,184,538,475 Shares in issue on the date of this report (i.e.
on 21 April 2024). As at 1 January 2023 and 31 December
20283, the number of options available for grant by the
Company under the scheme mandate was 78,017,130 and
78,350,130 respectively.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Share
Option Scheme:

The maximum number of Shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company (including exercised and outstanding
options) to each Eligible Participant in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares
in issue of the Company as at the date of grant. Any further
grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject
to the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting and/
or other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules
from time to time with such Eligible Participant and his/her
close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) (or his/her
associates if the Eligible Participant is a connected person (as
defined in the Listing Rules)) abstaining from voting.

The period within which the options must be exercised under
Share Option Scheme to subscribe for Shares:

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time in the period after the
date upon which the option is deemed to be granted and
accepted and prior to the expiry of 10 years from that date
subject to the provisions for early termination set out in the
Share Option Scheme.

The minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised:

There is no minimum period for which an option granted must
be held before it can be exercised unless otherwise imposed
by the Directors.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls must or
may be made, or loans for such purposes must be repaid:

Options granted must be taken up by eligible participants
within 21 days of the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1.
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10.

11.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Board but shall not
be less than the highest of: (i) the official closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant, which must be a day on which
the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities; (i) the average of the official closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of a Share.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme:

The Share Option Scheme remains in force for a period of
10 years commenced from 13 November 2014.

The total number of the Share Options 2019:

On 21 June 2019,
11,454,000 share options (representing approximately 1.0%
of the total number of 1,141,905,400 issued Shares on the
date of grant of the relevant share options (i.e. on 21 June

the Company granted a total of

2019) and approximately 0.97% of the total number of
1,184,538,475 issued Shares as at the date of this report
(i,e. on 21 April 2024)) under the Share Option Scheme to
68 Eligible Participants. During the Year, none of the Share
Options 2019 were exercised. A total of 24,000 share options
were lapsed as a result of the resignation of 1 staff during the
Year; a total of 1,010,100 Share Options 2019 were cancelled
during the Year due to performance conditions related to
certain revenue growth target were not met during the year
2022. As at 31 December 2023, none of the Share Options
2019 were outstanding.

The period within which the Share Options 2019 must be
exercised to subscribe for Shares and the performance
targets:

10.

11.
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The options granted are exercisable within the period as

notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance with

the following manner:

(i)

(i)

upon, among others, the revenue of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2020 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 15% from the
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019, up to
40% of the share options granted (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2021 to 31 December 2021 (both
days inclusive), and the performance evaluation result of
the grantee in 2020 shall not be Grade D or below;

upon, among others, the revenue for the year ending
31 December 2021 recording compound annual growth
rate of not less than 15% from the revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2019, up to 30% of the share
options granted (rounded down to the nearest whole
number) shall be exercisable during the period from
1 April 2022 to 31 December 2022 (both days inclusive),
and the performance evaluation result of the grantee in
2021 shall not be Grade D or below; and

upon, among others, the revenue for the year ending
31 December 2022 recording compound annual growth
rate of not less than 15% from the Revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2019, up to 30% of the share
options granted (rounded down to the nearest whole
number) shall be exercisable during the period from
1 April 2023 to 31 December 2023 (both days inclusive),
and the performance evaluation result of the grantee in
2022 shall not be Grade D or below.
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12.

13.

Basis of determining the exercise price of the Share Options
2019:

The exercise price per Share in respect of the Share Options
2019 is HK$6.02 per Share.

The total number of the Share Options 2020:

On 16 September 2020, the Company granted a total of
17,879,600 share options (representing approximately
1.53% of the total number of 1,172,250,680 issued Shares
on the date of grant of the relevant share options (i.e. on
16 September 2020) and approximately 1.51% of the total
number of 1,184,538,475 issued Shares as at the date of
this report (i.e. on 21 April 2024)) under the Share Option
Scheme to 119 Eligible Participants (including two executive
Directors, Mr. Hu Sanmu and Mr. Fan Fugiang). Among the
share options granted above, a total of 12,619,600 share
options (the “Share Options Batch One”) were granted to 83
Eligible Participants, and a total of 5,260,000 share options
(the “Share Options Batch Two”) were granted to 36 Eligible
Participants. During the Year, none of the Share Options
2020 were exercised. A total of 309,000 share options were
lapsed as a result of the resignations of 6 staff during the
Year. A total of 4,149,720 Share Options 2020 were cancelled
during the Year due to performance conditions related to
certain revenue growth targets of 2022 were not met. As at
31 December 2023, a total of 805,800 Share Options 2020
were outstanding. Such 805,800 Share Options 2020 was
cancelled in the year 2024 due to performance conditions
related to certain revenue growth target were not met during
the Year.

12.

13.
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14. The period within which the Share Options 2020 must be
exercised to subscribe for Shares and the performance

targets:

The options granted are exercisable within the period as
notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance with
the following manner:

(1) Share Options One:

(i)

upon, among others, the Revenue of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2020 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less than 25%
from the Revenue for the year ended 31 December
2019, up to 40% of the share options granted shall
be exercisable during the period from 1 April 2021
to 31 December 2021 (both days inclusive);

upon, among others, the Revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2021 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 25% from the
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019,
up to 30% of the share options granted shall be
exercisable during the period from 1 April 2022 to
31 December 2022 (both days inclusive); and
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(i) upon, among others, the Revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2022 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 25% from the
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019,
up to 30% of the share options granted shall be
exercisable during the period from 1 April 2023 to
31 December 2023 (both days inclusive).

In addition, the performance evaluation result of the
grantee in the fiscal year prior to each exercise period
shall not be Grade D, otherwise the Company may
cancel all the share options exercisable during the
exercise period. The Company may partially cancel the
share options exercisable during the exercise period
if the grantee’'s performance evaluation result in the
previous fiscal year is Grade B or C.

Share Options Two:

()  upon, among others, the Revenue of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less than 20%
from the Revenue for the year ended 31 December
2020, up to 40% of the share options granted shall
be exercisable during the period from 1 April 2022
to 31 December 2022 (both days inclusive);
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(i

(i)

upon, among others, the Revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2022 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 20% from the
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020,
up to 30% of the share options granted shall be
exercisable during the period from 1 April 2023 to
31 December 2023 (both days inclusive); and

upon, among others, the Revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2023 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 20% from the
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020,
up to 30% of the share options granted shall be
exercisable during the period from 1 April 2024 to
31 December 2024 (both days inclusive).

In addition, the performance evaluation result of the

grantee in the fiscal year prior to each exercise period

shall not be Grade D, otherwise the Company may

cancel all the share options exercisable during the

exercise period. The Company may partially cancel the

share options exercisable during the exercise period

if the grantee’'s performance evaluation result in the

previous fiscal year is Grade B or C.

15. Basis of determining the exercise price of the Share Options

2020:

The exercise price per Share in respect of the Share Options

2020 is HK$9.22 per Share.
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Details of changes during the Year in share options granted under

the Share Option Scheme are as follows:
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Notes:

1. 1,010,100 Share Options 2019 granted to the employees were
cancelled in the Year due to performance conditions related to certain
revenue growth targets of the year 2022 were not met.

2. A total of 189,000, 189,000 and 2,800,920 Share Options Batch
One of the Share Options 2020 granted to Mr. Hu, Mr. Fan and
the employees were cancelled in the Year respectively due to
performance conditions related to certain revenue growth targets of
the year 2022 were not met.

3. A total of 970,800 Share Options Batch Two of the Share Options
2020 granted to the employees were cancelled in the Year due to
performance conditions related to certain revenue growth targets of
the year 2022 were not met.

4. A total of 805,800 Share Options Batch Two of the Share Options
2020 were cancelled in the year 2024 due to performance conditions
related to certain revenue growth target were not met during the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, saved as disclosed in the section Management
Discussion and Analysis, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee in accordance
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules. The annual results of the
Group for the Year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee
which comprises all the three INEDs, namely Mr. Ng Sui Yin
(resigned on 25 March 2024 and was succeeded by Ms. Hui Hiu
Ching), being the chairman, Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Chu Chia-
Hsiang.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, certain related party transactions as set out in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements also constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
for the Company under the Listing Rules, and are required to be
disclosed in this report in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Save as disclosed in this report, none of the related
party transactions constitutes a continuing connected transaction
or connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules. The
disclosure of those certain related party transactions has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group has certain connected transactions
which were exempted from the circular and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements, but subject to the reporting,
annual review and announcement requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The details of those transactions are set
out below:
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Property lease agreements entered into by QT Biological
Recognition, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Van Telecom Limited (“Van Telecom PRC”)

QT Biological Recognition, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into a property lease agreement (the
“Van Telecom PRC Property Lease Agreement”) with Van Telecom
PRC on 8 November 2022, pursuant to which, Van Telecom PRC
agreed to lease certain factory buildings and worker’s dormitories
situated on No. 1999 Hanpu Road and Building No. 3, 1999
Hanpu Road, Kunshan, Jiangsu Province, the PRC (FHEST &k &
B LI T R BR 19995 Ky B A B 19995% 2 35 =) to QT Biological
Recognition for a term from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2025. On 24 April 2023, QT Biological Recognition entered into
a supplemental agreement with Van Telecom PRC to revise the
rent and the area of the leased property under the aforesaid lease
agreement. Please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 8 November 2022 and 24 April 2023 for details.

The property leased by Van Telecom PRC to QT Biological
Recognition is its own property, the rent under the Van Telecom
PRC Property Lease Agreement and the supplemental agreement
paid by QT Biological Recognition to Van Telecom PRC was
determined with reference to the market rent for similar premises
in the vicinity and on normal commercial terms, and such prices
offered by Van Telecom PRC shall be no less favourable to QT
Biological Recognition than is available from independent third
parties.

Van Telecom PRC is wholly-owned by CK Telecom, which is in
turn wholly-owned by Mr. He. As such, Van Telecom PRC is a
connected person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing
Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the total amounts of rent
and management fees in aggregate under the transactions of the
Van Telecom PRC Property Lease Agreement was approximately
RMB6,012,000 and the maximum amounts of rent and
management fees in aggregate for the Year was RMB6,594,800.
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Property lease agreements entered into by Shenzhen Q
Technology Limited (“Shenzhen QT”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and Shenzhen Xike
Dexin Telecom Equipment Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen CK”)

On 31 May 2021,
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a lease agreement with

Shenzhen QT, an indirect wholly-owned

Shenzhen CK (the “Shenzhen CK Property Lease Agreement”),
pursuant to which Shenzhen CK will lease an office building
located at Area D, Room 902, Building 4C Software Industrial
Base, Keyuan Road, Hi-tech Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen
City, Guangdong Province (the “Leased Property”) to Shenzhen
QT for a term commencing from 1 June 2021 and ending on
31 December 2023. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 31 May 2021 for details.

The terms of the Shenzhen CK Property Lease Agreement were
negotiated and agreed between the parties on an arm’s length
basis and were entered into on normal commercial terms. The
monthly rent was agreed between the parties after considering,
among other things, the total gross floor area of the Leased
Property and the specific cost per sg.m., and considering the
prevailing market rent of other properties in the vicinity which is

comparable to the Leased Property.

Shenzhen CK is owned as to 90% by Mr. He. Accordingly,
Shenzhen CK is a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the total amounts of
rent in aggregate under the transactions of the Shenzhen CK
Property Lease Agreement was approximately RMB408,000 and
the maximum amounts of rent in aggregate for the Year was
RMB408,240.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group has certain continuing connected
transactions which were exempted from the circular and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements, but subject
to the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The details of those
transactions are set out below:

Supply agreement in respect of the supply of camera modules
and fingerprint recognition modules to CK Telecom Limited
(“Heyuan CK”)

On 31 May 2021,
a supply agreement (the “Heyuan CK Supply Agreement”),

the Company and Heyuan CK entered into

pursuant to which the Group agreed to supply the camera
modules and fingerprint recognition modules to Heyuan CK
for the production of its products for the three years from
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. On 18 December 2023,
the Company and Heyuan CK entered into a supply agreement
(the “Renewed Heyuan CK Supply Agreement”) to renew the
aforesaid transactions for a term of three years commencing from
1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026. For details, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 31 May 2021 and
18 December 2023.

The price for the camera modules and fingerprint recognition
modules supplied by the Group under the Heyuan CK Supply
Agreement and the Renewed Heyuan CK Supply Agreement was
determined by reference to the raw material costs and production
costs to be incurred by the Group and the profit margin, which
is expected to be comparable with the level of profits derived
from the Group’s sales to independent customers, subject to
adjustments arising from the expected quantity, quality, delivery
schedule, specifications and market competition.

Heyuan CK is wholly owned by CK Telecom which is in turn wholly
owned by Mr. He. As such, Heyuan CK is a connected person of
the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the total transaction
amount under the Heyuan CK Supply Agreement was
approximately RMB210,000 and the annual cap amount for the
Year was RMB20,000,000.

Purchase agreement in respect of the purchase of open-
loop motors, closed-loop motors, bi-directional voice coil
motors, motors for periscope camera modules, optical image
stabilisation motors, variable aperture motors and other
electronic components (collectively, the “VCM Components”)
from Heyuan Youhua Micro Electronic Technology Company
Limited (“Heyuan Youhua”)

On 31 May 2021, the Company and Heyuan Youhua entered into a
purchase agreement (the “Heyuan Youhua Purchase Agreement”),
pursuant to which Heyuan Youhua agreed to supply the voice coll
motors, linear motors and bi-directional voice coil motors to the
Group for the three years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2023. On 18 December 2023, the Company and Heyuan Youhua
entered into a purchase agreement (the “Renewed Heyuan Youhua
Purchase Agreement”) to renew the aforesaid transactions and
expand the produce categories of the proposed purchase for
a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2026. For details, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 31 May 2021 and 18 December 2023.

The price for the VCM Components supplied by Heyuan
Youhua under the Heyuan Youhua Purchase Agreement and the
Renewed Heyuan Youhua Purchase Agreement was determined
with reference to the price at which comparable types of VCM
Components are sold to the Group by independent suppliers
under normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of business,
and such price shall be no less favourable to the Group than
that were available from independent suppliers. In considering
whether to purchase from Heyuan Youhua, the Group sought
quotations from at least two independent third parties offering the
same or comparable products. The Group purchased the VCM
Components from Heyuan Youhua if the price and quality of the
products offered was comparable to or more favourable to the
Group than those offered by such independent third parties for the
same or comparable products.
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Heyuan Youhua is owned as to (i) approximately 0.25% and
approximately 0.99% by Mr. Hu Sanmu and Mr. Fan Fugiang
respectively, both are executive Directors of the Company; (i)
approximately 66.11% by Westalgo (Great China) Inc. ("Westalgo
Great China"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of QT Investment, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, which in turn is wholly-
owned by Mr. He; and (i) approximately 18.01% by Shenzhen
Handi Venture Capital Co. Ltd. CRIIT EBAIZE KL EREAT)
(“Shenzhen Handi”), the wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenzhen CK,
which in turn is 90% owned by Mr. He. As such, Heyuan Youhua is
a connected person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing
Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the total transaction
amount under the Heyuan Youhua Purchase Agreement was
approximately RMB163,864,000 and the annual cap amount for
the Year was RMB250,000,000.

Purchase agreement in respect of the purchase of flexible
printed circuit board and rigid-flex printed circuit boards (the
“PCBs”) from C-Flex Electronic (Huangshi) Ltd. (“Huangshi
C-Flex Electronic”)

On 31 May 2021, the Company and Huangshi C-Flex Electronic
entered into a purchase agreement (the “Huangshi C-Flex
Electronic Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which Huangshi
C-Flex Electronic agreed to supply the PCBs to the Group for the
three years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. On 18
December 2023, the Company and Huangshi C-Flex Electronic
entered into a purchase agreement (the “Renewed Huangshi
C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement”) to renew the aforesaid
transactions for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2024 to 31 December 2026. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 31 May 2021 and 18
December 2023.
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The price for the PCBs supplied by Huangshi C-Flex Electronic
under the Huangshi C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement was
determined with reference to the price at which comparable types
of PCBs are sold to the Group by independent suppliers under
normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of business, and
such price shall be no less favourable to the Group than was
available from independent suppliers. In considering whether to
purchase from Huangshi C-Flex Electronic, the Group sought
quotations from at least two independent third parties offering the
same or comparable products. The Group purchased the PCBs
from Huangshi C-Flex Electronic if the price and quality of the
products offered was comparable to or more favourable to the
Group than those offered by such independent third parties for the
same or comparable products.

Huangshi C-Flex Electronic is wholly owned by Shenzhen Handi, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenzhen CK which is in turn owned
as to 90.0% by Mr. He. As such, Huangshi C-Flex Electronic is a
connected person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing
Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the total transaction
amount under the Huangshi C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement
was approximately RMB136,673,000 and the annual cap amount
for the Year was RMB250,000,000.

Purchase agreement in respect of the purchase of electronic
components such as connectors and holders (“connectors
and holders”) from Kunshan KEIRAKU Precision Co.,Ltd
(“Kunshan KEIRAKU”)

On 31 May 2021, the Company and Kunshan KEIRAKU entered
into the a purchase agreement (the “Kunshan KEIRAKU Purchase
Agreement”), pursuant to which, Kunshan KEIRAKU agreed to
supply electronic components such as connectors and holders
to the Group, for a term commencing from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2023. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 31 May 2021.
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The price for the electronic components such as connectors
and holders supplied by Kunshan KEIRAKU under the Kunshan
KEIRAKU Purchase Agreement was determined with reference to
the price at which comparable types of electronic components
such as connectors and holders are sold to the Group by
independent suppliers under normal commercial terms in the
ordinary course of business, and such price shall be no less
favourable to the Group than was available from independent
suppliers. In considering whether to purchase from Kunshan
KEIRAKU, the Group sought quotations from at least two
independent third parties offering the same or comparable
products. The Group purchased the electronic components such
as connectors and holders from Kunshan KEIRAKU if the price
and quality of the products offered was comparable to or more
favourable to the Group than those offered by such independent
third parties for the same or comparable products.

Kunshan KEIRAKU is owned as to 97% by Kunshan KEIRAKU
(Hong Kong) Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by QT
Investment, the Controlling Shareholder of the Company (as
defined in the Listing rules). Accordingly, Kunshan KEIRAKU is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the total transaction
amount under the Kunshan KEIRAKU Purchase Agreement was
approximately RMBO and the annual cap amount for the Year was
RMB5,000,000.

Supply agreement in respect of the supply of semi-automated
and automated equipment and its software, algorithms and
after-sales services for its own production and operations
(collectively, the “Automated Equipment and Software”)

from Xiamen Zhonghui Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (“Xiamen
Zhonghui”)

On 18 December 2023, the Company and Xiamen Zhonghui
entered into the a supply agreement (the “Xiamen Zhonghui Supply
Agreement”), pursuant to which, the Group agreed to supply
Automated Equipment and Software to the Xiamen Zhonghui, for
a term commencing from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026.
For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 18 December 2023.
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The price of the Automation Equipment and Software to be
supplied by the Group to Xiamen Zhonghui will be determined
with reference to the Group’s raw material costs, production
costs, development costs as well as the profit margin for the
design, development and manufacturing of such Automated
Equipment and Software, while the profit margin is expected to
be comparable to the level of profit derived from the sales to
the customers, who are Independent Third Parties, subject to
adjustments based on the expected quantity, quality, delivery
schedule, specifications and market competition. It is envisaged
that from time to time and as required, the Group will provide
quotation and estimated delivery time of the specific products to
Xiamen Zhonghui according to factors such as the specification
and delivery schedule of the Automation Equipment and Software
required to be purchased by Xiamen Zhonghui by comprehensively
considering the factors such as cost of raw materials, production
time, development time, the comparable price of the same or
similar products selling to two or more Independent Third Parties,
the expected gross profit margin of the same or similar products
selling to Independent Third Parties, settlement period, scale of
order of specific products. After acceptance of the quotation
and estimated delivery time, Xiamen Zhonghui will place order(s)
to the Group or sign specific contract(s) for the purchase of the
Automated Equipment and Software, and then the Group will fulfill
the order and the contract. For orders with no comparable price
from an Independent Third Party, the Group will provide quotations
by considering the average gross profit margin of the Group
comprehensively.

Xiamen Zhonghui is owned as to 65.50% by CK Telecom
(Hangzhou) Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by CK Telecom
Asia Pacific Ltd., and CK Telecom Asia Pacific Ltd.
owned by Mr. He. Accordingly, Xiamen Zhonghui is a connected

is wholly-

person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The term of Xiamen Zhonghui Supply Agreement will commence
from 1 January 2024.
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The INEDs have reviewed the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions of the Company and confirmed that such transactions
have been:

()  entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(i) entered into on normal and fair commercial or better terms;

(iii) entered into in accordance with the agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable for the interests of
Shareholders as a whole; and

(iv) the total annual transaction amount of the Year has not
exceeded the annual cap.

The independent auditor of the Company was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and by reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The independent auditor
of the Company has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in this section in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed upon
procedures in respect of the continuing connected transactions of
the Group. The auditor has reported their factual findings on these
procedures to the Board that:

(@) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Board;
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nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the transactions involving the provision
of goods or services by the Group were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; and

with respect to the aggregate transaction amount of each
of the continuing connected transactions set out as above,
nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the relevant annual caps.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles

of Association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands,

which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a

pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the

Company, and so far as the Directors are aware of, the Company

has maintained a sufficient public float as required by the Listing

Rules during the Year and up to the latest practicable date prior to

the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ COMPETING BUSINESS

A deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) was
entered into by Mr. He Ningning, the Chairman and an executive
Director and QT Investment (a company wholly-owned by Mr. He
Ningning) (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) in favour of
the Company on 13 November 2014, pursuant to which each of
the Controlling Shareholders will not, and will procure its/his close
associates (other than members of the Group) not to directly or
indirectly be involved in or undertake any business (other than
the Group’s business) that directly or indirectly competes, or may
compete, with the Group’s business or undertaking, or hold shares
or interest in any companies or business that compete directly or
indirectly with the business engaged by the Group from time to
time except where the Controlling Shareholders hold less than 5%
of the total issued share capital of any company (whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange or any other stock exchange) which
is engaged in any business that is or may be in competition with
any business engaged by any member of the Group and they do
not control 10% or more of the composition of the Board.

The Company has received the annual written confirmation from
the Controlling Shareholders in respect of the compliance and
enforcement of the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition by the
Controlling Shareholders during the Year.

The INEDs have reviewed the Deed of Non-Competition entered
into by the Controlling Shareholders as to whether the Controlling
Shareholders had abided by the Deed of Non-Competition. The
INEDs confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders had not been in
breach of the Deed of Non-Competition during the Year.

Apart from the business of the Group, none of the Directors or
their respective associates had engaged in or had any interest in
any business which competed or might compete with the business
of the Group during the Year.
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PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE BEZ2EERBTEER
RECOMMENDED

If the Shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation UWIAAG R EREETETES -FA L

implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the & \BRIEHTHEAA T ERBERMD 2 E [
exercise of any rights in relation to the Shares of the Company, #EF| 2 TR &> EE R L RHEHE A
they are advised to consult a professional adviser. T o

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS RV 2 ¢

Upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board EEZEE S IHE BT REH
has resolved that a resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming B > REEREEFAS FEHERE
AGM to re-appoint KPMG, Certified Public Accountants as the EE & sHEMETRPT (XS EHEN) BN

independent auditor of the Company. B Z BRI HEMIEE REE -
On behalf of the Board REREFE

He Ningning FE

Chairman MEE

Hong Kong, 21 April 2024 5B TEWNFMPAZ+—H
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Corporate Governance Report
EXEANRS

The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to
the Company’s Shareholders and protecting and enhancing
Shareholders’ value through good corporate governance.

The Directors of the Company recognise the importance of
incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the
management structures and internal control procedures of the
Group so as to achieve effective accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all applicable code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as
contained in Part 2 of Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules during the
Year.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct governing the securities transactions by the Directors.
Following a specific enquiry made by the Company on the
Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising
the management of the business affairs and the overall
performance of the Group. The Board sets the Group’s values
and standards and ensures that the requisite financial and
human resources support are in place for the Group to achieve
its objectives. The functions performed by the Board include but
are not limited to formulating the Group’s business plans and
strategies, deciding all significant financial (including major capital
expenditure) and operational issues, developing, monitoring
and reviewing the Group’s corporate governance and all other
functions reserved to the Board under the Company’s articles
of association (the “Articles of Association”). The Board has
established Board committees and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference which are published on the respective websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Board may from
time to time delegate certain functions to management of the
Group if and when considered appropriate. The management
is mainly responsible for the execution of the business plans,
strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to it
from time to time.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and are
entitled to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense.

Composition

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should
include a balanced composition of executive and independent
non-executive Directors so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgment.
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During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Board
comprises the following six Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Ningning (Chairman)
Mr. Hu Sanmu (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fan Fugiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ko Ping Keung
Mr. Ng Sui Yin
(resigned from his position as an INED on 25 March 2024)

Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang
Ms. Hui Hiu Ching
(appointed as an INED on 25 March 2024)

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report. Ms. Hui Hiu Ching was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 25 March
2024 and has obtained the legal advice referred to in Rule 3.09D
and she confirms she understood her obligations as a director of
the Company.

Mr. Fan Fugiang, an executive director of the Company, was
a director of Hangzhou Raying Technology Limited (“Raying
Technology”), a private company which was owned as to
approximately 18.52% by Shenzhen Handi, which was indirectly
owned as to 90% by Mr. He Ningning, but Mr. Fan does not
participate in the daily operation and management of Raying
Technology. Save as aforesaid, there was no financial, business,
family or other material relationship among the Directors.

The INEDs have brought a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experience and independent judgment to the Board.
Through active participation in the Board meetings and serving on
various Board committees, all INEDs will continue to make various
contributions to the Company.

Throughout the Year, the Company had appointed three INEDs,
representing half of the Board members, and has met the
requirement of the Listing Rules that the number of INEDs must
represent at least one-third of the Board members, and met
the requirement that at least one of the INEDs has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company has received an annual confirmation in writing from
each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
As at the date of this report (i.e., 21 April 2024), QT Investment,
the controlling shareholder of the Company, indirectly held
2,938,768 shares in issue of Smartsens (stock code: 688213.
SH), a listed company, representing approximately 0.73% of the
total issued shares of Smartsens as at the date of this report
through Q Technology Investment (Hong Kong) Limited, its indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary. Smartsens is a company engaging in
development of semiconductor solutions, which was founded
on 13 April 2017 and registered in PRC, and has listed on the
Science and Technology Innovation Board of the Shanghai Stock
Exchange on 20 May 2022. Mr. Ko Ping Keung, an INED of the
Company, owns approximately 5.53% equity interests in the
shares of Smartsens through a company under his management;
a venture capital company, where an INED, Mr. Chu Chia-
Hsiang, currently works as a director, held directly and indirectly
approximately 0.57% of shares of Smartsens. Mr. Ko Ping Keung
and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang also serve as directors of Smartsens,
but do not participate in daily operations of Smartsens. As at
the date of this report, the Group has no significant business
dealings or major commercial transactions with Smartsens. The
Company considers that: (i) the controlling shareholder of the
Company holds a very low proportion of shares in Smartsens and
does not have any significant business dealings with Smartsens;
(i) the aggregate of shareholdings in Smartsens held by Mr. Ko
Ping Keung and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang personally or through their
companies is less than 7% and the aggregate of voting rights of
the board of directors of Smartsens is less than one-half, they
do not participate in and cannot determine the daily operation
management of Smartsens; and (iii) Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr.
Chu Chia-Hsiang do not rely on the investment in Smartsens as
their major source of income. Therefore, the Company believes
that the investment of QT Investment (the controlling shareholder
of the Company) in Smartsens does not affect the independence
of Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang as INEDs of
the Company. Based on the above circumstances and the
confirmations submitted by each of the INEDs, the Company
considers that all the INEDs are independent and have met the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
during the Year and up to the date of this report.
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As at 31 December 2023, Mr. Ko Ping Keung held 200,000 Shares
of the Company, representing approximately 0.02% of the issued
Shares of the Company. During the Year, none of the INEDs held
more than 1% of the number of issued Shares of the Company.

As at the date of this report, Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang serves as a
director of Googol Technology Co., Ltd. (stock code: 301510), a
listed company controlled by Mr. Ko Ping Keung.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, there was
no Director who held directorships in each other’s companies nor
had significant relationships with other directors by participating in
other companies or groups.

Each of the INEDs has been appointed for a term of three years,
which is subject to retirement and re-election in accordance with
the Listing Rules, the Articles of Association of the Company and
the applicable laws in the Cayman Islands. As at 31 December
2023, Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang and Mr. Ng Sui Yin, being INEDs, have
served on the Board for more than nine years. After considering
the factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
is of view that each of Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang and Mr. Ng Sui Yin is
still independent.

During the Year, the Chairman has held one meeting with INEDs
without the presence of the executive Directors.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of potential legal actions
against the Directors’ liability has been arranged by the Company.

Directors’ Time and Directorship Commitments

The Directors have confirmed that they have devoted sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company during the Year
and have disclosed to the Company at least twice a year the
number, identity and nature of their positions in listed public
companies or institutions are listed in Hong Kong or overseas, as
well as other significant commitments.

As at 31 December 2023, Mr. Ko Ping Keung, an INED, had held
directorships in more than seven public companies, including the
Company. As Mr. Ko Ping Keung was principally served as non-
executive director and will not engage in the daily operation of the
relevant companies, the Company is of the view that he is able to
allocate sufficient time to fulfill his duty as an independent director
of the Company.
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Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

During the Year, each of the Directors (namely Mr. He Ningning,
Mr. Hu Sanmu, Mr. Fan Fugiang, Mr. Ko Ping Keung, Mr. Ng
Sui Yin (resigned on 25 March 2024) and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang)
have complied with the requirements of the Code Provision
C.1.4 of the CG Code, have participated in relevant continuing
professional development and training, including special training
on connected transaction and the updated requirements on
corporate governance at the Company’s expense, and all Directors
have been requested to provide the Company with their training
records.

In addition, the Company has from time to time provided
briefings to all Directors to develop and refresh their duties and
responsibilities.

Meetings of the Board and Directors’ Attendance
Records

During the Year, the Board held 13 meetings in total (i.e.
19 January 2023, 13 March 2023, 24 April 2023, 26 April 2023,
28 April 2023, 19 May 2023, 17 July 2023, 7 August 2023,
21 August 2023, 11 September 2023, 18 December 2023,
21 December 2023 and 29 December 2023 respectively) with
notice given to the Directors at least 14 days in advance (excluding
the interim meetings). Before each Board meeting, an agenda and
the accompanying Board papers have been sent to all Directors at
least three days before the intended date of the Board meeting or
such other period as agreed in advance. The company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”) is responsible for keeping
all Board meeting’s minutes. The draft and final versions of the
minutes have been circulated to the Directors for comments and
record within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for the Directors’ inspection.
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The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and
general meeting during the Year is as follows:

BEENFFEHFEFERRER
TEECHAOT

Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

HERYBEEREE
General
Board Meeting
Name of Directors EEE4A Exg REXE
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. He Ningning (Chairman) AIBELE (F/E) 13/13 11
Mr. Hu Sanmu (Chief Executive Officer) =Rz E (TEHEE) 13/13 1/1
Mr. Fan Fugiang SEERMTE 13/13 1/1
INEDs BIERITES
Mr. Ko Ping Keung SRETE 13/13 1/1
Mr. Ng Sui Yin SERBELE 13/13 11
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang RIS E 13/13 1/1

During the Year, as part of the commitment to best practices, all
Directors have participated in the discussions in respect of certain
business development of the Group through electronic means of
communication, such as E-mail and instant messaging software.
Such arrangement ensured fast and timely provision of information
to Directors, to supplement the formal Board meetings.

In addition, to meet the requirement of keeping up with the
Group’s business performance by the Directors, a monthly
management report, which contained the financial performance
and key business issues of the Group, was provided to the
Directors by the management of the Company on a monthly basis
throughout the Year. Director can contact the management of the
Company individually and independently to get more information of
the Group.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a policy of the Board diversity (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) with all measurable objectives set for
implementing the same.

Summary of Board Diversity Policy
A. Purpose

To ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business.

B. Nomination and appointment

The Nomination Committee will identify eligible candidates
on merit basis based on the Company’s daily business
needs while taking into account the benefit of diversity of the
members of the Board.

C. Measurable objectives

Selection of candidates to the Board will be based on a range
of diversity, including but not limited to gender, age, language,
cultural background, educational background, industry
experience and professional experience.

D. Monitoring and reporting

The Nomination Committee will disclose the composition of
the Board in the Company’s Corporate Governance Report
each year and monitor the implementation of this policy.

E. Reviewing this policy

The Nomination Committee will review this policy in due
course to ensure that this policy is effective. The Nomination
Committee will review this policy and the measurable
objectives at least annually, or as appropriate, to ensure the
continued effectiveness of the Board.
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Board Member Diversity

ey

I>

The Nomination Committee comprehensively considered the UL ZEBHGREEE T EFT TN EH
gender, age, region, cultural background, industry experience TERI~ FE - HE XIEHF S TEKR

and professional experience of the Board members. The detailed Kz & ZE LB ﬁjg.? EEMAEBAREA
analysis of the relevant factors for Directors is as follows: BOMBNGEMABERWT

Person-time/the number of

=]

Factors Categories the Board members
S E=hal| AR/ EEZEHEAHK
Gender Male 6/6
1% A B
Female 0/6
pegics
Age group 30-45 years old 0/6
FEAE A 30-45/8 5%
46-60 years old 5/6
46-60/8 5%
61-75 years old 1/6
61-758 5%
Region Mainland China 2/6
pulea R A BE
Hong Kong, China 3/6
RSB
Taiwan, China 1/6
hE A &
|dentity Executive Director 3/6
G145 BITES
Independent Non-executive Director 3/6
BIIEBMITES
Profession (Note) Engineering/Technology 2/6
B2 (W) TH2/ il
Accounting 1/6
ot
Management 3/6
==
Expertise (Note) Electrical and electronics related industry experience 3/6
ER Wat) BRMETHREITELSE
Science technology 4/6
R E5T
Other industry experience (banking/finance/energy) 3/6
Hiiz2£&58 GR1T/ &/, 5ER)
Corporate administration 6/6
BT
Board members of other listed companies 2/6
Hth FmRAREEZENE

Note: Directors can have various professional backgrounds and expertise #7532 - Z=ZRBa]UER ZEFEEE
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Measurable Objectives of Board Member Diversity

The Nomination Committee has comprehensively reviewed the
gender, age, region, cultural background, industry experience and
professional experience of the Board members as of the end of the
Year. It considered that the Board has achieved board members
diversity in many aspects, but is relatively homogeneous in terms
of gender. On 25 March 2024, the Company has appointed a
female member as an INED, namely, Ms. Hui Hiu Ching, in order
to achieve the objective of gender diversity. The Company will also
ensure that there is gender diversity when recruiting staff at mid
to senior level of the Group so that it will have a pipeline of female
senior management and potential successors to the Board in the
future.

Gender Diversity of Employees

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has a total of 9,629
employees (including non-contractual staff such as staff under
labour service agreements and internship agreements), and the
ratio of male to female employees is approximately 73:27 (As
at 31 December 2022: 74:26). Considering that the Group is
mainly engaged in the research and development, production
and sales business of intelligent vision products, the employees
mainly consist of research and development personnel, technical
personnel and general workers, most of them are generally male,
as a result, the Nomination Committee considered that the current
ratio of male and female employees is relatively balanced.

Director Nomination Policy

The Company has developed and adopted a nomination policy
for directors (the “Nomination Policy”), under which appointment
of new Directors or re-election of Directors have been carefully
considered as required by the Nomination Policy and based on
formal procedures. A summary of the Nomination Policy of the
Company is set out below:

A. Purpose

The Nomination Policy is aimed to set out the procedures and
criteria for nominating director candidates of the Company
to ensure that all nominations for the Board members are fair
and transparent, thereby facilitating the efficient and balanced
development of the Board.
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B. E&EF

B. Nomination procedures

The Secretary of the Nominating Committee collects
and analyses the necessary personal data submitted by
candidates.

The Chairman of the Nomination Committee will convene
a meeting of the Nomination Committee or circulate a
resolution in writing to the members of the Nomination
Committee to consider matters in accordance with its
terms of reference.

For filling a casual vacancy to the Board or as an
addition to the Board, the Nomination Committee will
conduct the relevant selection process (coupled with
the relevant selection criteria) against the nominated
candidate and make recommendations to the Board for
consideration, and the Board will then make a decision
as to whether the nominated candidate shall be eligible
to be appointed as a director of the Company.

For re-appointing a director of the Company, the
Nomination Committee will conduct the relevant
selection process (coupled with the relevant
selection criteria) against the Director proposed to
be re-appointed and make recommendations to the
Board for consideration, and the Board will then make
a decision as to whether the Director shall be eligible
to be re-appointed as a Director of the Company. if the
Director proposed to be re-elected is an INED who has
served the Board for more than 9 years, the Nomination
Committee shall also assess whether the INED has
remained independent in the context of the Listing Rules
and should be re-elected at the next general meeting of
the Company and make recommendations to the Board
for consideration.
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Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be considered by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate:

o reputation for integrity

e professional knowledge and industry experience which
may be relevant to the Company

e commitment in respect of available time

e Board member diversity, including not limited to the
gender, age, ethnicity, language, cultural and educational
background, industry experience and professional
experience

° In case of a candidate for an INED of the Company, the
independence of such candidate will be assessed

Board'’s decision

The entire Board is ultimately responsible for the selection
and appointment or recommendation (as the case may be) of
candidates for the Company’s directorship, and accordingly,
shall consider the recommendations from the Nomination
Committee and make a decision as to:

1. In relation to new appointment, whether the nominated
candidate shall be eligible to be appointed as a director
of the Company to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board, or (as the case may be) to be nominated
and recommended to the Company’s shareholders for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company; and

EXELHRS

HERE

RFERLEEABTRTE 12
REEERERE NMIEE

WIEEE

HEARATHEEANEENH KT
EFd

BEIN: LS

EFEMEZ T BEER
[RIMR S Fle - BHE B
XIERBBEE R TEERM
HEER

MAEARBIUIFNITEFRE
AME K FFEBEREREA
AYIE 1 1%

EFETHRE

EREAEUEZ RBERME) @&
REBRLEEENEZEL T
REEHRE :

MMEEMS  BIRBIREREA
EREEREZAERETARE
FSUEHESINRKE MR
REFIREBES FH HGBER
ME) RNAEATRRAE £
ERAKEEETEATKRE
LUHRERE; &

20235 5% ESRE EE) AR2E 89



Corporate Governance Report
EXEANRS

2. In relation to re-appointment, whether the director
shall be eligible to be reappointed as a director of
the Company, and (if such director is an INED of the
Company who has served the Board for more than
9 years and whose re-appointment shall be subject to
a separate resolution to be approved by the Company’s
shareholders under the Listing Rules) whether such INED
has remained independent in the context of the Listing
Rules and should be re-elected at the next general
meeting of the Company.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting, and
among other things, reviewed the structure, size, composition and
diversity of members of the Board, assessed the independence
of the INEDs and recommended to the Board for consideration
the re-appointment of all the retiring Directors as Directors at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 19 May 2023 (the
“2023 AGM”).

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
separate and performed by different individuals to ensure a
balance of power and authority so that power is not concentrated
in any one individual. Mr. He Ningning, Chairman, is responsible
for the management of the Board while Mr. Hu Sanmu, Chief
Executive Officer, is responsible for managing the Group’s business
and overall operations. There is a clear division of responsibilities
between Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four Board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Risk Management Committee, to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for the Board committees are
posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. It comprises three
INEDs, namely Mr. Ng Sui Yin (resigned on 25 March 2024, and
was succeeded by Ms. Hui Hiu Ching), Mr. Ko Ping Keung and
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang. Mr. Ng Sui Yin (resigned on 25 March 2024,
and was succeeded by Ms. Hui Hiu Ching) is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include,
but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditor, and
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and handling any questions regarding its
resignation or dismissal;

e reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards and discussing with
the external auditor on the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences;

e developing and implementing a policy on engaging an
external auditor to supply non-audit services and reporting to
the Board, identifying and making recommendations on any
matters where action or improvement is needed;

° reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the Company’s
financial statements and annual report and accounts,
half-year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly
reports, and reviewing significant financial reporting
judgments contained therein;

° reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems;

e  (discussing the internal control system with the management
to ensure that the management has performed its duty and
have an effective internal control system in place;
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e considering major investigation findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

® ensuring coordination between the internal and external
auditors, ensuring that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company, and reviewing and monitoring its effectiveness;

e reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

° reviewing the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and management’s response;

° reviewing the pricing rules of continuing connected
transactions and implementation of transaction caps, etc.;

e  ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter; and

e considering other topics as defined by the Board.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held three meetings in total
(i.,e. on 13 March 2023, 7 August 2023 and 29 December 2023
respectively) (the “Audit Committee Meetings”) and reviewed the
audited consolidated results for the year ended 31 December
2022, the unaudited consolidated results for the six months ended
30 June 2023 of the Company, and the audit plan for the year
2023, respectively, including the accounting principles and practice
adopted by the Group, the Company’s compliance with the code
provisions of the CG Code and disclosure thereof in the relevant
annual and interim reports, the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control and recommended to the Board for consideration the same
and the re-appointment of KPMG, Certified Public Accountant, as
the Company’s external auditor at the 2023 AGM.
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The attendance of each Director at the Audit Committee Meetings
during the Year is as follows:

EXELHRS

EEENAFEHFES
SoERU0 R

ZEEEE:

e

No. of Attendance (Note)/
Eligible to attend

HERE W)

Name of Directors EEHA FERLEESERY

Mr. Ng Sui Yin (Chairman) RILBEE (F/E) 3/3

Mr. Ko Ping Keung ER‘BIE 3/3

Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang DIER e 3/3
Note: The Audit Committee Meeting was attended by all the Directors in =~ /3t - FFBEEE R B HEERESE D

person, not by an alternate.

The Audit Committee held one meeting on 25 March 2024 and
reviewed the Company’s draft audited consolidated results for the
Year, including the accounting principles and practice adopted by
the Group, the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
of the CG Code and disclosure in this report, as well as the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and recommended to
the Board for consideration the same and the re-appointment of
KPMG, Certified Public Accountant, as the Company’s external
auditor at the forthcoming AGM.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Chu
Chia-Hsiang, Mr. Ng Sui Yin (resigned on 25 March 2024, and was
succeeded by Ms. Hui Hiu Ching) and Mr. Ko Ping Keung. Mr. Chu
Chia-Hsiang is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include, but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing the remuneration policy;
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reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

reviewing and approving compensation payable to the
executive Directors and senior management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with the contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
reasonable and not excessive;

reviewing and approving compensation arrangements relating
to the dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with the contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration;

reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules; and

considering and implementing other matters, as defined or
assigned by the Board or otherwise required by the Listing
Rules from time to time.
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Corporate Governance Report

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting on 13 March 2023, and among other things, reviewed
and recommended to the Board for consideration certain
remuneration-related matters of the Directors and senior
management, determined the policy for the remuneration of
executive Directors, assessed performance of executive Directors
and approved the terms of re-appointed Directors’ remuneration.

For determining the remuneration packages of each Director,
market rates and factors such as each Director's workload and
required commitment were taken into account. In addition,
factors comprising economic and market situations, individual

EXELHRS

REFE > FHNEES
A+=ZHHET—REH (HRH
BENODEFCHEEZEES TA
EEhSHREEAEHFMNAERZEE
RERATESHIFMEBCR  SHERAITE
EHEN R EEESERIFM -

ATEB-o=HgE=

=

HREBEESESZHHFSE TREHS
KPHEEHRAZR NMEFZ TIREBRFA
EEZEFE I EEERTESH
MEBREBRZAREE  KERTS

contributions to the Group’s results and development as well ER - HAREBXEENEREZER U
as individual’s potential were considered when determining the  &1{E A Z EBESE o
remuneration packages of Executive Directors.
The attendance of each Director at the Remuneration Committee REEFERAFEFELBHFNZE T @H
Meetings during the Year is as follows: SHEEUR
No. of Attendance (Note)/
Eligible to attend
HERE )
Name of Directors EHES EERLUETERY
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang (Chairman) VRS E (F/E) 11
Mr. Ng Sui Yin RmBLE 1/1
Mr. Ko Ping Keung EERBIE 11
Note: The Remuneration Committee Meeting was attended by all the /st FFEESESHH B EHFNEE s

Directors in person, not by an alternate.

The Remuneration Committee also held one meeting on
25 March 2024, and reviewed and recommended to the Board
for consideration certain remuneration-related matters of the
Directors and senior management, and review and approve the
new employee stock ownership plan.

HoFRAEALRE-

wMEBGE TR _E_MNE=A4
“+hARBRT—REHR BEKRAES
CHEEZZRBEEE TREERBRE
BABHFMNARZEE THERKILE
MHE THARstEl

20235 5% B EE) AR2E Qh



Corporate Governance Report
EXEANRS

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. It comprises
two INEDs, namely Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang
and an executive Director, namely Mr. He Ningning. Mr. He
Ningning is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include, but are not limited to:

e reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company'’s corporate strategy;

° identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and making recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

e assessing the independence of the INEDs;

e developing and reviewing the Board Diversity Policy and
reviewing the measurable objectives for implementing such
Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender,
age, race, language, cultural background, educational
background, industry experience and professional experience,
and the progress on achieving the objectives; and making
disclosure of its progress and its review results in the annual
report annually; and

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and the succession planning
for the Directors, in particular, the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting on
13 March 2023, and among other things, reviewed the structure,
size, composition and diversity of members of the Board,
assessed the independence of the INEDs and recommended to
the Board for consideration the re-appointment of all the retiring
Directors as Directors at the 2023 AGM.
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The attendance of each Director at the Nomination Committee
Meetings during the Year is as follows:

EXELHRS

BEENEAFELFERRZRZETEE
SCERINE

No. of Attendance (Note)/
Eligible to attend

HERE W)
Name of Directors EEns EERUETRERY
Mr. He Ningning (Chairman) AIZEEEE (F/E) 11
Mr. Ko Ping Keung ER‘BIE 11
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang IERES 1/1

Note: The Nomination Committee Meeting was attended by all the

Directors in person, not by an alternate.

The Nomination Committee also held one meeting on 25 March
2024, and among other things, reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board, assessed the independence of
the INEDs and recommended to the Board for considering the
re-appointment of the retiring Directors and the Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy, namely Fan Fugiang, Mr. Hu
Sanmu and Ms. Hui Hiu Ching at the forthcoming AGM, as well
as reviewed the implementation of the Nomination Policy and the
Board’s Diversity Policy.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee has been established with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Risk Management Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Ng Sui Yin (resigned on 25 March
2024, and was succeeded by Ms. Hui Hiu Ching), both INEDs and
Mr. Fan Fugiang, an executive Director. Mr. Ko Ping Keung is the
chairman of the Risk Management Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Risk Management
Committee include, but are not limited to:

° reviewing and assessing the Group’s investment in wealth
management products in terms of whether such investment
complies with its treasury and investment policies, the fund
safety of and the risks associated with such investment;
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° reviewing the remedial actions in respect of policy breaches, if
any;

° reviewing the risks associated with, and approving,
the purchase of wealth management products with the
transaction amount exceeding RMB50 million (RMB50 million
exclusive) as requested from time to time;

° reviewing and assessing the expected return of the wealth
management products with similar principal amount, and
the track record of relevant issuers and similar wealth
management products previously sold in the market; and

e  considering, reviewing and approving the amendments to the
Group’s policies and requirements in respect of the operation
and risk control of the Group’s wealth management products.

During the Year, the Risk Management Committee held two
meetings in total (i.e. on 13 March 2023 and 7 August 2023) (the
“Risk Management Committee Meetings”). At the above meetings,
the Risk Management Committee reviewed and assessed the
Group’s wealth management product investment in terms of
whether such investment have complied with the Group’s treasury
and investment policies, the fund safety of and risks associated
with such investment, reviewed the status such as debt asset
ratio, operating cash flow and gearing ratio of the Company,
reviewed the legal system compliance management, and reviewed
and revised the Group’s treasury policy.
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The attendance of each member of the Risk Management
Committee Meetings during the Year is as follows:

EXELHRS

ERERETEEHFRREEREZES
GECERA T -

No. of Attendance (Note)/
Eligible to attend

HERE W)
Name of Directors EER FERLESERY
Mr. Ko Ping Keung (Chairman) BRI E (F/E) 2/2
Mr. Ng Sui Yin SmBLE 2/2
Mr. Fan Fugiang BERLE 2/2

Note: The Risk Management Committee Meeting was attended by all the

Directors in person, not by an alternate.

The Risk Management Committee also held a meeting on
25 March 2024 and 12 April 2024 respectively, and reviewed and
assessed the Group’s wealth management product investment in
terms of whether such investment has complied with the Group’s
treasury and investment policies, the fund safety of and risks
associated with such investment, reviewed the status such as
debt asset ratio, operating cash flow, gearing ratio and contingent
liabilities of the Company, assessed whether the operating cash
of the Group is sufficient and the control policies of liquidity risks,
and also discussed the amendments to the treasury policy of the
Company.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors though having delegated
the corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee which
include, but are not limited to:

e developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

e reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

° reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;
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e  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
the Directors; and

e reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company since their appointments, among which, Mr. He
Ningning, Mr. Hu Sanmu, Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang, Mr. Ko Ping Keung
and Mr. Fan Fugiang has renewed their service contracts with the
Company for a term of three years on 1 June 2023, while Ms. Hui
Hiu Ching has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years on 25 March 2024.

None of the Directors has a service contract/letter of appointment
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without the payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Articles of Association,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of the Company after
his appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Ms. Hui Hiu Ching (appointed as an INED on
25 March 2024) will hold office until the AGM and, being eligible,
will offer herself for re-election at the AGM.

1 OO Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2023
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All the Directors, including the INEDs, are subject to retirement
by rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with the
Article 84 of Articles of Association. At each AGM, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is less than three or
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) will retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director will be subject to retirement at the AGM at least once
every three years. A retiring Director will be eligible for re-election
and will continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at
which he retires. The Directors to retire by rotation will include (so
far as necessary to ascertain the number of Directors to retire by
rotation) any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer himself
for re-election. Any further Directors so to retire shall be those
who have been the longest in office since their last re-election or
appointment and so that as between persons who became or
were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those to retire shall
(unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined
by lot. Any Director appointed by the Board pursuant to Article
83(3) of Articles of Association shall not be taken into account in
determining which particular Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation. Accordingly, Mr. Fan Fugiang and Mr.
Hu Sanmu will retire by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible to
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are set out in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EXELHRS

Pursuant to the code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management of the
Group (other than the Directors) whose particulars are contained
in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior

RIBEEETUEEA SR ZFRRE » &
EESREEAE (EFHIN #FM (2
BERIZENBENAFEFERSE TE
EREREERBZEBEFIBIA) F &N

Management” in this annual report for the Year by band is set out |

below:

Number of individuals

Remuneration band (in RMB) $HEMAR R (AR ) ATEB
Nil to 1,000,000 £ % 1,000,0007T 2
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,0017521,500,0007T 1

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, KPMG was engaged as the independent auditor of

the Company and certain subsidiaries.

The remuneration paid/payable to KPMG, the auditor, for the
services provided during the Year is set out below:

CERVRER T

AFEE BREIGHAMEBHEES S
NSIDSESIH N = PNSi - RvR 23 T

MAFERMZBRBEN, MBI ZEK
2R ERGSENE BT 2 #FH M 5] & W

T
Fee paid/payable
et ENER
RMB’000
Services R 7% AR¥FT
Audit service: EETARTS ¢

Annual audit service for 2023 TEC-FFEERFTRY 2,963
A share IPO audit service* ARB R REERT R 3,842

Non-audit service: JEEEHARTS -
Interim audit service for 2023 BT = FPHAET R 57
Total st 6,862

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the re-appointment of the independent auditor,
and they both have agreed to recommend the re-appointment of
KPMG as the Company’s independent auditor for the ensuing year

at the AGM.

EXgRBERZEEREEBIZH
MESR—B BEHYFAREBNRE
BFERE LERESHEMER
MERNBE TR —FEBILIZHED -

Kunshan QT China, which is one of the Company’s subsidiaries,
already submitted the listing application for the proposed initial public
offering of its A shares to be listed in ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (the "A Share IPO"). Please refer to relevant Company's

announcements for details.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In addition, KPMG has stated in the independent auditor’s report
its reporting responsibilities on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the Year.

INTERNAL CONTROL

It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the Company
maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the
Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets at all times.
The Company has adopted a series of internal control policies
and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance for
achieving objectives including effective and efficient operations,
reliable financial reporting and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. The Company has established internal
control measures led by the Board whereby the management
is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors in completing
the identification and evaluation of risk factors of the business
systems, implementing the Company’s policies and procedures
and participating in the design and operation of such measures
that meet the Company’s management requirements, which
provides reliable assurance for the Company to carry out its
business to prevent the occurrence of significant operational
risks and losses. The Group also has an internal audit and
risk control function which primarily carries out analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of its
risk management and internal control systems, and reports their
findings to the Board on, at least, an annual basis. The systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives and provide only reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
Highlights of our internal control system include the following:

e  Code of conduct — The Company’s code of conduct explicitly
communicates to each employee its values, acceptable
criteria for decision-making and its ground rules for behaviour.
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° Management of related party transactions — The Group will
continue to enhance its internal control and only enter into
transactions with related parties that are carried out in the
ordinary course of its business and on normal commercial
terms and are in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

° Internal audit — The Group’s internal audit function regularly
monitors key controls and procedures in order to assure its
management and the Board that the internal control system is
functioning as intended. The Audit Committee is responsible
for supervising the internal audit function.

e Compliance with the Listing Rules and relevant laws
and regulations — The Group will continue to monitor
its compliance with relevant laws and regulations and
its senior management team will work closely with the
Group’s employees to implement actions required to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The Company
will also continue to arrange for various trainings to be
provided by its Hong Kong legal advisers or other professional
parties to the Directors and senior management on the
Listing Rules, including but not limited to aspects related to
corporate governance and connected transactions, and by its
legal advisers in PRC on PRC laws and regulations.

The Audit Committee and the Board have conducted an annual
review of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group. The Directors (including the INEDs) consider that the
internal control measures of the Company are adequate and
effective.

The Board has resolved to adopt a Board Independence
Evaluation Mechanism, to ensure independent view and input
are available to the Board. The Board Independence Evaluation
Mechanism includes various measures to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board.
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The Board shall at all times comprise at least three independent
non-executive Directors that represent at least one-third of the
Board, such that there is always a strong element of independence
on the Board which can effectively exercise independent judgment.
Each independent non-executive Director is required to provide
an annual confirmation of his/her independence to the Company
and the nomination committee of the Company is responsible
to assess the independence of each independent non-executive
Director at least annually.

All the Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, are given equal opportunity and channels to
communicate and express their views to the Board and have
separate and independent access to the management of the
Group in order to make informed decisions. All Directors have full
and timely access to all the information of the Company and may,
upon request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging their
duties to the Company.

The chairman of the Board will hold meetings with the independent
non-executive Directors without the involvement of other Directors
at least annually to discuss any issues and concerns. Any Director
or his/her associate who has a conflict of interest in a matter to
be considered by the Board will be dealt with by a physical Board
meeting rather than by written resolutions. Such Director will be
required to declare his/her interests before the meeting and abstain
from voting and not counted towards the quorum on the relevant
resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors who, and whose
associates, have no interest in the matter should attend the Board
meeting.

The Board has reviewed and considered that the Board
Independence Evaluation Mechanism is effective in ensuring that
independent views and input are provided to the Board during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

EXELHRS

EFERGBKRBAEDL=2BIUIFNIT
EFHR HEFTERERBEL =7
Z2— ALEFERRAEASERL
Mo BES A RATREIBIL A - ZBILIF
HOTESARKTARRHERE I IE
FERIBE > BEARFRLESEES
ELOESFHLIBUIFATEEFHNE
VAL

2REF(BEBIFNTES) B=A
FTERERREHEETEBEBNKRE
HER U BEBEEAEREERE N
EHABRE - EREFHU2EAKE
ERARBPMBER WA IR ERFFE
BEBRTERBUEXEER  UAE
AEETHEHBE ERAERATKIE-

EXEIRERELSFERABIIFAT
ESERT—AgRUTHRENSTERK
BEE gZEZHMEFSHA -THE
SEEENFRTFEEOGEHRNME
HNEFHEMBEARSEEEEFEER
CEMIFEERBRETRE-FRAE
ERANGZMPAREETITRER
o BARSHABBRBRENEE AR
HEMEFEERNBILIIFATESER
HEMBEARHEEFEEE -

EEgCBRIIA BEZST =
+-B=+—HILFEE - EFgHIY
FEEF T ENERAESTEIRME
VEMRER-

20235 5% Esi EE) AR28 105



Corporate Governance Report
EXEANRS

Dissemination of inside information

The Group has in place a framework for the disclosure of
inside information by reference to the Guidelines on Disclosure
of Inside Information issued by the SFC. The framework sets
out the procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information in an appropriate and timely
manner, such as steps to ascertain sufficient details, conduct
internal assessment of the matter and its likely impact on the
Company, seek professional advice where required and verification
of the facts. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public,
any persons who possess the knowledge of such information
must ensure strict confidentiality and must not deal in any of the
Company’s securities.

Whistle-blowing Policy

The Group has formulated internal policies including the “Integrity,
Self-discipline and Anti-fraud Management System”, and
established an effective whistle-blowing system. On the one hand,
the establishment of whistle-blowing policies and systems aims to
strengthen internal integrity management and ensure a healthy and
sustainable development for the Group; on the other hand, those
who deal with the Group (e.g. customers and suppliers) can raise
concerns, in confidence and anonymity, with the Audit Committee
about possible improprieties in any matter related to the Group.

In order to effectively prevent fraud, the Group has set up a
special whistle-blowing mailbox to encourage employees and
others who deal with the Group to report disciplinary violations
through e-mail and other means. The Group also sets up special
auditors to regularly inspect whether the whistle-blowing channel
is effective, investigate and report the reported matters, and assist
the management in carrying out remedial measures.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company appointed Mr. Cheng Zhihua (“Mr. Cheng”) as the
Company Secretary of the Company on 21 November 2017

Mr. Cheng is an external service provider to the Company and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(in compliance with Note 1 to Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules). The
primary contact person between the Company and Mr. Cheng is
Mr. Fan Fugiang, an executive Director.
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The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and/or the Chief
Executive Officer. All members of the Board have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary. The appointment
and removal of the joint company secretaries or the Company
Secretary are subject to the Board'’s approval.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to make proposals
or make a motion at the annual general meetings under the
memorandum of association of the Company and the Articles
of Association (the "M&A”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands.
Shareholders who wish to make proposals or make a motion may,
however, convene an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) in
accordance with the “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
EGM” set out below.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an EGM

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than ten percent of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to require an EGM to be called by
the Board or the Company Secretary for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition, including making proposals
or making a motion at the EGM.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an EGM for the
purpose of making proposals or making a motion at the EGM
must deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by
the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong (Room 828, 8/F, Topsail
Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong) for
the attention of the Company Secretary and/or Directors of the
Company.

The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding in the
Company, the reason(s) to convene an EGM and the proposed
agenda.
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The Company will check the Requisition and the identity and
shareholding of the Eligible Shareholder(s) will be verified with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong. If the Requisition
is found to be proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to convene an EGM and/or include the proposal(s) made
or the resolution(s) proposed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) at the
EGM within 2 months after the deposit of the Requisition. On the
contrary, if the Requisition has been verified as not in order, the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of the outcome
and accordingly, the Board will not call for an EGM and/or include
the proposal(s) made or the resolution(s) proposed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) at the EGM.

If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition the Board fails
to proceed to convene such EGM, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned as
a result of the failure of the Board to convene an EGM shall be
reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholder(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquires to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board of the Company by addressing them to the
principal place of business of the Company, at Room 828,
8/F, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories,
Hong Kong by post or by email to Mr. Cheng Zhihua at
tonycheng128@yahoo.com.hk or investor relations department
of the Company at Qtech1478@qtechsmartvision.com, for the
attention of the Company Secretary and/or the investor relations
department.

Upon receipt of the enquiries, the Company Secretary and/or the
investor relations department will forward the communications
relating to:

1.  matters within the Directors’ purview to the executive
Directors of the Company;

2. matters within a Board committee’s area of responsibility to
the chairman of the appropriate committee; and

3. ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, enquiries
and customer complaints to the appropriate management of
the Company.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy of the Group had been disclosed in the
Prospectus dated 20 November 2014 of the Company.

The payment and the amount of any dividends, if paid, will depend
on the Company’s results of operations, cash flows, financial
condition, statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment
of dividends by the Company, future prospects and other factors
that the Board may consider relevant. Holders of the Shares
will be entitled to receive such dividends pro rata according to
the amounts paid up or credited as paid up on the Shares. The
declaration, payment and amount of dividends will be subject to
discretion by the Board of the Company.

Dividends may be paid only out of the Company’s distributable
profits and/or reserves (including share premium account) as
permitted under the Memorandum and Articles of Association of
the Company and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
To the extent profits are distributed as dividends, such portion of
profits will not be available to be reinvested in operations of the
Company. There can be no assurance that the Company will be
able to declare or distribute any dividend in the amount set out in
any plan of the Board or at all. The dividend distribution record in
the past may not be used as a reference or basis to determine the
level of dividends that may be declared or paid by the Company in
the future.

COMMUNICATION WITH THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted and amended the Shareholders’
communication policy on 6 December 2022 with the aim of
providing Shareholders and investors (including potential investors)
with equal and timely access to information about the Company,
in order to enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights in an
informed manner and to allow them to actively participate in the
affairs of the Company, where appropriate, and to facilitate the
effective communication between Shareholders and investors and
the Company.
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Information will be communicated to the Shareholders mainly
through the Company'’s financial reports, AGMs and other general
meetings that may be convened as well as all the disclosures
submitted to the Stock Exchange. The Company has set up its
website, http://www.gtechsmartvision.com. Information disclosed
by the Company on the website of the Stock Exchange will also
be published on the Company’s website immediately. For further
details of the Shareholders’ communication policy, please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 6 December 2022. Having
reviewed the implementation of above measures, the Company is
of the view the shareholders' communication policy is effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

On 25 March 2024, the Company amended its articles of
association (the “Articles”) to (i) reflect and align with the new
requirements in relation to the expanded paperless listing regime
and the electronic dissemination of corporate communications
by listed issuers under the amendments on the Listing Rules
with effect from 31 December 2023; (ii) reflect other relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules and company law of the
Cayman lIslands; and (iiij make other consequential, tidy-up
and housekeeping amendments (Collectively, the “Proposed
Amendments”). In light of the Proposed Amendments, the
Company proposed to adopt a new set of amended and restated
articles of association (the “Amended and Restated Articles”) in
substitution for, and to the exclusion of, the existing Articles. The
Proposed Amendments and the adoption of the Amended and
Restated Articles are subject to the approval of the Shareholders
by way of a special resolution at the forthcoming AGM to be held
on 24 May 2024 and, if approved, will become effective upon such
approval. Prior to the passing of the relevant special resolution
at the AGM, the prevailing Articles shall remain valid. For further
details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
25 March 2024.

Saved as disclosed above, there were no other changes in the
constitutional documents of the Company during the Year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

About this Report

This report is the eighth Environmental, Social and Governance
Report publicly released by Q Technology (Group) Company
Limited, which aims to disclose the relevant performance and
impact of the Group on environmental, social and governance
issues (“ESG”). For corporate governance, please refer to page 78
to 110 of this annual report.

The Board understands its responsibility of ensuring the integrity
of this report. This report discloses the performance and impact
of all material topics related to the Group and fairly illustrates
the performance of the Group on each topic. The Board has
reviewed this report and confirmed the accuracy, truthfulness and
completeness of its contents.

Reporting Guideline and Principles

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Appendix
27 “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” to
the Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and based
on the actual conditions of the Group. This report adheres to the
reporting principle of “Materiality”, “Quantitative”, “Balance” and
“Consistency” in presenting the changes in data in a way that
allows year-on-year comparison, which truly reflects the ESG
performance of the Group during the Reporting Period.

Reporting Boundary

The data collection of this report covers the production base
and the headquarters located in Kunshan, Jiangsu Province,
China, and the production base in India, where the Group’s major
business activities occur. After considering that the Group’s offices
located in other places such as Shenzhen, Chengdu and Taiwan,
which are of supporting nature or with revenue accounting for less
than ten percent of the Group. Their economic activities do not
have significant social or environmental impacts and are therefore
not included in the reporting scope.
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IR - HERERHS

Reporting Period

The reporting period (the "Reporting Period") is the financial year
from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023.

Feedbacks

We are committed to disclosing comprehensive and accurate ESG
information to our stakeholders and you are welcome to provide
opinions and advice on this report through the following contact
methods:

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited

Address: Room 828, 8/F, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street,
Sha Tin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Email: gtech1478@qtechsmartvision.com

Website: http://www.qgtechsmartvision.com
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Chairman’s Message
Dear stakeholders,

During the year under review, the instability of global socio-
economic development has further intensified. Continuing
geopolitical conflicts, rising international trade protectionism, and
tightening of monetary policies by major developed countries
and economies have made the global macro-economic situation
more complex, volatile and challenging. As one of the major
intelligent vision hardware solution companies, the Group, based
in China and facing the world, inevitably faces various challenges
in its daily operations. Fortunately, with open communication and
deepening cooperation among all stakeholders, the Group is able
to rise to the challenge and achieve significant results in terms of
technology, customer and product deployment. While striving to
maximize profits and improve shareholder returns, we are actively
responding to the national call to further accelerate innovation
and optimize the energy structure, and work together with the
country to strive to peak out its carbon emissions by 2030 and
achieve carbon neutrality by 2060, and actively reviewing our
performance and improving policies on climate change, labor
rights and interests and anti-corruption issues to promote mutually
sustainable development of both the enterprise and the society.

“Regarding environmental protection as our due
responsibilities”

Electricity is the most consumed energy in the production of
intelligent vision products, and is also the main source of carbon
emissions in the industry. During the Year, the Company deeply
explored its potential on energy saving, invested more than RMB2
million to install solar photovoltaic panels on the rooftop of its
Gucheng Road plant in Kunshan, which were put into operation
in November to generate renewable energy. In addition, the air-
conditioning of the Gucheng Road office was fully operated with
an ice host system instead of modular units in summer, and the
air-conditioning was reconnected to ice and water piping, which
is expected to result in significant annual electricity savings and
contribute to the goal of further carbon neutrality, contributing to
the goal of further carbon neutrality.
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“Upholding striver spirit”

Employees are always the most important assets of an enterprise.
During the Year, we continued to increase resources for staff
training, such as continuing to promote the Eaglet Class training
program to strengthen the depth and intensity of training for
newcomers; encouraging knowledge inheritance by holding Eaglet
Class training program, offering induction training, in-workshop
training, mentor-led training, professional quality improvement
training. In addition, the Company has launched a training
programme for cadres at the grassroots level, and has launched
the "Kickstart - Grassroots & New Cadres Transformation"
programme to help employees carry out career planning in
a systematic manner. On the other hand, the environmental
safety department has strengthened occupational safety and
health training and preventive measures to minimize the risk of
occupational hazards to employees at work.

“Centring on customer experience”

During the Year, we insisted on implementing the development
blueprint as set out in the "Five-Year (2021-2025) Business
Development Strategic Plan of Q Technology (Group) Company
Limited". We will continue to grasp the opportunities brought by
the development of 5G, hire an external consulting firm to assist in
the establishment of the Lead to Cash (LTC) system, move forward
in the field of smartphone, smart vehicle and the loT, proactively
enhance our ability building in optical designs, computational
imaging and system integration, make continuous progress in
product function, performance and size, provide quality services
to our customers, and strive to realize our vision of "to illuminate
machines".

High-quality suppliers were the key to ensuring the quality of
the products we provide. As always, we attached significant
importance to supplier management. In addition to the basic
qualifications and production capacity of suppliers, we also paid
attention to their performance at the ESG level, and strived to
maintain a stable and sustainable supply chain. On the other
hand, as our products emphasize innovation in structural design,
production process and material usage, we will continue to pay
more attention to the protection of intellectual property rights
to regulate patent application and management work, so as to
protect our employees' achievements in R&D and innovation on
the one hand, and prevent infringement and plagiarism on the
other.
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We would like to express our sincere gratitude to all stakeholders
for their lasting affirmation and support. While developing our
business, we will strengthen our governance in the field of
sustainable development, and strive to create greater value for our
partners, customers, investors and other stakeholders.

He Ningning
Chairman of the Board and Executive Director
21 April 2024
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Sustainable Development Management

ESG Strategy

The Group adopts the sustainable development goals advocated
by the United Nations and formulated a sustainable development
strategy based on its own operating conditions, in order to make
contribution to facilitate the achievement of global sustainable
development targets. We identified three sustainable development
goals with significant connection to the Group’s operation, namely
Goal 8 Decent Work and Economic Growth, Goal 12 Responsible
Consumption and Production and Goal 16 Peace, Justice
and Strong Institutions. We will incorporate these sustainable
development goals into the sustainable development strategy.

AEEEREIR
ESGEBE

AEERMESRRERENIFBEERER
HEBEEKEBRRUIRREREE &
EEFERDKAFELERERFLEM &K
PIHAH =R EREEREZRMBAIA
FRERER OB ReEE L ENLEE
R-BRI2EEEHEBNEE > U RBR16
M¥F ERHEBREE - RPRBLEFE
LREBRNERBARFELRBRERED-

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

AREERER

ALS

DEVELOPMENT \J %,

S,

SUSTAINABLE %

NO IEROD
POVERTY HUNGER

Tl

AFFORDABLE AND
CLEAN ENERGY

GOOD HEALTH 4 QUALITY
AND WELL-BEING EDUCATION

e

INDUSTRY, INNOVATION
AND INFRASTRUCTURE

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

-~

10 REDUCED
INEQUALITIES

GENDER
EQUALITY

CLEAN WATER
AND SANITATION

11 SUSTAINABLE CITIES 1 2 RESPONSIBLE
AND COMMUNITIES CONSUMPTION
AND PRODUCTION

o

13 foor

-

14 Il;IEFlEDW WATER

To establish a smooth communication
channel, provide a safe and decent
working environment and offer good
welfare package in order to achieve
mutual development with the staff
members

RIUNGBEBERE EREZE2-
BENIFRE ARREFRE
MEB HETHEF HEEZEE

(=)

v

‘IB PEAGE, JUSTICE
AND STRONG

INSTITUTIONS

0
.z

o

15 oo

To persist in the requirement of integrity
in the course of cooperation with
customers and suppliers, and ensure
the product and service quality and
stable supplier management to actualise
a win-win situation
HERRHEEESEBRER
RERREX REE oM
BEEURBENHESE
B> BRHR

abée

17

PARTNERSHIPS
FOR THE GOALS

To implement green procurement, ensure
the source of raw materials meeting
environmental protection requirements,
minimise the generation of hazardous
waste and ensure the compliance
treatment

BITHBERE RERME R
RERRER RO EREE
EMES ITRRESHERE

The connection between the sustainable development strategy of the Company and
the sustainable development goals of United Nations
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ESG Governance Structure ESGE a8
The Board is responsible for the supervision of the Group’s ESG
work and assumes full responsibilities for the ESG reporting
work. The Group has established a cross-department ESG task
force which is responsible for reporting the Group’s relevant ESG
work performance to the Board on a regular basis and assisting
the Board in formulating the Group’s sustainable development
strategy, regularly reviewing ESG goals and monitoring significant
risks and opportunities.

EFCEEEEAEEESGIFEE Y
ESGER TFAEE2HMEE AEBRILE
BPIRESGIIE/NE B ERESE S T HRE
BAEBESGHERA LFRF > WHES G
EEBENAFEERERE EHRFESGE
BRUREEERRR RS-

The ESG task force members from various departments
including the process department, the finance department,
the administrative management department, the factory affairs
department, the human resources department, the procurement
centre, the technology centre, the marketing centre and quality
assurance centre, are responsible for monitoring the ESG
indicators in relation to their roles and setting relevant goals.

ESGI R/ BB SR ERIZH ~ M FHE 1T
BB ANBRB - RKBRO K
fiaR o HmER O REROFZERBE

FI- & S RAHBER BFESGER Uk
EIURMER-

The highest authority for ESG affairs

that is responsible for the overall
supervision and allocation of resources for
implementation of work required
ESGEERmEEHRE BT2EGES
£ UAEBRELERLER

The overall work coordinating organisation
for ESG work which shall report the ESG
work performance to the Board and assist
the Board in formulating sustainable
development strategy and reviewing goals
ESGI{EREHRMIE  NESGER
ESGI{ERIR > MBES G HIE AR
BB Rt BAR

(

The departments of the ESG

Procurement centre

W

task force members which are Administration . hﬂéiﬁ‘#‘lt\ .

- , ‘ echnology centre
{?Zpﬁgfﬁbr‘:qfﬁirr(lemlr?trg %rfniﬂg Finance de%:\ggr?m Human resources &“ﬁﬁg ) Process
Board on ESG affairs de%a%mngnt Factory affairs jif%a%r%eg’é Market[g ?gntre de%a%rggnt
ESGI{EMVEmMSHET B5E s department o Quality assurance o
HITEFEHESGERENTIF R 75 5B centre
Ek mEHL

The ESG work responsibility of Organizing the

Responsible for

Responsible for

Responsible for

Responsible for

each department ESG information environmental talent recruitment, supply chain jointly establishing a
BRAESFIMESCGT (ERE collection and management training development, management, process system that
reporting work and community product responsibility ~ meets international
HEESGIE BN reporting participation and affairs and the or national
ERER BEREEERET jointly managing establishment of standards with
1E R BEHR occupational health integrity business other departments

and safety with

model with

and supervising the

the administration cooperation partners implementation
department BEHRESERE SEHESBARME
BEAARBE-E SREFFE IHES BEIMSERNE
BEERMBRAZ FBHRUBRZEE REENTEHE
B W AT EER A B TS EHHITIER
EEMERREZS
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Under the coordination by the finance department, the ESG task
force collects and consolidates the information that requires to be
disclosed on a yearly basis and reports to the Board in form of
reports. The Board will constantly review the Group’s relevant ESG
work and performance, and the reports periodically submitted by
the ESG task force and supervise the effective implementation of
sustainable development strategies and ensure the consistency of
the ESG strategy with the Company’s operation strategy.

Establishment and Review of ESG Goals

Each department of the ESG task force shall set up supervision
indicators and goals addressing the issues they are in charge
of. The process department and the relevant departments will
regularly review the achievement of goals. The ESG task force of
the Group has been regularly reviewing the goals concerning the
environment, safety, supply chain and product, and periodically
reporting to the Board the progress and achievement of goals.

Environmental indicator

MM BEEERE  ESCIIENETFWRE
REGHBERBEES  LURSEARES
CFHER - EFERFEEREAEEESCH
B TIERIFKESGIE/NAETE AR R VIR
S EEBURBEERBBINARESR UK
FERESGEIBE EI A B S S BB —F o

ESGE & E M igsd

ESGLTE/NERNS AR PIst B HPT E &R
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ESGIR/NMEBERCEHERIRE 22 H#
U NRERBE TEHRNEESERE
REREERMR

Product indicator

Safety indicator

RIGIEIR ZEER

Electricity Number of chemical
consumption per Ieakage incidents
product EERRREHERE
tﬁ:EDD}Eﬁ BE=

Number of fire
incidents

)\ <« —/—,%-(

Water consumption
per product

BHERBKE

Paper consumption
per product
BHERRES

Wastewater
discharge
per month

)ﬂ KR E

Passing rate of
the Three Wastes

tio
= R R

Emission goal of
_greenhouse gas
/!

BEEREHHER

Supply chain indicator
HFE 51T

Reasonable allocation
of procurement
prop portion

BEDIREN R

Number of on-site
mspectlons

BZRH

EmisiR

m Product production
yield
JXDDEEJX R

The ESG performance supervision indicators of Q Technology
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ESG Risk Management

The Group regards ESG as an important part of facilitating the
implementation of development strategy and it is committed to
creating value for all stakeholders. ESG task force organises
communication with stakeholders regularly, including employees,
customers, investors and suppliers, to sum up their opinions on
ESG issues which have significant impact on the Group, and
identifies relevant ESG risks based on the relevant ESG risk
evaluation results from all departments.

In accordance with the requirements of the relevant ESG issue
management system, all departments regularly carry out work
evaluation, including supply risk management, talent appraisal
and environment target assessment. In consolidation of internal
assessment results and external communication feedbacks, the
Group endeavours to lower the ESG risks and capture relevant

opportunities.

Through a 4-step procedure, namely identification, prioritisation,
validation and review, the Group identified important issues which
were closely related to the daily operation of the Group and highly
concerned by the stakeholders, and thereby prioritising actions to
meet the needs of all parties.

IR - HERESHS
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e Management of the Group verify and confirm the material topics of the Group to be

Validation ; , .
- mainly disclosed in the report
Bix RAEEEEEEZ BALEENBENZE URNKRSHEMREE

Review e Review the processes of assessing the material topics and identify areas for improvement

B E LT T R LI T

Materiality assessment process

BEEMFIEBE

We sequenced the potential material topics according to the
scores given by the stakeholders and the management of the
Group. The 7 topics at level 1 were the material topics of the
Group which had substantial impact on both or either the Group
or the stakeholders. The materiality assessment results were
reviewed and approved by the management of the Group.
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Level 3
BFZBRX

in

Level 4
EMER

Significance of economic, environmental and social impacts
BARENT SR ENEEMN

Impact on stakeholders’ assessment and decision making

WA ETRRN T E

Level 2 E-ER

e Customer/user health and
safety
BR/BERERZS

e Employee communication
channels
BT &E®BERE

e Staff retention and benefits
BETHREREF

e Community investment
G R

e Staff training and promotion
BTEIINREFH

e Employee diversity
BIZnib

e Child labour and forced
labour prevention measures
BT Kbl TTEE RS

Level 3 E=E X

e Green procurement
AR EREE

e Hazardous waste
management and
emission reduction
BiEEEYE IR RRHE

e Packaging material
conservation
BLEE YKL FE A

e Energy management and
conservation
BEREIE ML

e Human rights
A

e Anti-discrimination
s

e Social investment
HERE

e Response to climate change
FEH RIBEEE

Materiality matrix
EHTAEE

Level 1 F—EB=R

e Ensure product and service
quality
BRERKRRBES

e Anti-corruption
REE

e Customer satisfaction
ERREE

e Customer privacy protection

BERIERE

e Supply chain management
HEEEIE

¢ |ntellectual property
protection
R 8 EE R AR 5B

e Occupational safety and
health
HEZERERER

Level 4 EME R

e Exhaust gas management and

emission reduction
[B% S B BR Ko e HE
e \Wastewater discharge and
reduction
75 K HE U B BE
e Ecology protection
L RERE

e Water resources management

and conservation
KEREBREDN

e General waste management

and emission reduction

—RREEEY)EIE KR
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Response to the Material Topics

[olfE 8 E 14 % E

Material Topics

BHMZE

The Group’s Major Actions in 2023
FEER-_Z=FNTETH

Corresponding
Sections

Ensuring product
and service
quality

MR EE o R AR5

HE

Analysing the technical capability of satisfying contracts and
orders
7 M B B[R 35T B RO B i 58

Carrying out product quality inspection on raw materials,
production process, product finishing process and shipment
process

HEME - NEBE -RaER -LE8RETEREERR

Performing static prevention at anti-static areas and
inspecting the workplace regularly
RS ELFeMEFFEmEES TIE THaRIFEE

Holding 1ISO9001:2015 quality management system certificate
FFAISO9001:2015E E EEBAEE

Quality Assurance

BERE

Anti-corruption
REE

Prohibiting direct or indirect solicitation or maintenance of
business relationships by way of bribery or rebate
BB EINEL X EE R EEENRNREEFRER

Prohibiting employees from abusing their job positions to
obtain or illegally accepting properties

BRETIAARS Z ERWIIFERZ Y

Eliminating the undesirable phenomenon of appointment by
favouritism

HEEAMRNTRER

Encouraging the report of corruption
HBERERTS

Regularly organising training and promotion of business ethics
for all employees
MR ETHEREEETIEIEREEEH

Building Integrity
BEER

Customer
satisfaction

BERMEE

Promptly negotiating with clients and implementing measures
such as product exchange or repair, etc. if defective product
is found after product delivery

RNERBERTERD AFEZRHE RIULAG - EBE

FEIEIE

Promptly making confirmation and carrying out counter
measures after receiving complaints from customers

BEZEFRNFERER  RIFHE I RKEE S B

Addressing client complaints and formulating short-term and
long-term improvement measures to fundamentally improve
customer service

HARXRRFEL GIERARRANSER ERA LS
ERR

Quality Assurance

BERE

1 22 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2023




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIR B RERHS

Material Topics

B RS

The Group’s Major Actions in 2023
SEFANR_—SZ=ZFENEET

Corresponding
Sections

Customer privacy
protection

BRI RE

Updating the ISO/IEC27001:2013 information security
management system certification
BMRAEEZ2EERAISO/IEC27001:201358 8

Evaluating information risk and determining responsible
department, method and time for risk handling
A E R AR HBERBBEESESF S HiERER

Providing employees with information security training
HETETERZEEI

Arranging security inspections, installing surveillance
equipment and access control permissions for the entrances
and exits of the production area

TEREHOZHREZ LEEZE ELMIEFIRER

Information
Security
BEELE:E

Supply chain
management

HEEEEE

Carrying out information collection and on-site investigation
on new suppliers and requiring suppliers to perform self-
assessment

HMHEEBETENRERREE L U ERERBHETEN

Performing quarter and annual review on qualified suppliers,
as well as unscheduled unannounced audits
HERERBETZEERFESZ LETATEHRERZ

Adopting “Corporate Social Responsibility Agreement” and
“Supplier Management on Environmental Material Agreement”
with suppliers

HHEESEE(PENEEEHE) M(HERRRYEEER
)

All suppliers are required to conduct annual self-inspection

ERFAEHEBEBFEEEER

Supplier
Management
g m &R

Intellectual
property
protection

A E R E

Updating the GB/T 29490-2013 Intellectual Property
Management System Certificate
BEHIFAGB/T 29490- 2013 A E S EEREE

Engaging patent firms to assist in screening to ensure no
infringement risk

SNEBFHPRE RN REERR

A total of 167 applications for intellectual property registration
were filed during the Year
FAEHIERI67EBMHEETMEPFE

Offering invention rewards to patent inventors

IR ARHERERE

R&D Innovation
Bt 22 Bl
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Material Topics

HEMZE

The Group’s Major Actions in 2023
FEER_S_=ZFMNETETH

Corresponding
Sections

Occupational
safety and health
WXL HER

e  Updating the ISO45001:2018 Occupational Health and Safety
Management Systems Certificate
B AISO45001: 2018 ERELZ L EEBRES

e  (Carrying out potential hazard inspection and performing
rectification on the potential hazard identified

ETRBHE  HHEMIHHERETEN

° Carrying out stringent management over procurement, storage
and stock-out process of chemicals

HEEmMRE AR HEFBREETHERERE

e  Emergency drills are conducted several times throughout
the Year, including fire evacuation drills, chemical leakage
emergency drills, construction safety emergency drills, and
hazardous waste leakage emergency drills, etc.
SHEEETSARZED  QFHRAEE - C2 R RE
2EE MIZEREERBERREREESE

° Displaying safety risk notice and sign at places where risk
exists

REREBNMSREZEZRERSNIRH

e  For chemicals, formulate "Education and Training on Key
Controlled Chemicals", "Specifications for the Storage and
Use of Hazardous Chemicals" and "Specifications for the Use
of Precursor and Explosive Chemicals" and other education
and training materials
HERCERFE(ERERCE2RABEBI) (EREER
FREREBERRRL) R(ZHF2FIRIC2REREL) FH
Bl

e Providing health check for new employees or existing
employees facing occupational hazard

METRAHRECSNERETIEZREERER

Occupational
Safety and Health
BEZDEERE
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Environmental Management

The Group endeavours to minimise the impact of its operation
on the environment through measures including optimised
emission management, risk sources monitoring and resources
conservation. The Group is certified with Environmental
Management System ISO14001, Energy Management
System ISO50001, Greenhouse Gas Management System
ISO14064 and Standard on Requirements and Guidelines
for Quantifying the Carbon Footprint of Products 1ISO14067,
and the Group has formulated a “Management Manual”
according to international standards which specified the
responsibilities of each department. The general manager
guides the organisation of environmental, safety management,
energy and carbon peak and neutrality system and allocates
manpower, equipment, technology and other resources from
each department to implement the internal environmental and
energy approach and goals. At the same time, the Group
has adopted a series of environmental risk source monitoring
measures, mainly including setting up monitoring systems in
major production sections and key risk sources, setting up
flammable gas alarms in chemical warehouses, establishing
a plant-wide inspection system for major risk sources,
and placing signs of emergency response measures in the
workshops and key positions of each section.

The Group actively responded to the national call to further
accelerate innovation, optimize the energy structure, and
assist China in striving to peak out its carbon emissions by
2030 and achieve carbon neutrality by 2060. In order to
further optimize the energy structure, the Group implemented
two important initiatives during the Year: 1) the Group
invested more than RMB2 million to install solar photovoltaic
panels on the rooftop of the plant on Gucheng Road,
Kunshan, which were put into operation in November of the
same year to generate renewable energy, and it is estimated
that the electricity generated from the photovoltaic panels
will amount to approximately 350,800 kWh per annum in the
future; and 2) the air-conditioning of the office on Gucheng
Road was fully operated by using the ice host system in
place of modular units in the summer season during the
Year. It is estimated that the annual electricity saving will
reach 168,672 kWh. Meanwhile, we have been tracking
the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions for years, and have
gradually set reduction targets of greenhouse gas emission,
in a bid to reduce our carbon footprint by saving electricity.
As a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
the Group has calculated and monitored the total annual
greenhouse gas emissions and product-based intensity in
accordance with the reporting guidelines for environmental
key performance indicators in the "Environmental, Social
and Governance Report" since 2020, and formulated the
Group's emission reduction target: to reduce, by 2030 (the
target year), carbon emissions per unit of sales volume by
10% compared to 2021 (the base year) mainly through the
reduction of electricity consumption.
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During the Year, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance of relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to exhaust and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous or non-hazardous waste.

Resources Consumption

Energy

During the Year, the total energy consumption of the Group
was approximately 653,928 GJ and energy consumption
intensity was approximately 1.35 GJ per thousand of
products sales, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 5.2%. Electricity is the main energy consumption of
the Group's operations and is used for the operation of
production plants and office equipment. The data collection
boundary during the Year started to incorporate India Q Tech
due to the increase in the proportion of India Q Tech in the
Group's revenue to a significant level, and the electricity
consumption amounted to approximately 181,191,403 kWh
in total, representing a decrease of approximately 13.7%
as compared to that of last year (the base boundary has
simultaneously included the data of India Q Tech in 2022).
We also consumed approximately 51,432 litres of gasoline
and 8,430 litres of diesel fuel for vehicle transportation,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 3.4%
and 77.2%, and approximately 605 litres of diesel fuel for
the temporary power supply during the suspension of high
voltage power distribution room for maintenance, representing
a year-on-year decrease of approximately 74.9%.

The manufacturing of precision components has a relatively
high requirement on the production site, such as powerful air-
conditioning and ventilation system in the clean rooms. As
such, the Group proactively adopts various energy-saving
measures to enhance energy efficiency and reduce the energy
consumption in its operation. In 2023, the Group continued to
achieve energy saving and emission reduction, strengthened
the comprehensive utilization of resources, continued to
promote the transformation of frequency conversion motors,
automatically switch on/off the machines in the clean rooms
according to the season, and changed the conventional
lightings in the plant to energy-saving LED lightings, and
integrated air-compressed cooling water systems, etc. to
reduce waste of electricity through management means, in
order to increase the proportion of renewable energy use.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The use of fuel for the Group’s vehicles, as well as the use
of liquefied petroleum gas and diesel in factories, produced
Scope 1 (direct emissions) greenhouse gas emission, which
during the Year was approximately 137 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent. The source of Scope 2 (indirect emissions)
was purchased electricity, which emitted approximately
110,545 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent. The total
emissions during the Year were approximately 110,682
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent, and the emission
intensity was approximately 0.23 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent per thousand of products sales, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 5.3%.

Water resources

The major usages of water resources of the Group were water
for production, domestic water, greening and replenishment
of cooling tower, water screens and water for spray tower.
The data collection boundary during the Year incorporated
India Q Tech due to the increase in the proportion of India Q
Tech in the Group's revenue. During the Year, we consumed
approximately 1,593,021 m® of municipal water, representing
a decrease of 10.2% as compared to that of last year (the
base boundary has simultaneously included the data of India
Q Tech in 2022), while the total water consumption intensity
was approximately 3.29 m® per thousand of products sales,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 1.2%. There were no
issues in sourcing water that is fit for purpose during the Year.

The factory affairs department recorded and analysed the
production and domestic water consumption and regularly
inspected the water pipe equipment to prevent water leakage.
We reused the wastewater generated from production in
the flushing system in toilets in replace of fresh water. The
Group is committed to reusing waste water to preserve water
resources, and at the same time, minimising the harm of
waste water to the ecological environment, in order to ensure
the appropriate balance of economic development, social
responsibility and ecological conservation.
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IR - HERERHS

lll. Emission Monitoring and Control

The Group strictly monitors and controls the emission of the
wastewater, exhaust gas and waste (the "Three Wastes")
and generation of noise and ensures that the emission is in
compliance with the requirement of statutory standards. We
have set up emission targets for wastewater, exhaust gas and
noise and commissioned professional third-party institutions
for environmental inspection, achieving 100% complied
emission during the Year and 100% passing rate of the Three
Wastes inspection.

Waste

During the daily production, the Group established
the Management Regulation for Waste Chemicals and
Materials which stipulated the classification, collection and
treatment procedure of hazardous wastes of all production
departments. Hazardous waste was required to be stored
in specific containers and shall be processed by third-
party institutions recognised by the government, which
shall be engaged by the administration department. The
relevant records shall be regularly reported on the official
website of the local environmental authority of the place
where the production base was located. During the Year, the
Group transferred approximately 350 tonnes of hazardous
waste to qualified third-party institutions, with an intensity
of approximately 0.72 kg per thousand of products sales,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 12.3%. As India
Q Tech does not manufacture fingerprint recognition
module products involving spray coating process, there
is no hazardous waste generated that requires third party
treatment.

During the Year, the Group generated approximately 2,160
tonnes of non-hazardous waste in aggregate, with an intensity
of approximately 4.46 kg per thousand of products sales,
representing a year-on-year increase of 86.7%. Among
which approximately 865 tonnes of the non-hazardous
waste was domestic waste, and the rest was industrial
waste (construction waste and packaging materials). Before
executing contracts with contractors, we required them to
provide documents such as Treatment of Waste Regulations
(EEEYRRIEIEZENE)) and Environmental Guidelines
((3®E 5 $t)), to ensure that they duly processed
construction waste. Non-hazardous waste including domestic
waste and packaging materials shall be classified and stored
and shall then be handled by professional institutions.
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Wastewater

The Group formulated a wastewater management procedure
and handled industrial wastewater from factory area and
domestic wastewater in staff dormitory separately, in order
to ensure the wastewater discharge was in compliance with
the relevant standards. There are respective wastewater
pipes and rain water pipes in the factories. The domestic
wastewater shall be discharged to municipal wastewater pipe
network after processing in septic tanks. Factory workers
inspected the wastewater treatment system every day and
recorded the data of wastewater discharge and reported
it to the local work safety and environmental protection
department for filing on a monthly basis. In the past years, the
Group's wastewater discharges were counted as industrial
wastewater. In order to achieve a better monitoring effect,
the Group started to include domestic wastewater from
dormitories and offices in the counting boundary during
the Year. During the Year, the Group discharged a total
of approximately 396,599 cubic metres of wastewater,
representing a decrease of approximately 8.1% from 431,513
cubic metres in the same period last year (the base boundary
has simultaneously included the data of India Q Tech in 2022).

We established an industrial wastewater recycle system
pursuant to the Wastewater Recycling System Management
Regulation ((EEKEIAZRMREIEEBED), which filtered the
wastewater used for cleaning camera module products
and it would be recycled for the use in production line
in order to reduce consumption of water resources. We
continuously used the system of water reclamation and water
conservation. The remaining wastewater reached the Class |
Standard of Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard ({;5
KEZEHEMIZZE)) (GB8978-1996), it would be discharged
to the wastewater treatment plant for treatment together with
domestic wastewater through the municipal sewage pipe
network.

IR - HERESHS
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IR - HERERHS

Exhaust gas

During the Year, in order to strengthen the monitoring of
emissions from the plant and to verify the data in real time,
the Group set up testing points at 21 exhaust pipes in the
plant to monitor the emissions around the clock. According
to the monitoring results, a total of approximately 1,703
kg of total non-methane hydrocarbons (NMHs) and 360
kg of particulate matter (PM) were emitted during the Year
as a result of industrial production and combustion of
gasoline, representing a year-on-year decrease of 7.1%
and 59.6%, respectively. We encouraged employees to use
public transports or ride on bikes and regularly inspected
company vehicles to ensure the exhaust gas emission was
in compliance with the standards. With regard to the exhaust
gas generated in the production process, we controlled the
emission through a series of corresponding measures in order
to reduce the impact on the environment.

Exhaust gas emission procedure

BERARIF

Tin-containing exhaust gas in welding process

IRHBREEEN S HEER

Organic exhaust gas generated in the course of
spray-painting, drying, washing spray guns
RIER M BEABRESEAEELENEKER

Exhaust gas generated from the combustion of
liquefied petroleum gas in regenerative thermal oxidiser
REBRARCERERECAERELER

Organic waste generated from
the use of resin dispenser

ERMEMBEENAEKER

Exhaust gas not collected in the course of wiping,
spray-painting and washing spray guns
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Treatment method

BRIERE

Emission through 15m-tall emission pipes after filtering
with activated charcoal filter pads
LUEMRBRIRIERE 15K S PN E PN

Emission through two 15m-tall emission pipes after
filtering with high-efficiency filter pads and reprocessing

KRR BRRME  BRERCIRIGKSHFMREIK

Emission through the chimney of the oxidiser

BBRACIEBYE R FER

Exhaust gas treatment measures

R R TS I
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Noise

Noise pollution would be generated when the equipment of
the Group is in operation. In order to minimise the impact on
the employees and nearby residents, the Noise Management
Regulation ((I2Z BI2M%)) was formulated and a special
department was established by the Group to manage the
relevant matters. We introduced advanced noise prevention
and control technologies and used low-noise equipment
whenever possible. Indoor noise elimination treatment was
conducted in factories with loud noise generation and the
greening in factory area was enhanced to augment the sound
absorbing effect. These measures could effectively lower the
noise by about 15-30 decibel.
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IV. Response to Environmental Emergency

Incident

In order to ensure that the Group can maintain normal
operation in the event of material natural disaster, post-
disaster emergency team shall commence recovery work
in accordance with the Post-disaster Recovery Work
Regulation ((XBER(EEFRE)) under the guidance of
the General Manager's office. The factory affairs department
is responsible for the procurement of power facilities and
special equipment within three months to allow the factory to
resume production, while the administration department shall
arrange employees to work at other subsidiaries temporarily
and approach construction engineering department in order
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to minimise the impact of the disaster. Apart from emergency
incidents caused by natural disaster, we also formulated
emergency plans to tackle the leakage accidents in the
storage and use of dangerous chemicals for production.

Precaution Emergency measures Post-accident handling
FaBs HE b =)l BHRESERERE
e Possession of fire equipment e Prompt shift from normal e Scene clean-up and

and first-aid kits
B E A e = RER

production management
system to emergency
management system

equipment repair
BRI R ERE

e Regular emergency drill and TR ERLEEBERZRAE * Investigation in cause of
analysis and rectification of NAEWEERR accident
existing problems FEEHRE

EHRETERIBE  DITEAR e Cut-off of leakage source,
BREBEELE quarantine of accident area
and collection and cleaning
of leaked chemicals
DR RIRTE  [REE SN E
MK ERRZRRHICRE R

e Report of accident to
relevant departments

R _ERA RBIERPT

Emergency plan

FWE= 512
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Talent Management

Adhering to the recruitment principle of “open recruitment,
fair competition, just assessment, merit-based recruitment”,
the Group recruits talents from various channels such as on-
campus recruitment, labour market recruitment and factory
recruitment. We believe that "people are the goal", and
that only by respecting and developing each individual and
maximizing their value, can we achieve a win-win situation
for both the individuals and the company. The Group's
development of human resources has always focused
on two goals: maximizing personal value and maximizing
corporate value. We applied different recruitment methods in
a flexible manner, including on-campus recruitment, internal
recommendation, open recruitment and other means as well
as internal talent transferring, etc., to meet the talent needs of
different positions.

\\ outstanding individuals

% Vision AR B 1%
To build the best employer brand and work with
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090 High performance
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High caring

TEREREMME  REFHARM

Offer employees the best material rewards in the industry
EETESTERFNYERR

Select outstanding individuals and put them in the right positions
EWEFSHALBEEBENEAUL

Build a platform for everyone to achieve their best performance
B raEs—EARSHRESEN

Build a talent development path and allow outstanding
individuals get promoted quickly

BEATERRE BEFHAREREF

Treat staff sincerely and pay attention to their needs
REINZEREE BOHETYH
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IR - HERERHS

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 9,629
employees (including staff under labour service agreements
and internship agreements). The male and female employees
proportion was approximately 73:27 and the management
accounted for approximately 6.3% of the total number of
employees. With regard to the age profile, employees aged
below 30 accounted for approximately 72.2% whereas
employees aged 30 and above accounted for approximately
27.8%. In terms of education background, employees holding
university degrees or above accounted for approximately
15.3%.

The Group prohibits the involvement of any discrimination
based on race, social status, religion, gender, etc. in the
recruitment, remuneration and promotion affairs and strictly
complies with the relevant laws and regulations. The Group
has formulated and continuously used relevant labour
policies, including the Freedom of Association and Collective
Bargaining Management Procedure ({45t B R EREs8H)
EIERI)), the Employee Complaint Management System
(BT HREEH|E)), etc. to further protect employee’s
freedom and rights and clarify the channels for complaints
in case of incidents. During the Year, the Company held
the employee representatives congress, and the employee
representatives voted on the contents of the Employee
Handbook to encourage employees to participate in more
company affairs and enhance their sense of engagement.
During the Year, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance of relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, anti-discrimination and other
benefits and welfare.
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VI. Remuneration and Benefits

The Group safeguards the employees’ reasonable level of
salary and various benefits pursuant to the requirements.
We provided employees with a salary level which shall not
be lower than the minimum wage standards as required
by the local labour authority and shall cover or exceed the
basic needs of an employee. We encourage employees to
enhance work-hour utilisation rate and impose strict control
over overtime work and provide overtime reimbursement
in form of compensation leave or overtime fees. In addition
to basic salary, we also provide performance bonus, year-
end bonus, cash rewards and other rewards and benefits
for employees. The Group currently continuously uses the
Qualification Management System (({EEEREEFIE)),
the Management Measures for the Qualification Certification
Committee ((EBEBERIBZEFEEWE)), the
Personnel Change Management System ((AZ=EEHEIEH!
FE)), the Cadre Management System ({(#ZBEIRHIE)) and
the Salary Management Regulation ((3tZ&&BH#%)), etc.,
SO as to ensure that employees are offered the best material
rewards in the industry based on their abilities and efforts.

Child and Forced Labour Management

The Group forbids the employment of child labour under
the age of 16 and forced labour and the Administration
Measures on Child Labor and Underage Labor ((ZET K&k
A TEMEY%)) and other institutional documents were
formulated. By performing face recognition on candidates,
we verify consistency of their identity cards and themselves
and confirm whether they are of suitable employment age.
In the event of discovery of child labour, we would stop
the work immediately, and the department where the child
labour occurred would be directly responsible for ensuring
the safety of the employee, and ensuring that the child would
not be threatened or retaliated until the child is escorted
home or picked up by the guardian. The Group would
provide the child with physical or mental health support,
including psychological counselling, health check-ups, etc.,
based on the actual situation, and would bear all medical
and living expenses during the treatment period. When the
child reaches the legal age for employment, the Group would
consider prioritizing his/her employment, arrange jobs of the
original positions or better, and carry out related retrospective
management. Through a series of measures, his/her safety,
health and educational development would be ensured.

IR - HERESHS
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IR - HERERHS

In order to ensure that the employees can work in a peaceful
and willing environment, we prohibited forced labour and
checked in every internal inspection whether there was forced
labouring. If an employee experience forced labouring, he/
she can report such event verbally or in written form to the
representative of labour union or through the opinion box
pursuant to the Employee Complaint Management System
(EITHFEEHED). Once it is verified, the labour union
representative and the forced labour can report to the public
security bureau.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance of relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to prevention of child
and forced labour and there was no case related to child and
forced labour.

Employee Communication

The Group attaches high importance to the opinions of
employees and strived to establish a comprehensive
employee communication platform. Employees can
give feedbacks and consult advices through various
communication channels such as opinion box, WeChat,
“Sunshine Station”, complaint hotline and mailbox, talks, etc.
Among which, by virtue of the face-to-face communication
feature, “Sunshine Station” has become the first-choice
channel of the employees to give feedbacks and suggestions.
By visiting “Sunshine Station” directly, employees can
provide opinions of improvement in respect of canteen,
catered meals, accommodation, etc., or have mental health
consultation.

We also provided employees with large staff activity
centres and held diversified cultural and sports events,
such as company trip, club activity, birthday party, sports
competition, etc., in order to provide employees with internal
communication opportunities and help them achieve better
work-life balance, thereby allowing them to also obtain the
return of achieving industry-leading level in spiritual aspect.
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VIl. Training and Development

Adhering to the core value of “upholding striver spirit”,
the Group is committed to providing employees with skill
enhancement and career development opportunities in order
to augment the work satisfaction of the employees and
actualise their personal values. During the Year, the Group
implemented the Cadre Management System ((# 28 & 2
FEE)), which provides measurable standards and basis for
management processes such as the selection, appointment,
evaluation, assessment, motivation, development, rotation,
and reserve of cadres, to ensure the fairness and impartiality
of the process and results. The system helps the cadres
identify the career development channel and leads them to
learn things actively under qualification standard requirements
and achieve self-growth, thereby improving the quality of the
Company's talents, expanding the Company's talent pool and
promoting the optimisation of the Company's talent structure.

Talent Cultivation

The Group established a comprehensive pre-employment and
on-the-job training system to facilitate the learning and growth
of the employees and the establishment of talent team. For
new recruits, we provide induction training and provide work
licence training or mentorship training based on the features
of the positions. The eligibility of induction is subject to the
assessment of training.

Induction training
UN::2:-E

Work licence training
g EN
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Mentorship training
L5 Y 15 3

Trainings are provided to the
employees in respect of the
corporate system, culture,
occupational safety, etc.

and there are corresponding
assessments
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The production line workers shall
have work licence training and
those who pass the assessment
can obtain a work licence
TESETHET LEFE
BREZNE T ERS EEE

Pre-employment training
i G 25 3

Office worker on probation

shall have mentorship training
and can only become a regular
employee after passing various
assessments including regular
staff Q&A, assessment by
relevant department and mentor
assessment
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In order to enhance the professional capability of the
employees and help them accumulate experience, we
established company-level and department-level training
programmes, and the human resources department is
responsible for the supervision over the implementation of
trainings at department level. We understand the employee
training demand and the talent weakness faced by the
Group by conducting research, and assist the departments
to provide targeted trainings. During the Year, the Group
provided a number of key training programs for its employees,
including: 1) Eaglet Class training program, offering
induction training, in-workshop training, mentor-led training,
professional quality improvement training, employment
confirmation test, and exceptional promotion for new
employees, a total of 58 trainees completed the training and
assessment and graduated successfully; 2) launch of Kick-
start - Grassroots & newly promoted cadres, with a total of 41
cadres participated in the training for a period of 3 months,
which included 7 management courses and 1 "Keep Improve
Stop Start (KISS)" Action Report; with a cumulative total of 41
participants.

With the continuous development of the Company, it is
necessary to promote internal leading talents to "“internal
trainers" to impart important work-related knowledge
internally and share their experience. Experts from different
departments with different professional backgrounds brought
wonderful sharing in different fields to employees.
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During the Year, the Group continuously used “Q Tech Micro
Cloud School (B8t ZE 2 %) ", an online platform for internal
knowledge sharing, to train all business-related employees.
The platform allows 3,000 students to study online at the
same time. The main features of the platform are as follows:

1. Diverse learning application scenarios. The students can
experience a variety of learning forms, including online
learning, online examinations, O20 hybrid training mode,
On-the-Job Training (OJT) tutoring, job skills knowledge
control model, etc;

2. There are a total of more than 3,000 online courses, the
content of which covers management, sales, service,
human resources, finance, workplace literacy and other
content. The employees of the Group are also allowed to
freely upload and share knowledge;

3. Management are able to instantly understand the
learning status of the students through the big data
of the platform, and master the real-time and dynamic
growth profiles of students.
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Basic Knowledge
and Skills
FERES

Experience
Sharing

AN\
KED=E

By establishing a closed-loop procedure of “Talent Appraisal

To provide knowledge and skill trainings corresponding to the
characteristic of each position, enhancing employee competence

S S E M A R IR AR RO RS~ :EEIEF 1R B TRV ERAE

To share working experience by senior employees related to work
challenges and typical cases at work, which would become internal
resources

BRETEBOFT LM TIFABMNBRERG - B ITESRS =
HMEMET  ERANEIR

Various training methods such as internal trainer system, experience
sharing meeting, corporate quality and culture promotion seminar, etc.

R EREADZE EEMEAXEEHEESBEITLR

On-the-job training
TERIE S

FEBRBERIIATBE -BUAN

— Performance and Effectiveness Verification — Assessment
and Training”, the Group identified internal talents with high
potentials and provided them with development opportunities.

To satisfy business development needs, the Group
established dual-path career development, providing the
employees with two major career development paths, i.e.
management type and professional or technical type. We
respect the employees’ decision of career development and
the employees can choose their own career development
direction and decide to pursue promotion vertically in the
same path or switch to another based on their own strengths,
professional interests and the development plan of the Group.
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Chief
Specialist
BEER

Senior Specialist

Senior Manager Specialist
S ARASTE BEX

Deputy Manager/ Manager

Chief Engineer/ Chief Specialist
BIASE 48

TEIRM TEES

Management path Technical type path
EigEE Senior Engineer E 4k L1280,/ = HREES wfiimE
Engineer/ Specialist TH2f,/ H &
Assistant Engineer/ Junior Specialist B1IE Ti26f,/ #IARE 2

Dual-path career development

BYFIBEEEEE

VIll. Occupational Safety and Health . BELRHERRE

The Group cares about occupational safety and health of
employees and has strictly complied with relevant laws and
regulations. The Group has established a comprehensive
occupational health and safety system to prevent accident
and strived for providing a safe and healthy working
environment for employees. Currently, we have received the
ISO45001 certification, the certificate on ll-grade enterprise
of work safety standardisation and the compliance certificate
in terms of work safety. During the Year, the Group was
not aware of any violation of relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group on providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
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IR - HERERHS

Create Safe Production Environment

During production, employees face two major safety risks
of flammable and explosive as well as mechanical injury. To
create a safe and healthy production environment, the Group
has established a series of policies on safe production, which
focused on identified significant sources of risks, determined
control procedures such as target setting, management plan,
contingency plan and response. Through comprehensive
corporate safety risk assessment on factories including
production areas, employees living areas and public areas, we
have formed a “List of Company Safety Risks” to analyse all
kinds of risks. We used the information from the assessment
to further improve safe production standards and system and
optimise management and control measures. In addition,
adhering to the safety work policy of “Safety and Prevention
First”, we inspect daily production and system operation
regularly to eliminate existing or potential safety risks. The
number and rate of work-related fatalities in each of the past
three years (including the Year) is zero. During the Year, the
Group established and achieved the goal of zero fire and zero
chemical leakage
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Chemicals management
fEEmER

Fully consider storage space
during procurement, understand
conditions of safe storage,
production period and storage
period
RERTDZRERER T
EERENIEH - EERK
B REHAR

Sealed storage, separate
storage, clear labelling
BHEMH DHEER - RHER

Safety risk signs
Z 2 E kS AR

Fully consider storage space
during procurement, understand
conditions of safe storage,
production period and storage
period
RERZDEREHEBE T
BT ERNRHE -LEEMAK
BEHAR

Sealed storage, separate
storage, clear labelling
BHEMH DRER - RHBEE

Keep outbound records and use
them correctly

i yF B ik ~ IEREfE AR

IR - HERESHS

Safety check for equipment

RELZRZBE

e The factory affairs department
conducts monthly safety
inspection for workshop,
identifies issues and follows up
rectification results
BBEHNERHERETEZE
%2 > 5% 37 ) R I R M BE O
R

e Carry out safety performance
inspections on specific
equipment according to their
inspection cycles
EeBmBRE S EREET
Z2 4 sEin ke

Contingency plan

FESFEE

e FEstablish comprehensive
contingency plans and specific
contingency plans for various
potential safety incidents
HESHUEELENLZESE
WHERERRARENREIR
=S ES

e | aunch the response and carry
out remedy in occurrence of
incidents
EMBLENREREFHE
P

e Analyse process of incidents
and improve contingency
plans
ERNNEHIBRR CERR
=i

Management measures for safe production
et EEBEEN
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Create Safety Culture

In the operation process of carrying out environmental
safety and safety production, the Group has established
management systems for chemical management, safety
risk and potential risk investigation, emergency drills on fire
prevention and environmental protection emergency drill,
and has formulated education and training materials such
as Education and Training on Key Controlled Chemicals,
Specifications for Storage and Use of Hazardous Chemicals
and Specifications for the Use of Precursor Chemicals
and Explosive Chemicals for chemicals. We set up 12
special emergency drills annually, including fire evacuation
drills, chemical leakage emergency drills, construction
safety emergency drills and hazardous waste leakage
emergency drills, etc., and stipulate the frequency, rules
and organizational structure in the management system to
continuously and orderly carry out closed-loop procedures.

Meanwhile, the human resources department is responsible
for providing a health and safety training scheme. After
training, employees are required to pass an assessment
before they take up their roles. During the Year, we carried
out occupational health knowledge trainings in three major
directions: identification of occupational hazards, personal
protective equipment (PPE) and occupational health
management. During the Year, the Group’s total person-
times that have received occupational safety training reached
19,995 and total training hours was approximately 21,300
hours.
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Prevention of Occupational Diseases

The Group has developed the Management Measures
on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases
(B =R REs EEHEE)) to prevent, control and
eliminate occupational diseases and protect employees’
physical and mental health. We fulfill disclosure obligations
on occupational disease risks in compliance with the laws,
clearly inform employees risk factors and consequences
exposing at work and provide them with correspondence
PPE precautions. In addition, occupational health checks
are required before new employees start working, and health
checks for current employees exposing to occupational risks
have been arranged to monitor staff health. Health checks
will be provided when employees exposing to occupational
risks request to resign. If occupational risk factors in working
environment are found inconsistent with health standards,
the competent department shall carry out rectifications
immediately. The environmental safety department shall
follow up and reassess the rectifications continuously until in
conformity with national health standards. During the Year, the
Group even passed the final assessment of Suzhou Health
Commission and was awarded the Excellent Demonstration
Enterprise of Occupational Disease Prevention and Control.

Response to Emergency Safety Incident

To control the impact of loss and casualties from risks on
the Group, we have established a “Contingency Plan” to
effectively respond to emergency safety incidents such
as earthquake and explosion. In case of significant risk
anomalies, we shall initiate the emergency response team
at once and assign responsibilities in regard of department
functions and professional characteristics in an endeavour to
minimise impact of emergencies.
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IX. R&D Innovation L. BHEEEIFR

The Group has continuously promoted R&D of new products
and new processes, with an emphasis on the R&D of module
technologies such as miniaturization, ultra-high pixel cameras,
and new optical image stabilization to strive for satisfying
customers’ product innovation needs and to provide
consumers with better products and experience. As of 31
December 2023, the Group had 114 authorised and valid
inventions patents, 480 utility model patents and a total of
423 inventions and utility model patents under application and
review process.

Intellectual property protection

The Group has formulated the Intellectual Property
Management Practices ((HIBEREIEEEIE)) to
regulate patent application and management work. Upon
filing of a project, the patent engineer will keep in touch
with the R&D engineer in charge of the project to learn
comprehensively the technology solution for project design
and carry out patent layout specifically. The Group also
screens existing technology through third-party searching
tools to prevent infringement. We have also submitted
relevant information to the patent firm for secondary screening
to ensure no risk of infringement. Based on the patent rating
results, we will determine the type of patent application and
award the patent inventor with invention bonus according to
patent rating. During the Year, the Group has strictly complied
with relevant laws and regulations and did not involve in any
litigation regarding infringement of intellectual property.

Technical
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Project-level patent application process
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Supplier Management

Qualified and responsible suppliers are essential to the
quality of the products provided by us. Through enhancing
development and regular assessment and management
on suppliers, we ensured stable supply of qualified and
reasonably-priced materials and services by suppliers in
long run. To timely identify procurement risks, the Group has
analysed suppliers’ resource pool, material supply risks and
procurement price regularly. If risks are found, procurement
strategies will be adjusted immediately. During the Year, the
Group had 483 qualified suppliers in total, most of which were
located in China.

Social Responsibility of Suppliers

With global social responsibility as objective, we have
implemented socially responsible procurement. Through
signing the Corporate Social Responsibility Agreements ({7t
¥t EEHE)) (the “CSR Agreements”), we set out social
responsibility requirements to be followed by suppliers when
they provide products or services to facilitate sustainable
development of the industry value chain.

The Group’s qualified supplies are required to obtain the
ISO45001 Occupational Safety Management Systems
certificate and the ISO14001 Environment Management
Systems certificate and enhance CSR system establishment
and implementation in respect of human rights, health
and safety, environment protection, business ethics, social
responsibility and management according to the signed CSR
Agreements. We also require qualified suppliers to list CSR
as requisite conditions or threshold criteria for the selection
of new suppliers so as to extend sustainable development to
second-tier suppliers.

We evaluate suppliers’ CSR performance regularly and carry
out on-site review from time to time. If suppliers are found
to fail in fulfilling requirements under the agreements, we
will require timely improvements by them; if suppliers are
found to have serious CSR issues or fail to make timely
improvements, we will reduce orders gradually or even
terminate cooperation.
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Substance Control

To enhance environmental and toxic and hazardous
substance control from the source, the Group has obtained
the IEC/QC080000 Hazardous Substances Process
Management System since 2013. We have also signed the
Supplier Management on Environmental Material Agreement
(EEERERYMEBIERZ)) with suppliers to specify our
expectations on the fulfilment of green and environmental
responsibilities by the suppliers. At the same time, the Group
has included responsible mineral procurement clauses in the
procurement contracts of suppliers, requiring suppliers to
formulate policies to reasonably ensure that they and their
suppliers do not support the use of minerals from conflict
areas.
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Suppliers are encouraged to convey the contents of the agreements to second-tier suppliers

BBHEER BEANTEEE _RIHEER

/

If the material batches provided by suppliers are not environmentally friendly, the Group is entitled to

request for compensation and investigate legal liability of suppliers as the case may be

EHEBRERHNYHNMETRFR FEEERERBETFABEREREEBIEEEE

Toxic and hazardous substance control requirements for suppliers

BEEBEEWEREREZES
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Supplier Communication

The Group is committed to maintaining sound and effective
communication with suppliers and ensure consistent
information and objective of both parties through interactions
with suppliers in respect of core value and procurement
vision. In addition, we also provide integrity training for
suppliers and explained specific contents and violation under
the Incorruptible Procurement Agreements ({F% ¢ FE 7
%)) signed to the suppliers in order to achieve the goals
of cooperating in good faith and realising win-win situations.
During the Year, we required all suppliers to conduct self-
inspection and provide the Incorruptible Procurement Self-
Inspection Report ((FZYtiREE BRI S )) to ensure the
effective implementation of relevant policies.

Quality Assurance

The Group’s quality policy is “Standardised management,
technology innovation, continuous improvement, customer
satisfaction”. Through combining industry characteristics,
we have carried out quality management work orderly and
pursued continuous enhancement of products and service
quality. We have obtained certification of the 1SO9001:2015
Quality Management System and set out quality management
roles of all departments in the Quality Manual ((B&F
f#)). Among which, the technology department is required
to understand technology and parameter requirements
under contracts or orders correctly, analyse the Group’s
technology capability to meet contracts or orders and
ensure that the Group is capable to provide products that
meet customers’ requirements. The quality department is
responsible for product quality examination of raw materials,
production process, finishing process and delivery process.
All departments are responsible for their own functions
and coordinated with one another. During the Year, there
was no product recalled for safety and health reasons, so
the percentage is zero. The Group has strictly complied
with relevant laws and regulations and was not aware of
any violation of laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group regarding health and safety, advertising,
advertising and confidentiality of products and services and
remedies during the Year.

IR - HERESHS

HEREBE

FERRNRNEHRERFRFRFANN
AR EBROEERARERIESES
EAHEHETES BEEHZEMN
BR—Roltih AT HERREM
BRZRIE > B e BRI (B
B NARANSTRERNRRA  Z2H
EEF - BRARNEN -FR HME
KREFEMHEREE LR MG RER
RIS ) ERERRRNAREE -

. BERE

EENEERHRRLEE  RMTA
MoBEE -BEREmE  BBRESTT
ERHCAFAREEEEIMF EX
EmRBEENFEED -HMES
iBISO9001:2015 B EBIRAB R VHE > W
R(EEFM)IAXMPANESEER
B H RS FEEREESRE ]
BRRMARZ2HER DHWEBRES
EEE] BRI E ) RERAREN
REtMEEFEXRNER -EEHEET
RAE HIZBE - miBE HEBRE
MEMBERR WAL THEHRB B
BEG AFETEERANZEEEE
ERMmMARY BotERT - KEERE
RETHRENARER  WANBRERN
FRERAMEHERMREBHERSA
ZE2 EE RERMBEEURBHY
HENERERENEERENERT
ENEEH-

20235 ESR EE) BR28 149



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IR - HERERHS

Protection from Electrostatics

Preventing and eliminating static electricity risks at storage
and production site play a key role in stabilising and
enhancing product yield and quality. We required class 10
clean room workshops, fingerprint workshops and working
areas involving electrostatic discharge device within the
factory to be strictly conformed with the ESD Protection and
Control Procedures ((ESDBFz£#ZEHIF2R)) and perform
electrostatic protection and control works comprehensively.
Receiving electrostatic knowledge training and education
was a basic requirement for employees working at the anti-
static work areas and also the fundamental method to reduce
static electricity risks. Employees must receive electrostatic
protection training and pass certification. In addition, we
carried out regular examination on anti-static work areas,
checking all equipment, major areas and whether employees
training was qualified so that we could identify issues and
adopt rectification measures in a timely manner.

Disposal of Unqualified Products

We have rigidly controlled and disposed of unqualified
products (including doubtful products) arising from
procurement, production and processing and after delivery. In
compliance with the Unqualified Products Control Procedures
(FERERZEHRFE)), we have adopted different
disposal methods for unqualified products discovered from
different processes in order to prevent unqualified products
from unexpected use or delivery.

Handling Customers’ Complaints

We have accepted customers’ feedback and complaints
sincerely, strived for handling customers’ complaints properly
in shortest time and satisfied other requests from customers
as far as we could to maintain customers’ satisfactory.
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Formulate and

Record customers’
complaints

ERVAE S

Confirm customers

complaints

il (E S HESTD

implement
preventions and
interventions

Analyse and put
forward solutions

S RERERR

2 B Bk B E 1E

e after receiving e if the events complained
customers’ by customer is true,
complaints, confirm record such events and
severity and specific notify all internal units
circumstances of the within 1 hour

e focus on the quality
issues reflected by
customers’ complaints,
carry out inspections
on the same batch of

e carry out in-depth
analysis on events
reflected by customers’
complaints and
formulate short term and

events complained by GBI EHES products within 1 hour long term remedies
customers by way of on- 1N 1T 1L 2R 3@ A and confirm disposal HEFEERBOEHS
site and email within 3 7 BB = AE A B L method for doubt EITRED TR
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BERFHREER 3N HERFRBENEERN
REERIRIG BHES B UNREREZALER
R %.ﬁ%#ﬁ’]l‘% EFETHAE WD
EERERER ERMNEEAR
Customer Complaint Handling Procedure
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“Meeting customers’ requirements, ensuring information
security, complying with laws and regulations as well as
improving management continuously” is the Group’s policy
direction on the information security management. We
understand that information security is of utmost importance
to the corporate management. The Group’s information
security management system was certified with the

ISO/IEC27001:2013 standard.

By analysing the conditions of each information asset and
other factors, we identify the threats faced by all information
assets and assess the risk level and possible degree of loss.
The “Risk Management Plans”
assessment result to clearly state the responsible department

is formulated based on the

for risk management, approach and time frame. Moreover, we
attach great importance to the information security training for
our employees to improve their awareness and capabilities of
information security.
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HRPTEREINER LRI UE
SEENEERE2EMKRES -
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We strengthened the implementation of measures related
to internal security and customer privacy. In addition to
daily propaganda, all employees were required to sign a
confidentiality agreement and were not allowed to bring
mobile phones when entering the production area. The Group
also established a dedicated customer area where entry of
irrelevant personnel and competitors was prohibited, and
arranged for employees in key positions to use computers
without access to the internet and USB ports.

In order to test the operating effectiveness of the information
security management system and its compatibility with
the Group’s operations, we organise an internal review for
the information security scope and direction as well as the
effectiveness of control measures at least once a year, so as
to continuously improve the information security management
system.

Xlll. Building Integrity

The Group is committed to operating its business with
fairness, honesty, integrity and transparency, and opposes
obtaining commercial or personal benefits through, whether
directly or indirectly, bribery. In addition to complying with
relevant laws and regulations, we have formulated internal
policies including the “Management System of Anti-Unfair
Competition and Prevention of Insider Trading” and the
“Honesty and Self-discipline and Anti-Fraud Management
System” to strengthen internal integrity management and
ensure a healthy and sustainable development for the Group.

We require all employees, including managers and directors,
to adhere to business ethics management, and always strive
to maintain a fair relationship with customers, suppliers,
competitors and the public. It is prohibited to obtain or
maintain business relationships by bribery, kickbacks or
offering money to other person in any direct or indirect
way. Employees shall not take or illegally receive properties
by taking advantage of their positions. Moreover, we have
extended the integrity works to the employment mechanism
to prevent nepotism. For personnel promotion, salary
adjustment, rewards and appraisal, employees with higher
rank and having intimate relationship with the appraisee
should be avoided.
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Whistle-blowing Policy

The audit specialist and internal audit department of the
subsidiary are the Group’s anti-fraud reporting centre,
which is responsible for accepting reports and complaints
of fraudulent practice as well as recording, reporting,
investigating and following up on disciplinary violations. In
order to effectively prevent fraudulent practice, we encourage
our employees to report disciplinary violations by phone,
email, etc. The audit specialist and internal audit department
of the subsidiary regularly check whether the reporting
channels are functional or not. After receiving a report, the
audit specialist and internal audit department of the subsidiary
will conduct an investigation and report the investigation
result to the management with suggestions for rectification
and treatment, so as to assist the management in carrying
out remedial measures. During the Year, the Group was not
aware of any violation of laws and regulations related to the
prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering
which had a significant impact on the Group, nor did it involve
any corruption cases.

IR - HERESHS

RIWHR

B EERNBARNEBHELAEH
REHEFRZEDRL EEREHNHEE
TRNERRF HELCERTAEST
S ER HERBRERI - HAEXN
e BRTrn RSB ETRBRR
B BFHBESHANERELERT
7 B EERMB AR ANEIEEH
RERMRERTHE RWEBERE
BE BSHEERNBATANEIER
RE URBAEEREREEER &
HEANEERZ HHEERBREMS
M FR > REB L AANEERE
REMBIEERE R BEE Rt ERE
A RAR B A EBEREATEN
FEH TEIREMNESEZRE

Whistle-blower protection measures:

e  Reporting information and record is confidential

e  Whistle-blower can choose to report anonymously

e Those who violate the rules to disclose the information
of whistle-blower or take revenge on the whistleblower

will be punished accordingly or even transferred to law
enforcement authorities for handling

RHREFREHEE

o HBREBMBRITHRE

s BRRETNEZFERER

e HERABBEREESENH
ﬁ%ﬁ%t"ﬂ%%ﬁ@ﬁ’])\

B M THEREEERX
EREKRARIE
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Integrity Education

We pay great attention to integrity education. Trainings and
communication activities for professional code of ethics are
organised on a regular basis. The anti-fraud policies and
whistle-blowing procedures are promoted by the Group
through employee manuals, rules and systems and internal
networks to ensure our employees understand the full
content of anti-fraud policies and clarify their responsibilities
in complying with anti-fraud policies. We also conduct
integrity trainings and sign integrity agreements with relevant
employees. If a material fraudulent event is discovered to
be universal, we will notify all employees and make it as a
warning.

XIV. Community Engagement

As a group with a commitment to community responsibility,
we are actively engaged in the construction and development
of local communities and work together with the new Xinxi
community and neighbourhood centres around the enterprise
to build and create a community service team, and actively
participate in the construction of community facilities, take
care of widows and orphans, environmental protection and
other activities. The Group has a "Red Titanium Sun (4L$k
[%)" volunteer team, which has been successfully registered
in the "Volunteer Kunshan (&8 ELL)" in the current year, and
the volunteers who are in good health with basic qualities
suitable for the volunteer service projects and activities
they participate in. The Company has a total of 110 people
participated in our volunteer activities.
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Laws and Regulations ERREMR

For different ESG Report aspects, the Group strictly complies with HHEAARE HEREAREER
the applicable national laws and regulations listed in the following AEEBBETERERNERER
table: WHIR TR :

Corresponding

Aspect Applicable Laws and Regulations Sections

[EmE BRANERRZER HESHE
Emissions ° Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Emission

B4

Control of Atmospheric Pollution Monitoring and
(REARHEMBEARSREBED Control
PR 1%

Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China
(REARHEMBEIKS R EE)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes
(REARHENMBEIERBEEY S RIRENAE)

Soil Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China
(REARHEMBE L ZSREARED

Cleaner Production Promotion Law of the People’s Republic of
China
(REARHEMBEBZEEREE)

Directory of National Hazardous Wastes
(Bl =R 1 B BE ) 4 % )

Integrated Emission Standards of Air Pollutants
(RRISEAMEGZSHIRE)

Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standards
CaKER B BEIRE )

Standards on Storage and Pollution Control of Hazardous
Wastes ) )
(B EEYiT 75 R HIRE)

Emission standard of air pollutants for coal-burning oil-burning
gas-fired boile\r )
(SRIE KRS RYBFARE)

Occupational exposure limits for hazardous agents in the
workplace Part 1: Chemical hazardous agents
(LS ESREBEZEBERESIH D  CEFERR)

Occupational exposure limits for hazardous agents in the
workplace Part 2: Physical agents
(CEBMEERZWEZFBIRES2E D - MIERR)
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Corresponding

Aspect Applicable Laws and Regulations Sections
[EmE BERBERRIER HESH
Resources ° Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China  Resources
Consumption . (PEANREMBE A EERE) Consumption
BRER BIRFER

e  Circular Economy Promotion Law of the People’s Republic of

China

J (PEAREMBBIRLE(REE)
Environmental and e Environmental Protection Law of the People’'s Republic of Environmental
natural resources China Management
RIBRRAEIR . (PEARHEMBEIIRIEREL) RIREE

Response To
Environmental

Emergency
Incident
FEHEEIRIFEH
Employment e Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China Talent Management
12 & J (REARHEMEBEEEE) N =
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China
(REARHEMBESESRZE)
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
&8 (115 )
Health and safety ° Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China Occupational
BEEZE . (hPEAREMRZZ2EEL) Safety and Health
HEZTHERE

Regulations of Jiangsu Province on Work Safety
CIBEEZ2EERA)D

Fire Control Law of the People’s Republic of China
(REANRHEFMBEIERZE)

° Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Treatment of Occupational Diseases

(PEARAMBEBERNGE)
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Corresponding

Aspect Applicable Laws and Regulations Sections
fEm BRANERRZER HESH
Labour standards e  Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour Talent

BT AR

(BRIEERETIRE)

° Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of
Minors

o (PEARKEMBIRMEAFREE)

Management-Child
and Forced Labour
Management
ATEE-BTK
BHE T ERE

Product
responsibilities
EmEE

e Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China
o (REARHENMBEBEREEZE)

o Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests

o (PEARHMBUSEERZFREL)

o Intellectual Property Law of the People’s Republic of China

o (PEARHKMBIMBERZE)

e Tort Law of the People’s Republic of China
. (REARHEMBEFSEEEE)

e Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China
. (PEARHEMBEZEFNE)

o Hong Kong Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance

o FE(EABK FLRR) 1A )

R&D Innovation
i En

Quality Assurance
HE2RE

Information
Security
BEEZ2

Anti-corruption

RERE

e  Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China

o (PEARHKMBEINE)

e Anti-unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China

o (PEARHZAMBRFEERFE)

e Hong Kong Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
o BB MILBEREG)

Building Integrity
BRER
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Performance Data Summary

Note: Starting from 2023, the data statistical boundary has been
included the India operation (except for the three waste emission
data). Meanwhile, in order to present a more realistic picture of
the Group's performance in various issues and to make effective
comparisons, the data for 2022 are restated according to the new
boundary diameter statistics, and the statistical items, basis of
measurement and collection methods have been simultaneously
adjusted according to the substantive impact of operating activities
on the issues.

BIRRERHE

i TR FRRBERSERMANE
DB FR=BEEBEREESN) - ARAEAEESR
RAEEESZENRRLFHBEWLLE
TR THFHBRTNBROERES

TR REEETHHZENEEETE
AR THREEE O RBER X

Exhaust Gas Emissions EXmBEn 2

Non-methane hydrocarbons (kg) 3FFRIG48IE (A fr) 1,833 1,703
Particulate matter (PM) (kg) S&EBRL(PM) (AF) 890 360
Total wastewater discharge (m®) EE/KBEMARE (3275 K) 396,599 431,513
COD discharge (kg) CODHEE (& FT) 21,457 50,811
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) (kg) TABHE (&) 2,687 10,037
Waste EE WY

Non-hazardous waste BmEBEEY

Industrial waste (tonne) TR (ANE) 237 893
Domestic waste (tonne) 4oEIIR (AE) 425 865
Hazardous waste BEEEY

Hydrocarbons and water BERB8 ALK

mixtures for ultrasonic HCREW) (RME)

cleaning (tonne) 176.3 108.7
Industrial glue and hose (tonne) T 2PBKBE (ANE) 9.7 8.7

Environmental Waste alcohol soaked wiping — BEESEiR A (ANE)

RIg cloth (tonne) 20.1 14.7
Waste ethyl acetate for BAREEEEN
cleaning lances (tonne) BE 2.8 2.5 (/AME) 81.6 33.6
Waste paint empty bucket BEHR TR (AME)

(tonne) 17.4 4.7
Waste paint residue (tonne) BEHIR B ( A THE) 10.0 3.1
Waste tooling (tonne) EEa E (RN 0 0
Waste filter material [BE 48 8 2.0 0
Liquid waste from the water KERER (RN

screens (tonne) 166.8 75.3
Sludge (tonne) 75E (A HR) 7.2 10.4
Waste activated carbon (tonne) EE5&M4 R (A ME) 12.9 17.3
Waste grease (tonne) EE A NE (RNE) 0.4 0.2
Waste cutting fluid (tonne) ffﬂJﬁJ/TQ ONL)) 0.7 0.5
Packaging container (tonne) 28 (R mE) 1.1 3.9
Waste tin paste box F;ﬁ%,s 0.5 0.01
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Environmental
i

Greenhouse Gas

Total emissions
(tonnes of CO2e)

Direct emissions (Scope 1)
(tonnes of CO2e)

Indirect emissions (Scope 2)
(tonnes of CO2¢)

Emission intensity (tonnes/
‘000 pcs sales volume)

Total resource consumption

Direct energy

Gasoline (litre)

Diesel (litre)

Indirect energy

Electricity consumption (kWh)

Tap water (m3)

Packaging material
consumption

Carton (tonne)

Tray (tonne)

BERE
kM E
(AMEZEEHREE
HiEHW (EBE—)
(A _EREE
MEPEN EE D)
(AEZEERES
= E
(AME/ FTHERHES)
BRHESES
BHEER
AR (B F)
50m (2 F)
SEETPE
HBEE (TRE)
B kK (3275 K)
BEMREES

ARAE (AR
B (Am)

128,207

132

128,074

0.24

49,721

4,756

209,924,448

1,773,015

251
109
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110,681

137

110,545

0.23

51432

8429

181,191,403

1,593,021
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Employees
8T

Total headcount (Note)
By gender

Male

Female

By professional profile
Managerial personnel
Non-managerial personnel
By age

<30

30-50

>50

By educational background

University degree or above

Below university degree

Total staff turnover rate

By gender

Male

Female

By age

<30

30-50

>50

By geographical region

PRC

Overseas

Occupational safety and
health training

Total number of trainees

Total training hours

Occupational safety and
health performance

Number of work accidents

Number of workers injured

Lost working days due to
workrelated injury

Work-related fatalities
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EUN M)
55
LR

gegic
HEE D
BEHAE
FFBIERAE
Feoh
<30

30-50

>50

BRED
KB LEFE
KEBLUTERE
BITHREKE
=R

LRk

g

REWR

30-50
>50
it 15
E
NEP)

BERERERE

B AR
1 311 4B B 21

BEZZRERY

IHEERHE
RHIZEA#K

HIEEEIFEH

AT ET A&

7,780

5,760
2,020

698
7,082

5,095
2,661
24

1,425
6,355
10.0%

11.1%
7.5%

11.8%
4.0%
16.7%

10.1%

9.4%

19,875
20,800

9,629

6,993
2,636

605
9,024

6,948
2,651
30

1,476
8,153
11.9%

13.4%
7.8%

14.3%
4.3%
0%
12.2%

8.8%

19,995
21,300

11
11
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Suppliers
SRR

Community
#HE

Total number of suppliers

Supplier profile — by type

Material supplier

Consumables supplier

Equipment suppliers

Supplier profile — by
geographical region

Mainland

Hong Kong

Other regions

Investment in public welfare
(RMB’0,000)

Voluntary work (hours)

AR R e (18)
MR M —1REER
MRS ()
EMERES (@)
R EMERS (@)
HEFDH—EHME

Pyt (fE)

&8 (f8)

Hithith & (18)
RuEBA (BTARE)

&5 LIF UNE)

424

257

117

50

395

20

10
500
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CONTENT INDEX

REE5I

KPIs
R A IS 1R

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
EBXSA(RIE-HEREARIESINEXR

A Environmental 1818

Section/Remarks

- P F

Aspect A1:
EmAT:
Emissions

HER

General Disclosure

— R

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into

water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

waste.

ERBERARAERBYR mKkRTtHNE S - EERESEEY

HNELERN

Emission Monitoring
and Control, Laws and
Regulations

BT AR ROER

(a) B ; & i

) BFHBTABEAXENER AZERAANER -

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions Performance Data

RAS A data. Summary
S1ZA1.1 BE Y B LR M B R R B o HIERAEE

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) Performance Data

RARAEN greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where  [Summary
FE1EAL.2 appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production |HiEXRIRHE

volume, per facility).

B (8E1) e REE (BE2) RERBIHKE
(UMt H) e (ER) BE WIUSES BN
FIERME) °

KPI A1.3
RASEIAE N
1512A1.3

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FFTEEEEEEYRE (UEASE) kK (WER) &
EWMNUSESEN SEEZHETE) -

Performance Data
Summary

HERRBE

KPI A1.4
RASRAE
FE1EA1.4

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FREEEREEEYRE (UMEE) kK (MER) &
EWUSEEE A -BERKME) -

Performance Data
Summary

FERERE

KPI A1.5
BB
151RA1.5

Description of emission target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

H PRI LN HE N E BB R B EDE LB EME
EXHY 4 B o

Emission Monitoring
and Control

P E

KPI A1.6
RABEE N
I51ZA1.6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, and a description of
reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

HRIEEERBEEEYNG L REHPIET
T HREE B IR R E RS B AR PR ERE Y & B o

Emission Monitoring
and Control

BRI B %
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KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
af S g i EBRGA(RIR-HEREBHRIESIVEX =30 Fi
Aspect A2: General Disclosure Resources
[BmA2: — MR E Consumption
Use of Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water BERFEA
Resources and other raw materials.
BiRER BXRERER (BEEIR K EEMERERME) BB -
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by Performance Data
RASRAEN type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh Summary
IE1ZA2.1 in’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production |#IEXRIRTHE
volume, per facility).
BRI SMNER R HEEER (WME A
) AFEE UTETRESS RBE WASE
BB -SERMHE)
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per |Performance Data
RABEE X unit of production volume, per facility). Summary
151EA2.2 )%%7&%&%%@ (MUEBESEE MU BERKRM HEREWE
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set Resources
RARAEN and steps taken to achieve them. Consumption
$51EA2.3 BAMPTE] YA REAN G ER R AEIELEE |BRHEHR
1B P IRER B9 2 B o
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in Resources
RABEE sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water Consumption
F51BA2.4 efficiency initiatives and results achieved. BIRFER
i SR EUGE B AR E R BRI RE YRR A
K 5T B R PRIG R R ©
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished Performance Data
RASRAEN products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with Summary
I51ZA2.5 reference to per unit produced. SiERIFEE
S mPrABEMENESE (UESHE) & (N#E
B 84ESfE=E-
Aspect AS: General Disclosure Environmental
[EHEAS: — ARG E Management
Environmental | Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the RIEEE
and natural environment and natural resources.
resources BEETAHBRERARARERERERTZENEE
};i;gﬁ KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities Environmental
RASRIAERN on the environment and natural resources and Management,
FE1EA3.1 the actions taken to manage them. Response to
BREBRTHHRBERRABERNEAFERE  |Environmental
KRNEEEREZENTH- Emergency Incident
RIEEERHEEIR
RS
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KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
RSB NMIER EBRGA(RIR-HEREBHRIESIVEX BEfEeE
Aspect A4: General Disclosure Environmental
[BmA4: — RN E Management
Climate Identification and Mitigation RIREE
Change Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-
mIEEME related issues which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer.
i Bl B FE
HAREHERKAEEHETAELERENEARBEENRSE
R ER o
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related Environmental
RASEAAE N issues which have impacted, and those which Management
EEA4A may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to RIEEIE
manage them.
BB RAEGHETAELELENEARTE
HEAEE KEHITHO
Aspect B1: General Disclosure Talent Management,
[EmB1: — R E Laws and Regulations
Employment |Information on: AT EENEREER
1= 1% (a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

EREFNRER - BEREA TEFE - BRBE -FERET 27T

s RERUKREMGBERBR :

(@) BR 5 & i )

(o) BFHETABEAZENEREZERRAINER o

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for Performance Data

RARAEN example, full-time or part-time), age group and Summary
}I51EB1.1 geographical region. giEXIHEE

BRI BRI (2B R « T8 AR Kt
BE DR RSB

KPI B1.2
R A
$518B1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group
and geographical region.

BRI FERAER R EREDHNEERALLR-

Performance Data
Summary

BERERE
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Development
and Training

R R

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
RSB NMIER ERAXRZFR(RE - HERERRIESIDER =30 F
Aspect B2: General Disclosure Occupational Safety
[EEB2: — R % B and Health, Laws and
Health and Information on: Regulations
Safety (a) the policies; and BEZ20EE AR
BEHZS (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a FER
significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
BRRRHZE2TFRERREEEFEHEECEN
(a) B ; &
(o) BFHETABEAXENERZERRANER o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities Occupational Safety
BSR4 occurred in each of the past three years including |and Health
E1EB2.1 the reporting year. BxZ2bHEE
BE-F (BHEERFE) SFRITHNA#K
e
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Performance Data
RRSRAAK FIHELRTIFRS- Summary
$518B2.2 BERRHE
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and Occupational Safety
R S 45 3K safety measures adopted, and how they are and Health
$512B2.3 implemented and monitored. BxZ2bfEER
HMPT IR ZE R B E T 2R U R ERH
TRERFE
Aspect B3: General Disclosure Training And
B mEB3: —RIEE Development

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

ERRAESRT LIFB BN B RN BR - IS -

a8k

KPI B3.1
RASBAEN
}51ZB3.1

The percentage of employees trained by gender
and employee category (e.g. senior management,
middle management).

RUENREESERN NEREEE -PREERE)
BomMZIMEET DL

Performance Data
Summary

HERRBE

KPI B3.2
RRSAE
}51€B3.2

The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category.
BRI REEERE D SLEBTMZIINF
R 8 o

Performance Data
Summary

HEREBE
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KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
RSB NMIER BERARXZFR(RE - HEREBRIESIDER =3
Aspect B4: General Disclosure Talent Management,
[ mB4: — RN E Laws and Regulations
Labour Information on: AT BIENERRER
Standards (a) the policies; and
% T8 (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRABG L& T 35655 T !

(a) BUZR ; &

o) ETHETABEAXENEREZERRANER -

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment Talent Management

R &K practices to avoid child and forced labour. Nz

1518B41 | RiRs RIS IEAIM IS LR R E T R4
To
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such Talent Management
RARAERN practices when discovered. AT ERE
{51EB4.2 i 7F 3% 3R 8 FR B U IR H PR A BB PR ERER A &
B

Aspect B5: General Disclosure Supplier Management
€ EmB5: — R 2 g IR
Supply Chain |Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply
Management [chain.
HAEHEEE ERHEEMNIRERT SRR

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Performance Data
RASE AR EM& s DM EHEREE - Summary
}54EB5.1 HEXREWE
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging Supplier
RABEE X suppliers, number of suppliers where the Management
}512B5.2 practices are being implemented, how they are HEmEE
implemented and monitored.
A MERHEENEN mHERITHERESG
NEEEHE URBRAIEANNITRERF £
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify Supplier
RABEE N environment and social risks along the supply Management
$512B5.3 chain, and how they are implemented and HEmEE
monitored.
B A HER S EIRNIRIE g R
BRI LA HITRER &
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote Supplier
RABEE X environmentally preferable products and services |Management
i51ZB5.4 when selecting suppliers, and how they are HrEmEE

implemented and monitored.
LT PR FE B R R 2 IR R E m IR B
B URAERAITRERS A
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIR B RERHS

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
af S g i EBRGA(RIR-HEREBHRIESIVEX =30 Fi

Aspect B6: General Disclosure R&D Innovation,

[ EB6: — R E Quality Assurance,
Product Information on: Information Security,
Responsibilities | (a) the policies; and Laws and Regulations
EmEE (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a EEBF B ERE

significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods
of redress.
BRFFREERMRBNREREZE - BES RERMBESFEUR
W ERN

BEEREERRER

(a) BUZR ; &

(o) EBFHETABEAZENEREZERRANER -

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped Quality Assurance
RABEE N subject to recalls for safety and health reasons. BE2RE

151%B6.1 CENCEBXEM@BPEREEEREMMA

BB DL

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related Quality Assurance
A B A %K complaints received and how they are dealt with. |&E&21R:%
51%B6.2 REBMNRERERBRBNEFBEEUREHF %
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and |R&D Innovation
RS AR K protecting intellectual property rights. ot 25 Bl ET
$51ZB6.3 i B A 2B I (RPB AN S E HE B RARVIB A 0
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and Quality Assurance
RASRAEN recall procedures. BERE
1512B6.4 HIEEMEBREREREBWRER-
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and Information Security
RABEE X privacy policies, how they are implemented and =EZE
}51€B6.5 monitored.
U B & B RMRE R A BB » U ERA T
KB %o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IR - HERERHS

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
A A IR R EBRGA(RIR-HEREBHRIESIVEX BEfEeE
Aspect B7: General Disclosure Building Integrity,
[EHEB7: — MR E Laws and Regulations
Anti- Information on: FRRER ERRER
corruption (a) the policies; and
R&ES (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BRABA IERRRE ~ $1R ~ MREF R R IRAY ¢
(a) BUZR ; &
o) ETHETABEAXENEREZERRANER -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding No legal
RAREN corrupt practices brought against the issuer or Proceedings
$51EB7.1 its employees during the reporting period and the |Regarding
outcomes of the cases. Corruption Occurred
RERPAHETAXERERHIEEGENE During the Year
SRR R B KRR E R o FNRBEESFHRE
(G5
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle- Building Integrity
RARE N blowing procedures, how they are implemented BEZRER
E1ZB7.2 and monitored.
B BB R R RER  URBERARNITRER
Fike
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to |Building Integrity
RARE R directors and staff. FRRER
151EB7.3 HhmEERE TIRHENRESE
Aspect BS: General Disclosure Community
[E EB8S: — R iR Engagement
Community Policies on community engagement to understand the needs HE2HE tE2H
Investment of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
HERE activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.
BRAUHR2HERTREEMTHREENRREERETHEE
At E R 2 AR o
KPI B8.1F§ Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, Community
BIEN environment concerns, labour needs, health, Engagement
}51ZB8.1 culture, sport). HEZH
EIEMEE WHE RESE - S LHER &
B X1E~88A) -
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to Community
RASRIERN the focus area. Engagement
{51¥B8.2 AHAIBEMBAER WNEEHERE) o Ay
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KpME

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Q
Technology (Group) Company Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 179 to 312, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2023, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended and notes, comprising material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2023 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

B ENER S

RERHEK (EE) FRABRKRE
B2 TR S
(RS SEMAIBIBERAE)

ER

AIZEEN AT EBIEM) BB H
ﬁf%179§3122§5’]5ﬁ(ﬂ?§2($@)

NEIUTHEBIELAD) KEKWEBA
G (LXT mBIEEE)) NEHPER
%% EEHMBREEENR 2=
+ZBE=1t—HHEHEBERRETA
BHEZHLELEENGHEGREMS
ANER AHERESRINEGHIES
mEXRUEKE EhaiEE ARt
BERER REMBBER

BMRBR ZFeHVBRRERER
BRestR£lEZE8g ((BEGENEZE
T) BN CERFBRSER Gt E
AI)EEMHREtRIRT S&£EIKCZ
T _=F+__RA=1+—HBHHNEHYUH
Hhn k BEEEBEZBHLEFENS
HUBRREEEGHRERE  LEER
BA(RERA) IR BEE R ZAEHE-
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Independent Auditor’s Report
ERYR S Gl

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial

Our responsibilities

statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Revenue recognition

B ENER S

e

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the 2B & MK EZ M523 E220E HY

accounting policies on page 220.

The Key Audit Matter
RS

FHEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEFPNEESZ

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from the sales of
camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules.

BEEENW D TEES BREEEARIESGHRAEE

o
=

The Group enters into a framework sales agreement with
each major customer and sells its products in accordance
with terms of separate sales orders.
EERHERFERRIIUERHEE R LIRBESIHES]
BifEHEMR-

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
revenue included the following:

BRI EA EFEENTAE -

e obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal
controls in relation to revenue recognition;

e TERIUTEEEEBMAWARIENEARAIE
IR ST MITREITERIE ;

° inspecting customers contracts, on a sample
basis, to identify performance obligations and
terms and conditions relating to transfer of
control of the goods and assessing the Group’s
revenue recognition accounting policies with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

e HEMERREH UHMEBENEEREHE
BEMERIRNGARRGE  UK2ERTE
STEANERTE SEEMREEST I

st

=S

e  obtaining external confirmation of, on a sample
basis, transaction amounts for the year and
debtor balances as at the financial year end
directly with customers;

s HMEENERERREERZTHEKYVBEE
REFAFREER AR IMERFESD ;
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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The Key Audit Matter
RIS E St EIE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEFPNEERSZE

For the majority of the Group’s sales, when the products
are delivered to the location designated by the respective
customer and the customer take possession of and accept
the products, the control over the products is considered
to have been transferred to the respective customer and
revenue is recognised accordingly.

P EEENAOHEENS  EERXNERBAZTRAHN
EEMB BT EA L ERE QR B EQOZEGIERER
RHROBBREMREEER > WABREDE -

We identified the recognition of revenue as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group and therefore there is an inherent
risk of manipulation of the timing and amount of recognition
of revenue by management to meet specific targets or
expectations.

B R REARESEE 2HN R E S
E EEEENNEARESZ — TREFETEEERT
EIRTERNBAEMRMRN SRR R EBENEA R

A
o
N
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comparing, on a sample basis, revenue
transactions recorded during the year with
the goods delivery and acceptance notes or
customers’ statements to assess whether the
related revenue was recognised in accordance
with the Group’s revenue recognition
accounting policies;

HEHFRDERNNAR ZBEYARKE
HEFRRETLEE FTEEAKGESR
B SEBUREESR G THER TS ;

comparing, on a sample basis, specific revenue
transactions recorded before and after the
financial year end date with goods delivery and
acceptance notes or customers’ statements to
assess whether revenue had been recognised
in accordance with the terms of the sales
contracts and in the appropriate financial year;
and
HEHMBEFEARB AR BN AR KA
RZEEY IR ERE R RRIETLLER
MMt m 2B ERBHESVWBRARNEERE
N BEETUER ; &

inspecting the sales ledger subsequent to the
financial reporting period and making enquiries
of management to identify if there is any
significant credit notes issued and sales returns.
We inspected, on a sample basis, credit notes
or customers’ statements to assess if the
related revenue had been accounted for in the
appropriate financial period.
REMBREAENEE S ER wAEIRE
FHEEH UHEERERERENEANEGRFRE
RHERG - HMEMEBEEFRBERER
B LGHEERRBN RSBt ABENMH
HAR o



Independent Auditor’s Report

Expected credit loss allowances for trade receivables

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on page 208.

The Key Audit Matter
RS

B ENER S

BEZRBRENFEREEGERER

RS RN E19R FL2085 HY
5 o

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEFPNEESZ

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s gross carrying
amount of the trade receivables amounted to
RMB3,882,928,000, against which allowances of
RMB858,000 for expected credit losses (ECLs) were
recorded.

N_EBE_=F+"A=+—H> BEEEEZRWNEA
2E7 AR 13,882,928,0005T  #HH FEMEEEAIBE ARE
1% A\ R 6858,0007T

Management measures the expected credit loss ("ECL")
allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs based on estimated loss rates for each
category of trade receivables grouped according to shared
credit risk characteristics. The estimated loss rates take
into account the ageing of trade receivable balances and
the repayment history of the Group’s customers, current
market conditions, and forward-looking information. Such
assessment involves significant management judgement
and estimation.

EEREERERERGEERRFHDENESEEZBUEIE
NGB R LEEN FERBEREESEBNSESE
B RKARIEBNTRAEEEHE (TRREEHE)) BE
SIEEXEEREZRNRIBAGNRER SEERR

MERESE BRI HISR R RATEEER - BRI ES K
BAREEEFE K (5o

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL allowance
for trade receivables included the following:
BAsHMLEZ RRIEN TR EEHEERENS S
EFRaeEUTHE:

e  obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating

effectiveness of management’s key internal

debt
collection and estimating the ECL allowance;

s THEEEAGEES  RIALWKFEREES
BiEBEGESHERANBRAIZES L TEE
LERERIERIRIR ST T RETERIE ;

controls relating to credit control,

e  evaluating the Group’s policy for and method of
estimating the ECL allowance with reference to
the requirements of the applicable accounting
standard;

s ZEFERGFERMNERTMG
HREEBEBREHENBRKRS X ;

EEEETE

e  obtaining an understanding and assessing the
appropriateness of the basis of segmentation
of the trade receivables based on shared credit
risk characteristics of customers;

. T%Iﬁ%u%ﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬂﬁ%@% )
BSRWRBETOEKBEREEE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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The Key Audit Matter
RIS E St EIE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEFPNEERSZE

We identified the ECL allowance for trade receivables as a
key audit matter because of the significance of the carrying
amount of trade receivables to the consolidated financial
statements and that determining the level of the ECL
allowance requires the exercise of significant management
judgement, which is inherently subjective.

BB ZRUHRBENEREEGEBEERT ARMESRT
FE EHNEBEZRUHRENKEEEESHYBRERN
BEEM BERTHRAGEBERENKTIEZERAEARN
EIEEH G A RMAE TERE -
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assessing whether items in the trade
receivables ageing report were categorised
in the appropriate time band by tracing trade
receivables therein, on a sample basis to
sales invoices and credit term of respective
customer;
BIHEREREATPNEERBERERES
FEWRIE » LAETAH B 5 FE IR IB AR e R &5 FH AV
HERORBENFKHEEHESR S ;

examining the information used by management
to derive the loss rates, including testing the
accuracy of the historical credit loss data and
evaluating whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on current market
conditions and forward-looking information; and
R EEIEERANEERBEXENER i AE
EsEEBBEBRAER M UK EE LR
RESRBENHH RN RAEEENETE
ERE &

re-performing the calculation of the ECL
allowance as at 31 December 2023 based on
the Group’s accounting policy and method.
R SEEMNEABRERERAE EWMFAERN
—EC=HF+RA=+—HNEHREEHEER
fio



Independent Auditor’s Report

Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the IASB
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

B ENER S

BRI HRRREZBEMRS
BAMER

EFRANHMEEAE -HMEE A
TEHRERANEEEE  BEFAEES
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ERBENEUFFEEANERRIL
BB e
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e
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B81E
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M ERYBRESER G5 2ER K&
BEERAKINEKBEERBEHEESEM
PENESHYBRE UHESBARE
GHPBRROEE T FEHRREE
HERMENBE KRR PR
NEEHE ST -

EREBECHMBERRE EFRE ST
it SEENFECERD TEER
BRTITRBLEAFBECEARNEE KL
MERFBEREERGHER FREES
EER S&EEBHE NFLES N
AEAMBERNERS R

2035 5% EHHEK @) 528 {175



Independent Auditor’s Report
ERYR S Gl

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

B ENER S
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Liu Hin Pan.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
AHERREMEEIER

for the year ended 31 December 2028 HIZE—E_=F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (WA R#%17R)

2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
biaE ARETT ARET T
Revenue &= & 12,530,799 13,759,170
Cost of sales HHE A (12,021,943) (13,217,828)
Gross profit EF 508,856 541,342
Other income H A 4 384,067 287,838
Selling and distribution expenses $HE & 4B (19,783) (13,790)
Administrative and other THBREMK SRS
operating expenses (149,254) (141,923)
Research and development EERx
expenses (435,550) (469,626)
Reversal of impairment loss/ B 5 R EMmEREIE
(impairment loss) on trade BEREEE
and other receivables CRER18) 702 (243)
Profit from operations R 289,038 203,598
Finance costs B AR 5(a) (171,327) (59,874)
Share of loss of an associate L EE AT R (49,578) (36,640)
Profit before taxation FRAR Al F 5 68,133 107,084
Income tax FT18# 6(a) 15,398 63,146
Profit for the year FRHEF 83,531 170,230
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
aftEE R HA2EIER

for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued) BE _E_=F+_A=+—HILEE &
(Expressed in Renminbi) U A E#71)7R)

2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
=3 AR®F AR¥FT
Attributable to: RS
Equity shareholders of the KABREFTHA
Company 81,917 171,151
Non-controlling interests IS 1,614 (921)
Profit for the year FEREF 83,531 170,230

Earnings per share (RMB Cents) SR 2 (AR ¥ 4%)

Basic K 9(a) 6.9 14.5

Diluted e 9(b) 6.9 14.5

The notes on pages 187 to 312 form part of these financial 55187 = 3125 MY MY 5+ 48 Al 5% & B 75 3R
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders T —Z R BN AR BREFE A
of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in &1L F PNm Al 2 I8 B 2 5F 18 8 7L M 5%
note 33(b). 33(b) °
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued) EE —Z

S RmMREMEE N ER

=F+RA=1+—HIEE #&
(Expressed in Renminbi) (WA R#%17R)

FERiEF

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income/ FREMEEURE (F518)

(loss) for the year (after (P B = 2 4ER
tax and reclassification &)

adjustments):

ltems that will not be reclassified A ZEFHDIEEETEN

to profit or loss: ==
— Share of other comprehensive —E{LEHE AT EMS
income of an associate ElbEs

— Equity investment at fair —BAFES AEM
value through other 2EW TR
comprehensive income CE—NTEREE
— net movement in fair value (T—Jﬁifﬁéii) EE)FEE
reserves (non-recycling)

ltems that are or may be HEGNIESEMNDE
reclassified subsequently to EETWNIER
profit or loss:
- Share of other comprehensive ~ —FE{5E#& A BIHY
income of an associate Hth2 | E
— Exchange differences on —HAE R At UGN ZE S
translation of financial R
statements of operations bE R E%R
outside Chinese Mainland
Other comprehensive loss FRHMEMEmEIE
for the year
Total comprehensive income  FRAREUFELLEE
for the year
Attributable to: S -
Equity shareholders of RABIRERFEA
the Company
Non-controlling interests JEVERR =
Total comprehensive income  FAZEURFHLEZE

for the year

The notes on pages 187 to 312 form part of these financial
statements.

2023 2022
s
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
iof=a AER¥TF T ARET T
83,531 170,230
1,003 -
510 —
(660) -
(11,885) (110,477)
(11,032) (110,477)
72,499 59,753
70,885 60,674
1,614 (921)
72,499 59,753
FBI18TEII2ENMF BN ZF T H R
KA —ILE D o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SHMBINAR

as at 31 December 2023 RZZE_=F+"F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) U A B #717R)

Note
HtaE

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Interest in an associate

Intangible assets

Equity securities designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Financial assets measured at
amortised cost

Prepayment for acquisition of
non-current assets

Other non-current assets

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Contract assets

Trade and other receivables

Financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at
amortised cost

Derivative financial instruments

Pledged bank deposits

Fixed deposits with banks
with original maturity over
three months

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Short-term bank borrowings
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities

Derivative financial instruments
Lease liabilities

Current tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

FFRBEE
ER V=YL f ]
R—EBE QRN EDR
BIVEE
BAFEA
Hih 2 E W m Ay
15 TE IR 1 BE 35
RBENAGTENTREE

WEIFRFEEN
AR
HMIERESEE
EIEMIAE E

GREE

85 R EMEWRIEA

BAFES ABmAY
TREE

REBHRATENEREE

TETREE
BIRIRIRITFER
REHB A =1E8
IRITEREM

REKRREFEY

MENEME

ZHIIRTT BN

8 5 K B FE A RR
aMmar
TEEMmaR
HEAE

FEAT BIHRFR 18

RBEERE

MEERRBEMR
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15
16

32(b)

18
27(a)
19

20

25

27(b)
21
28

32(a)

2023 2022
" RMB’000 ~ RMB'000
ARBFR ARBT T

2,845,043 3,139,819
279,035 325,001
22,689 26,302
5,600 5,000
473,976 -
19,876 20,000
9,550 9,550
180,292 165,666
3,836,061 3,691,338
1,777,515 1,184,452
3,637 -
4,201,289 3,436,206
511,242 1,172,751
121,589 -

- 11,111
1,301,776 919,181
296,557 521,553
2,893,084 1,348,884
11,106,689 8,594,138
4,151,506 2,615,977
5,437,031 4,584,043
5,548 16,306
52,300 8,386
8,389 13,131
11,708 11,567
9,666,482 7,049,409
1,440,207 1,344,729
5,276,268 5,036,067



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
B HRFEIR AT

as at 31 December 2023 (continued) R_E_=F+_B=+—H #&
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A R#%17R)

2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
K&t AREF T AREFIT
Non-current liabilities ERIMEE
Long-term bank borrowings RHEAIRITER 25 219,493 =
Lease liabilities HEaE 28 7,484 14,389
Deferred income RIEU A 29 212,687 247 649
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE (A 32(b) 4,853 6,624
444,517 268,662
NET ASSETS BEFE 4,831,751 4,767,405
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERKHEE
Share capital fg 7 33 9,486 9,486
Reserves H#E 33 4,822,265 4,752,970
Total equity attributable to EATIREFEA
equity shareholders of FE(L REZR 40 %
the Company 4,831,751 4,762,456
Non-controlling interests JEERR R - 4,949
TOTAL EQUITY HEm4EER 4,831,751 4,767,405

The notes on pages 187 to 312 form part of these financial F187E 3128 WM s:#8ZZ 0 75
statements. *EG—BL Do

202353 BB (RE) BRAR 183



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z—=

AHRERE

el o B
(Expressed in Renminbi) (WA R#%17R)

Operating activities

Cash (used in)/generated
from operations
Income tax received/(paid)

Net cash (used in)/generated
from operating activities

Investing activities

Proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment

Payment for purchase of
non-current assets

Proceed from maturity of

financial assets measured at fair

value through profit or loss

Investment in financial assets
measured at fair value through
profit or loss

Proceed from maturity of financial

assets measured at amortised
cost
Investment in financial assets
measured at amortised cost
Proceed from maturity of
derivative financial instruments
Investment in derivative
financial instruments
Interest received
Placement of fixed deposits
with banks with original
maturity over three months
Proceed from maturity of
fixed deposits with banks
with original maturity
over three months
Payment for purchase of
equity securities designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Net cash generated from/
(used in) investing activities

geE FrR) /FRERE

B (B FrEKR

g EE (FRA) /FrigEY

&3
KREES
BEYE -BER
T3 R E PRI AUA
ﬂ%ﬁ%&m@jﬁ%ﬁ’]f‘f«

?ﬁ@ﬂzﬁuﬂ\% T HY
ERE E AP ERIE

RERAFEFAE@D
THEE

REBIHN AT ENEREE

ZHAPRIS IR

REZBIHNATERN
TREE

TTEERI AR NRIEA

REMESMIEA

BUF B
ﬁﬁﬁrlﬁﬁEﬁ (EDER:N)
IRTTEHRE™

REHEBR=ER
IR1TE HATF R 2 AR
FiS=IR

BERAFESA
Hith 2 E WY
5 R YT RK

RIEFIS (R 89
Re P

2023 2022
—E_=F T Esl e
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
K&t AR® T NEE TG
24(b) (378,783) 1,071,576
- (23,224)
(378,783) 1,048,352
9,436 34,922
(136,314) (407,520)
2,059,362 1,059,617
(1,355,000) (2,169,000)
130,000 -
(720,000) -
68,620 138,923
(12,868) (96,786)
85,299 25,299
(279,859) (521,553)
518,048 =
- (5,000)
366,724 (1,941,098)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

SHRERE

for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued) BE _E_=F+_A=+—HILEE &
(Expressed in Renminbi) U A E#71)7R)

2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE ARETT AREBTT
Financing activities LB EED
Capital element of lease BENHEEHENEARTER
rentals paid 24(c) (12,307) (27,180)
Interest element of lease ENEERENANETE
rentals paid 24(c) (878) (786)
Proceeds from shares issued REEREIRE T 8 B 1TRG
under share option scheme FriS=18 - 9,634
Proceeds from bank borrowings ~ $E{TEPRIEIE 24(c) 5,141,794 3,280,792
Repayment of bank borrowings — {EEZIB1TE® 24(c) (8,454,201) (2,649,884)
Placement of pledged EHEIRRIRITER
bank deposits (891,461) (904,742)
Proceed from maturity of BRI IRITFREIE
pledged bank deposits FriS7 18 906,934 805,466
Interest paid BEFE 24(c) (139,196) (44,825)
Net cash generated from R EBI TSR FEE
financing activities 1,550,685 468,475
Net increase/(decrease) in cash IREKRIREZEEY
and cash equivalents g, GRoL) H%E 1,538,626 (424,271)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BMRER
at 1 January HEEEW 1,348,884 1,743,070
Effect of foreign exchange rate EEREFHM S E
changes 5,574 30,085
Cash and cash equivalents R+ZA=+—HNRER
at 31 December HEEEW 24(a) 2,893,084 1,348,884

The notes on pages 187 to 312 form part of these financial FE187E3128 WM sE# 2 Z 0 5
statements. *E—BL Do
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

Material accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable IFRS Accounting
Standards, which collective term includes all applicable
individual International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Material accounting policies adopted by
the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRS
Accounting Standards that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 1(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current accounting
period reflected in these financial statements.

EXRGETEER

(a) EHEHA

ZEMBBRETLERABEER
RS ER g5t R
Ao BRI EER F 5T
ZRHOEHERESZEES
g (EREERNIEESE)) 1|
i BY P & 48 A8 B9 {8 A1) B R 7 75
WEEA RS ER (TH
REEHEER ) REBUARES
AEFHIINRBERE &F/M
BRETNEEBHMEXZPR
BER BESF LT RAINER
REBHEX AEBFERMWERKN
GEIBRREN T -

REHERNIEEECEME
T R B 75 ¥ 5 AE B & 5T A A
ST RFEIT AN E
ERTEHHBERERT A
REZM - AYNBERAZFHE
EMERNEFNESBRED
BRI &I EE(c) % FE
HRAERBITETHEER
TERRIKZEFMBFRERA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

1

Material accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2023 comprise Q Technology
(Group) Company Limited and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest in an
associate.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below:

—  Derivative financial instruments (note 1(q));

— Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss (note 1(f));

—  Equity securities designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income (note 1(f)).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), rounded to the nearest thousand.
ltems included in the financial statements of each entity
in the Group are measured using currency that best
reflects the economic substance of the underlying events
and circumstances relevant to that entity (“functional
currency”). Most of the companies comprising the Group
are operating in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
and their functional currency is RMB, hence, RMB is
used as the presentation currency of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

Material accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS Accounting Standards requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgments about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application
of IFRS Accounting Standards that have significant
effect on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

EXGEBER (&

(b) RHEMBEBERNEE @)

RIRERMBF RS ER ot £
AR RV BRRAEEREFH
HEr Bt RBER MZEH
i EEtRBRREFEBRRE
BhkEBEE-BE WA
Rz ER o % F st R AR R
BRBEDERBEERREAR
BRTRAREENSEAMEA
EFEL PRIGERERF E 2
LB B EM AR RERNEEKR
BRKREENKE BRE
HEBRRZF G5

ZEM RERRREREE
BT LR o 8 g5t
B EHFLHETHBAER
2> Az BTN ZAE T
m fid 1€ 5] % & & Bl ;K 2R #3
B3 > BB 1F 12 5T B R R 2R
HAfE B2 58 o

EEENRERERYBREE
AlEst 2R BRE
B E KF BV H b K (b5t A FE
ERZBNEERRRM 2

A
A ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHMEEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

1 Material accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

() New and amended IFRS Accounting Standards

The Group has applied the following new and
amended IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the
IASB to these financial statements for the current
accounting period:

° IFRS 17, Insurance contracts

e Amendments to IAS 8, Accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors:
Definition of accounting estimates

e Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2,
Making materiality judgements: Disclosure of
accounting polices

° Amendments to IAS 12, /ncome taxes:
Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities
arising from a single transaction

° Amendments to IAS 12, /ncome taxes:
International tax reform — Pillar Two model rules

1 90 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2023

1 EXREGFHEK &
() BEHEEEH

() FrETRASIESTE R AL 75 35 & 2
A& & ER

AEBERERS 2R
HEEEBRMALLITIME &
REAEET B BR B 35 ¥ 5 & R
SEtEAEANRER &5t
BN ZEMHRE

e BERMBHREES
1758 (REE 2 4

o HEMEgitdAlEay
(BT &) » B 5 K
B RIEEE
B EHOTE

e EIMRETsHERFIN
(BET &) » B &
£ 5 R B A R
HREZANE29 0 (F
HEAXHE  REE S
B R

o EIRESHERE125
(BET &) » AriE# -
RERXZELHE
ERERHKHZELE
mE

o EIRESHERE125%
(BET &) » ARIEH -
BB A E—F
S IE R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HAFEERERMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)
1 Material accounting policies (continued) 1 BEXRGHEBE &

(c) EFtHREH (@)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) New and amended IFRS Accounting Standards (i)  FrETRACIEETEI R AT 75 3R & &
(continued) B Z5HEE (8)

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the
new and amended IFRS Accounting Standards are
discussed below:

IFRS 17, Insurance contracts

IFRS 17, which replaces IFRS 4, sets out the
recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure requirements applicable to issuers of
insurance contracts. The standard does not have a
material impact on these financial statements as the
Group does not have contracts within the scope of
IFRS 17.

Amendments to IAS 8, Accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors:
Definition of accounting estimates

The amendments provide further guidance on
the distinction between changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates. The
amendments do not have a material impact on
these financial statements as the Group’s approach
in distinguishing changes in accounting policies and
changes in accounting estimates is consistent with
the amendments.

rEBFEHKREREAMRE
G Et I R E BV E R
#e] ZERRRE - RAH
] RSIEST R RS
EHEHERNTENT

B B ERF 175 R
=y

[ PR B 755 ¥ 5 2 RIS 1 7 5%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)
BAEFEER &

(c) EFtHREH (@)

1 Material accounting policies (continued) 1

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2, Making
materiality judgements: Disclosure of accounting
polices

The amendments require entities to disclose
material accounting policy information and provide
guidance on applying the concept of materiality
to accounting policy disclosure. The Group has
revisited the accounting policy information it has
been disclosing and considered it is consistent with
the amendments.

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax
related to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exemption such that it does not apply
to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences on initial recognition such as
leases and decommissioning liabilities. For leases
and decommissioning liabilities, the associated
deferred tax assets and liabilities are required to
be recognised from the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative
effect recognised as an adjustment to retained
earnings or other components of equity at that date.
For all other transactions, the amendments are
applied to those transactions that occur after the
beginning of the earliest period presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HAFEERERMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)
BEAEGFBER &

(c) EFtHREH (@)

1 Material accounting policies (continued) 1

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) New and amended IFRS Accounting Standards (i)  FrETRACIEETEI R AT 75 3R & &
(continued) B Z5HEE (8)

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes. Deferred tax
related to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction (continued)

Prior to the amendments, the Group did not
apply the initial recognition exemption to lease
transactions and had recognised the related
deferred tax, except that the Group previously
determined the temporary difference arising from a
right-of-use asset and the related lease liability on
a net basis on the basis they arise from a single
transaction. Following the amendments, the Group
has determined the temporary differences in relation
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
The change primarily impacts disclosures of
components of deferred tax assets and liabilities
in note 32(b), but does not impact the overall
deferred tax balances presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position as the related
deferred tax balances qualify for offsetting under
IAS 12.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)
BAEFEER &

(c) EFtHREH (@)

1

Material accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

()

New and amended IFRS Accounting Standards
(continuedq)

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: International
tax reform — Pillar Two model rules

The amendments introduce a temporary mandatory
exception from deferred tax accounting for the
income tax arising from tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted to implement the Pillar
Two model rules published by the Organisation
for Economic Co-operation and Development
(“OECD”) (income tax arising from such tax laws is
hereafter referred to as “Pillar Two income taxes”),
including tax laws that implement qualified domestic
minimum top-up taxes described in those rules. The
amendments also introduce disclosure requirements
about such tax including the estimated tax exposure
to Pillar Two income taxes. The amendments are
immediately effective upon issuance and require
retrospective application.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

1 Material accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

U

(i)

New and amended IFRS Accounting Standards
(continueq)

The Group has applied the temporary mandatory
exception to recognising and disclosing information
about deferred tax assets and liabilities related to
Pillar Two income taxes and would account for the
tax as current tax when incurred.

New HKICPA guidance on the accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism

In June 2022 the Hong Kong SAR Government
(the “Government”) gazetted the Hong Kong
Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance
2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”), which will
come into effect from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition
Date”). Once the Amendment Ordinance takes
effect, an employer can no longer use any of
the accrued benefits derived from its mandatory
contributions to mandatory provident fund (“MPF”)
scheme to reduce the long service payment
(‘LSP”) in respect of an employee’s service from
the Transition Date (the abolition of the “offsetting
mechanism”). In addition, the LSP in respect
of the service before the Transition Date will be
calculated based on the employee’s monthly salary
immediately before the Transition Date and the
years of service up to that date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong” that provides
accounting guidance relating to the offsetting
mechanism and the abolition of the mechanism.
In particular, the guidance indicates that entities
may account for the accrued benefits derived from
mandatory MPF contributions that are expected to
be used to reduce the LSP payable to an employee
as deemed contributions by that employee towards
the LSP.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHMEEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

1 Material accounting policies (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continueq)

(i) New HKICPA guidance on the accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism (continued)

However, applying this approach, upon the
enactment of the Amendment Ordinance in
June 2022, it is no longer permissible to apply
the practical expedient in paragraph 93(b) of
IAS 19 that previously allowed such deemed
contributions to be recognised as reduction of
service cost (negative service cost) in the period the
contributions were made; instead these deemed
contributions should be attributed to periods of
service in the same manner as the gross LSP
benefit.

To better reflect the substance of the abolition of
the offsetting mechanism, the Group has changed
its accounting policy in connection with its LSP
liability and has applied the above HKICPA guidance
retrospectively. This change in accounting policy
did not have any impact on the opening balance of
equity of the Group as at 1 January 2022. It also
did not have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date on which control commences
until the date on which control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

Material accounting policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

Intra-Group balances and transactions, and any
unrealised income and expenses (except for foreign
currency transaction gains or losses) arising from intra-
Group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-Group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests (“NCI”) either
at fair value or at the NCI’s proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets. NCI are presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. NCI in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between NCI
and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(k)(ii)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

1

Material accounting policies (continued)

(e) Associate

(f)

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over the financial and operating policies.

An interest in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method. It is initially recognised at cost,
which includes transaction costs. Subsequently, the
consolidated financial statements include the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) of those investees, until the date on
which significant influence ceases.

Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-
accounted investees are eliminated against the
investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent there is
no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in associate is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(K)(ii)).

Other investments in securities
The Group’s policies for investments in securities, other

than investments in subsidiaries and associates, are set
out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

Material accounting policies (continued)

(f) Other investments in securities (continued)

Investments in securities are recognised/derecognised
on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investment. The investments are initially stated at fair
value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except
for those investments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL") for which transaction costs are
recognised directly in profit or loss. For an explanation
of how the Group determines fair value of financial
instruments, see note 34(e). These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on
their classification.

(i) Non-equity investments

Non-equity investments are classified into one of
the following measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash flows
which represent solely payments of principal
and interest. Expected credit losses, interest
income calculated using the effective interest
method (see note 1(u)(ii),
gains and losses are recognised in profit or

foreign exchange

loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

n‘l’ﬁfﬁ (AE

() MESFHEMIGE (&

1 Material accounting policies (continued) 1 EXT
(f) Other investments in securities (continued)

()  Non-equity investments (continued)

() FERE (E)

fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”") - recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Expected credit losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss and computed in
the same manner as if the financial asset was
measured at amortised cost. The difference
between the fair value and the amortised cost
is recognised in other comprehensive income
(“OCI”). When the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in OCI is recycled
from equity to profit or loss.

FVPL if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised cost
or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair
value of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

1 Material accounting policies (continued)

(f) Other investments in securities (continued)
(i)  Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
financial assets measured at FVPL, unless the
investment is not held for trading purposes and on
initial recognition the Group makes an irrevocable
election to designate the investment at FVOCI
(non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in OCI. Such elections
are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis,
but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. If
such election is made for a particular investment,
at the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained earnings and not recycled through profit
or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at
FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as
other income.

(g) Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to
manage its foreign currency risk exposures. Embedded
derivatives are separated from the host contract and
accounted for separately if the host contract is not a
financial asset and certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with
changes therein recognised in profit or loss, except
where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or hedges of net investment in a foreign
operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

1

Material accounting policies (continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses (see note 1(K)(ii)):

— interest in leasehold land and buildings where
the Group is the registered owner of the property
interest (see note 1(j));

— items of plant and equipment, including right-of-use
assets arising from leases of underlying plant and
equipment (see note 1(j)); and

— right-of-use assets arising from leases over
leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner of the property interest.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components).

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual values, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives, and is generally recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

1 Material accounting policies (continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(i)

The estimated useful lives for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

—  Leasehold land 50 - 80 years
—  Buildings 3 - 20 years
—  Machinery 3 - 10 years
—  Motor vehicles 5 years
—  Office and other equipment 3 -5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

Intangible assets

Research and development costs comprise all costs that
are directly attributable to research and development
activities or that can be allocated on a reasonable basis
to such activities. Because of the nature of the Group’s
research and development activities, the criteria for the
recognition of such costs as an asset are generally not
met until late in the development stage of the project
when the remaining development costs are immaterial.
Hence both research costs and development costs are
generally recognised as expenses in the period in which
they are incurred.

Other intangible assets, that are acquired by the
Group and have finite useful lives are measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses (see note 1(k(ii)).

Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands,
is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% HET5EEIN > UARIEZ

1

Material accounting policies (continued)

(i)

()

Intangible assets (continued)

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of
intangible assets less their estimated residual values
using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives, if any, and is generally recognised in profit
or loss. The estimated useful lives for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:
—  Computer software 5 - 20 years
Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values

are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. This is the case
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from that use.

(i) As alessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HAFEERERMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

1 Material accounting policies (continued) 1 BEXRGHEBE &
() Leased assets (continued) () HEEE @)

(i) As a lessee (continueq)

() TEBEAEAN (&

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for leases that have a short lease term of
12 months or less, and leases of low-value items.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value item, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. If
not capitalised, the associated lease payments are
recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is recognised using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability, and are
charged to profit or loss as incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see notes 1(h) and 1(k)(ii)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

1 Material accounting policies (continued) 1 EXEHEE ZE
() Leased assets (continued) () HEEE #E
(i) As a lessee (continued) () 1EBEAHEAN E

Refundable rental deposits are accounted RIEE BRI B A
for separately from the right of-use assets in RAIERESRZESELED
accordance with the accounting policy applicable R (RMIEET ()~ 1(u)
to investments in non-equity securities carried at () R1(k)(i)) » ATRZEF &
amortised cost (see notes 1(f),1(u)() and 1(k)(). Any Be-EERAEEESREA
excess of the nominal value over the initial fair value E-EEmMEEBLEY
of the deposits is accounted for as additional lease AANTFEENISEDIEASIE
payments made and is included in the cost of right- HAREIN B4 A BR
of-use assets. Tt AERAEEEMA

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a HIsEg o A X3k
change in future lease payments arising from a KEENMHHIREE
change in an index or rate, if there is a change in KEBMIBIETGREEIE
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to FIEsTENNGETEEEE
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if FEbE AN EREE
the Group changes its assessment of whether it HTEBEE SRR L
will exercise a purchase, extension or termination HEENT G BBEES
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in BEEHtE-HUER
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to FEFst=EHEaE
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is BIEEHEAEEEMNER
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of EEETHEREE oM
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. FEHEEENREDEDS

BEZ BERERYIRe
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

EXGFBER (&

Material accounting policies (continued)

()

Leased assets (continued)

(i) As a lessee (continueq)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there
is a lease modification, which means a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a
lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract, if such modification is not accounted for
as a separate lease. In this case, the lease liability
is remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification. The only
exceptions are rent concessions that occurred as
a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and met the conditions set out in paragraph 46B
of IFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group
has taken advantage of the practical expedient
not to assess whether the rent concessions are
lease modifications, and recognised the change in
consideration as negative variable lease payments
in profit or loss in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the rent concessions
occurred.

1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

1

Material accounting policies (continued)

()

Leased assets (continued)

(i) As a lessee (continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities is
determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve

months after the reporting period.

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECL"s) on the financial
assets measured at amortised cost (including cash
and cash equivalents, fixed deposits with banks
with original maturity over three months, negotiable
certificate of deposit, pledged bank deposits, and
trade and other receivables and contract assets

(see notes 1(m)).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Generally, credit losses are measured as
the present value of all expected cash shortfalls

between the contractual and expected amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

1 Material accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continueq)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following rates if the effect is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition or
an approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are the portion of ECLs
that result from default events that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date
(or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months); and

— lifetime ECLs: these are the ECLs that result
from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL
model applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

1

Material accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following,
which are measured at 12-months ECLs:

— financial instruments that are determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

— other financial instruments for which credit
risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over
the expected life of the financial instrument)
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when measuring ECLs,
the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis, based
on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment, that includes forward-looking
information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HAFEERERMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

1 Material accounting policies (continued) 1 BERGHEE &

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

k) FEGREREERE &

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

() ETHBIRELHIISELR (E)

(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 90 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when:

- the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or

— the financial asset is 90 days past due.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHMEEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)
BEAEGFHBER &

k) FEEGEEREERE @)

1 Material accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
being more than 90 days past due;

—  the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

— it is probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

1 BEREGHEBER (B

1 Material accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

()

(ii)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or
contract asset is written off to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group otherwise determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other
than inventories, contract assets and deferred tax
assets) to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
cash-generating units (“CGU”s).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

1

Material accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the
greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal. Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or
CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
They are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts
of the assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the resulting carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if
no impairment loss had been recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the
end of the financial year (see note 1(K)(i)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

1 Material accounting policies (continued)

U

(m)

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value as follows:

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 1(u)(i)(a)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the
terms in the contract. Contract assets are assessed
for ECLs (see note 1(k)(i)) and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration becomes
unconditional (see note 1(n)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note 1(u)(i)(a)).
A contract liability is also recognised if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such latter cases, a corresponding receivable
is also recognised (see note 1(n)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

EXGHHR (2

1

Material accounting policies (continued)

(n)

(0)

(o))

(a)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration and only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured at their
transaction price. Other receivables are initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs. All receivables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost (see note 1(k)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and other short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL (see note 1(K)(i)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other
payables are stated at amortised cost unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent, these
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised
in accordance with note 1(w).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

1 Material accounting policies (continued)

() Employee benefits

U

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by
the employee and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are expensed as the related service
is provided.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the black-scholes model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the
share options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the share options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
share options are exercised (when it is transferred
to the share premium account) or the share options
expire (when it is released directly to retained
profits).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% HET5EEIN > UARIEZ

1

Material accounting policies (continued)

(s)

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred
tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to a business combination, or items
recognised directly in equity or in OCI.

Current tax comprises the estimated tax payable or
receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustments to the tax payable or receivable
in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax
amount expected to be paid or received that reflects
any uncertainty related to income taxes. It is measured
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising
from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain
criteria are met.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:

— temporary differences on the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does not
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

Material accounting policies (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

— temporary differences related to investment in
subsidiaries and associates to the extent that the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that
they will not reverse in the foreseeable future;

—  taxable temporary differences arising on the initial
recognition of goodwill; and

— those related to the income taxes arising from
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted to
implement the Pillar Two model rules published by
the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development.

The Group recognised deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities separately in relation to its lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which they can be
used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the
reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences. If the
amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient to
recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable
profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary
differences, are considered, based on the business
plans for individual subsidiaries in the Group. Deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions
are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits
improves.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain
criteria are met.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% HET5EEIN > UARIEZ

1

Material accounting policies (continued)

(t)

(u)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Generally provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessment of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HAFEERERMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)
BEAGHE &
(u) WEREMEA #E)

1 Material accounting policies (continued) 1
(u) Revenue and other income (continued)
()  Revenue from contracts with customers

() KEEFRSH K

(a) Sales of camera modules and fingerprint

(a) HERGERBRIEN

recognition modules

The Group is the principal for its revenue
transactions and recognises revenue on a
gross basis. In determining whether the Group
acts as a principal or as an agent, it considers
whether it obtains control of the products
before they are transferred to the customers.
Control refers to the Group’s ability to direct
the use of and obtain substantially all of the
remaining benefits from the products.

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product is transferred to the customer at the
amount of promised consideration to which
the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding
those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties such as value added tax or other sales
taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the products
are delivered to the location designated by
the respective customer and the customer
take possession of and accept the products.
Payment terms and conditions vary by
customers and are based on the billing
schedule established in the contracts or
purchase orders with customers, but the
Group generally provides credit terms to
customers within 1-3 months upon customer
acceptance. The Group takes advantage of the
practical expedient in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15
and does not adjust the consideration for any
effects of a significant financing component as
the period of financing is 12 months or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)
BEAGHE &

(u) WEREMEA B

1 Material accounting policies (continued) 1
(u) Revenue and other income (continued)

(i)  Revenue from contracts with customers

() KEEFSHMa (&

(continued)

(b) Other practical expedients applied

(b) BERBAEMITITER
FiE

The Group has applied the following practical XEBECDER T A
expedients: TRRERE:

For sales contracts for camera modules and
fingerprint recognition modules that had an
original expected duration of one year or less,
the Group has not disclosed the information
related to the aggregated amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations in accordance with
paragraph 121(a) of IFRS 15.

(a) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. The “effective interest rate” is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset. In calculating interest income, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired).
However, for financial assets that have become
credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition,
interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-
impaired, then the calculation of interest income
reverts to the gross basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

Material accounting policies (continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (continued)

(b) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred.

Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are recognised as deferred income
and subsequently recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

(v) Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
respective functional currencies of group companies at
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional currency at
the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities that are measured based on
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign
currency differences are generally recognised in profit or
loss.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates at the
reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign
operations are translated into Renminbi at the exchange
rates approximately the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in OCI and
accumulated in the exchange reserve, except to the
extent that the translation difference is allocated to NCI.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHMEEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

1 Material accounting policies (continued)
(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

(x) Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

1 Material accounting policies (continued)

(x) Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies: (continued)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence,

or be influenced by, that person in their dealings

with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

EXGHHR (2

1

Material accounting policies (continued)

(y) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial statements provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

Accounting judgements and estimates

Notes 14, 20, 21, 31 and 34 contain information about
the assumptions and their risk factors relating to fair value
of share options granted and financial instruments. Other
significant sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Expected credit losses for trade receivables

The credit losses for trade and other receivables are
based on assumptions about the expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
which are based on the Group’s past collection history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. For
details of the key assumptions and inputs used, see
note 34. Changes in these assumptions and estimates
could materially affect the results of the assessment
and the Group may be required to make additional loss
allowances in future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HAFEERERMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

2 Accounting judgements and estimates 2 Fst¥ETR&sT &)
(continued)

(b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

(b) ¥%E - BERi%BRERE

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment at the end
of each reporting period. Property, plant and equipment
is tested for impairment when there are indicators that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the individual asset or the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). The recoverable
amount of the individual asset or the cash-generating
unit is determined based on the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use.

The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions
in an arm'’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposal of the asset. In determining the value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the individual asset or
the cash-generating unit are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgment relating to
level of sales volume, sales revenue, the gross profit
ratio and discount rate. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that is a
reasonable approximation of the value in use, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions for projections of sales volume, sales
revenue, the gross profit ratio and discount rate.

Changes in facts and circumstances may result in
revisions to the conclusion of whether an indication of
impairment exists and revised estimates of recoverable
amount, which would affect profit or loss in future years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

2 Accounting judgements and estimates
(continued)

()

Income tax and deferred tax assets

The Group is subject to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
several transactions and calculations for which the
income tax treatments are uncertain. When there are
uncertainties over the income tax treatments, the Group
considered whether it is probable that the relevant
taxation authorities would accept the uncertain tax
treatments. In making this judgement, the Group has
taken into account all relevant facts and circumstances,
including the substance of the transactions, relevant
tax laws, negotiation with relevant taxation authorities
and opinions from professional advisors. The Group
will reassess the judgement or estimate if there is a
change in the relevant facts and circumstances or as
a result of new information which is expected to affect
the judgement or estimate. Any impact from a change in
facts and circumstances or of new information would be
reflected prospectively.

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses and other
deductible temporary differences carried forward are
recognised and measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. In determining the carrying amounts of deferred
tax assets, expected taxable profits are estimated
which involves a number of assumptions relating to
the operating environment of the Group and require
a significant level of judgement. Any change in such
assumptions and judgement would affect the carrying
amounts of deferred tax assets to be recognised and
hence the net profit in future years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HAFEERERMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BEIEEIN > UARIEZIT)

Revenue and segment reporting 3 Wmk o EpEReS
(a) Revenue (@) W
The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing NREBNTEEXZHEEERH
and sales of camera modules and fingerprint recognition EFH - SBERYEHE (1oT)
modules for mobile phones, automobiles, Internet EEERRIENEGBEESR
of Things (loT) and other intelligent mobile terminals. FMIEN P IEH BREANER
Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities TEERNE T FBIRMEE
are disclosed in note 3(b). 3(b) B ©
(i) Disaggregation of revenue () B7
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with BTITEERIO»HNETRSE
customers by major products is as follows: W= -
2023 2022
=== =2
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
Revenue from contracts with BREMRMBEHRS
customers within the scope of ZBE1555SEE R
IFRS 15: NEREHRE :
Disaggregated by major products BIEERID
- Revenue from sales of camera —HERGREERAE
modules B UK 11,561,664 12,561,468
- Revenue from sales of fingerprint ~ —$5E 5408 7
recognition modules R4 BRI UL = 781,215 1,063,578
— Others* —H 187,920 134,124
12,530,799 13,759,170
* Others mainly represent revenue from sales of other * HMTrEBEHEHMESK
products and waste materials. BE L 8 B Y UK 25 o
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with BN EEIEB R E
customers by the timing of revenue recognition and THEIHNEERE SN
by geographic markets is disclosed in notes 3(b)(i) 7 AFL B 5E3(b) (i) K2 3(b)(iii)
and 3(b)(iii), respectively. i 5=

2023 EH EHNE EH) AR 292 9



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

3 Revenue and segment reporting
(continued)

(a) Revenue (continued)

U

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

The Group’s customer base is diversified and
includes three (2022: two) customers with whom
transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenues. For the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022, revenue from each of these customers,
including sales to entities which are known to
the Group to be under common control with
these customers is set out below, and arose in all
geographical regions as set out in note 3(b)(iii).

3 WmKknatdkE @

(@) Wut (&

U

Customer A ZRA
Customer B EZFB
Customer C EZRC

*

Less than 10% of the Group’s revenue in the

respective year.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121(a) of IFRS 15 to its sales contracts
for camera modules and fingerprint recognition
modules that had an original expected duration
of one year or less and does not disclose the
information related to the aggregated amount of
the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations.
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5E3(b)(iii) ©

2023 2022
—E=HF =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AE®FT
3,818,253 4,164,560
3,409,573 3,391,395
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

3 Revenue and segment reporting
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by business lines. In

a manner consistent with the way in which information is

reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive

management for the purposes of resource allocation

and performance assessment, the Group has presented

the following two reportable segments. No operating

segments have been aggregated to form the following

reportable segments.

@

Camera modules: this segment engaged in design,
manufacture and sales of camera modules.

Fingerprint recognition modules: this segment
engaged in design, manufacture and sales of
fingerprint recognition modules.

Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s most senior executive
management monitors the results attributable to
each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and direct expenses
incurred by those segments respectively. The
measure used for reporting segment result is gross
profit which is calculated based on revenue less
cost of sales for the relevant segment.

3 WmKknEHRE (&

(b) 7EBERE

FEREREFREERZER-
HonrEEEshATEERE
MAERERKRFEEFEERA
BEMDA—B > EEBE
2T MER 28D E6 - B
BEENBEGH R/ TIHE
WoEB o

— BEARERE: ZOERE
R -HERBEERBRRA
B4

— FEACEBUIRAR ¢ D ERfE

ERFF-HERIBERLN
Rl A 4

() HEEE
FL o0 BB B AY 0 B8f R IR SF
ROEERMS =% E
ReMRATEERBEEU
TERERSAZHRD
BIEAE !

Wm MDA 2Z&%E
DESFTEERHE B RZ
FNBEENEEMAXD
REZROB-ARKS
DEMEBNERRERN
HAR A8 B 2 88 B W AR
HEMATHE -

202353 BB (RE) BRAR 231



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

3 Revenue and segment reporting
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

3 WmKkaEERE (&

(b) AHIE®RE &

(i) Segment results (continued) () REEE (E
The Group’s other operating income and expenses, REEBNEMEEZ WA K
such as other income, selling and distribution X (Bl E MU A~ HE
expenses, administrative and other operating EoEREIZ TR EM
expenses, research and development expenses, KREEZ - HERZ-BES
reversal of impairment loss on trade and other Fe Eofh FE W SR IE R B 5 1B
receivables, finance costs, share of loss of an OB A LS
associate, and assets and liabilities are not REIBE UNREENS
measured under individual segments. Accordingly, &) WL ER D EETE o
neither information on segment assets and liabilities It HMEE7 DI EE
nor information concerning capital expenditure, HEBENERRBRER
other operating income and expenses is presented. 2~ EM &= W A 5
SZHEK .
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with BHE_ZTE-_-—_FRZFE
customers by the timing of revenue recognition, as —_TH+-/B=+—H1
well as information regarding the Group’s reportable FERWBABIEREDY
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior KEERNEHWA UK
executive management for the purposes of resource EREFTAEERSHKIAT
allocation and assessment of segment performance EEERFERSERSD
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 is BRI[AENEAEFBTZ
set out below. WOBERU T o
Fingerprint recognition
Camera modules modules Total
REEER IR RIER h
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT

ARBT T

2022
S ——

—_—

2022
—m——

—_—

2022
—m——

—_—

Disaggregated by timing of REARZRRE S E-

revenue recognition - iR

Point in time
Revenue from external customers ~ RESMIEERIMIA 11,561,664 12,561,468 781,215 1063578 12,342,879 13,625,046
Inter-segment revenue AHEBA 7,929 - - - 7,929 -
Reportable segment revenue A2RAPKA 11,569,593 12,561,468 781,215 1,063,578 12,350,808 13,625,046
Reportable segment profit/(loss) A2RAHEH/ () 503,409 524,798 (54,499) (43,071) 448,910 481,727
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HAFEERERMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BEIEEIN > UARIEZIT)

3 Revenue and segment reporting 3
(continued)

e R DEERE (2

(b) Segment reporting (continuead) (b) REE®SE #E)

(i)  Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue (i) B ZE #5750 7 2 18 it Y T AR

and profit or loss

2023 2022
—EZ= -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARF T
Revenue &
Reportable segment revenue 7] 2 3R ) 2 W = 12,350,808 13,625,046
Elimination of inter-segment ¥4 4> 2 S W &
revenue (7,929) -
Other revenue H 187,920 134,124
Consolidated revenue Bt (BEE3()
(note 3(a)) 12,530,799 13,759,170
Profit gl
Reportable segment profit  B] 23R 73 2@ F) 448,910 481,727
Elimination of inter-segment  ¥1 84 ) 2R k518
loss 1,591 -
Reportable segment profit  ZREARERINBELH
derived from Group's EEX: S vl
external customers 450,501 481,727
Gross profit of other revenue EfthUzm I EF] 58,355 59,615
Other income HAU A 384,067 287,838
Selling and distribution HE RDIHMAS
expenses (19,783) (13,790)
Administrative and other THEREMKS SRS
operating expenses (149,254) (141,923)
Research and development Ff 2%z
expenses (435,550) (469,626)
Reversal of impairment loss/ & 5 K H fth FE U R IE R (B
(impairment loss) on trade K5 #E], (R {ERE)
and other receivables 702 (243)
Finance costs BLE AL A (171,327) (59,874)
Share of loss of an associate & {5 B = A 5] k5 18 (49,578) (36,640)
Consolidated profit before BRI AT & i F)
taxation 68,133 107,084
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

3 Revenue and segment reporting 3 WEERDEPHRE &)
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continueqd) (b) PEEHRE &

(iii) HIE AU B E#

(iij) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (i) the Group’s property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and interest
in an associate (“specified non-current assets”). The
geographical location of customers is based on the
location of operations of the contracting parties.
The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location
of the asset, in the case of property, plant and
equipment, the location of the operation to which
they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets,

TEREHBER()SEERK
B8R = P B W et Rz (i) 2=
EEME -BER%SER
Bm-EBRTEERRBER
@ (MEEFRBE
E)BHMEBAERNER-
ERMEBAETREE]
MPENEEBEETE 45
EERBEENMEALE
DBDIRBEEEBRAEMNE
HE (BERYWME-BERE
i) ~ Ho BRI EH
HMERENEE) UK

and the location of operations, in the case of

interest in an associate. S (EABE QT #

) o

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REIHHEF B E EEEREBEE

2023 2022 2023 2022
—F_-= —E_C —E”= t- S

RMB'000 JESIVIZNCCON RMB'000 JSIVIK0UE
AR%ET RGEaRel AR T RN

Chinese Mainland RE A3t 9,972,395 11,569,799 2,338,011 2,768,104
Hong Kong & 34,466 4,185 4,745 5,231
India NE 1,882,304 1,456,098 372,322 391,804
Others Hih 641,634 729,088 431,689 325983

12,530,799 13,759,170 3,146,767 3,491,122
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HAFEERERMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

Other income 4 HMYgA
2023 2022
. ===
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Government grants* BT R B 129,996 150,118
Additional deduction of input value- B NiZ &R (MEEHR)
added tax (“VAT")* EIBPR* 48,768 -
Interest income A E WA 154,669 45,240
Net foreign exchange gain 4 BB Ui 2 75 KB 7,988 10,398
Net fair value changes on financial BAFEFABRBERN SR
instruments at fair value through TENAFEES T
profit or loss
— foreign exchange option contracts ~ —4MNEHIE S 33,751 30,730
— forward foreign exchange —ZHAINES AT
contracts (31,883) 20,634
- wealth management products and ~ —IE28 E R EEEETFER
structured deposits 42,853 12,081
Reversal of impairment losses on R—EEE AR R R ERIE
interest in an associate By (o] - 22,222
Net loss on disposal of property, plant H & Y12 - B 5 B 14 23 2% B 19
and equipment B183 58 (3,709) (5,066)
Others HAth 1,634 1,481
384,067 287,838

Government grants were received or receivable from
several local government authorities as a recognition
of the Group’s contribution towards the local economic
development.

According to Announcement [2023] No. 43 of the Ministry
of Finance and the State Taxation Administration of PRC,
with effect from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2027,
advanced manufacturing enterprises are allowed to deduct
additional 5% of the current deductible input VAT from the
VAT payable. Two subsidiaries of the Company, included
Kunshan QTech Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (“Kunshan
QT China”) and Kunshan QTech Biological Recognition
Limited (“Kunshan BR Subsidiary”) are qualified for such
additional input VAT deduction.

B A BN TS B #E 75 BURF 3P 2 I
WU (Em AL EH E i KE R
R B RBYBERD -

REFEB -PEABERRFEHAE
[2023]|F §H435 B2 _=F—H—
HEE—_Z_t&+-R=+—8"
TESE L EREF I EZEMNIEER
SR BRIRTT AT IO BRMG AN IR EIRE B
5% AABMEMBAR (BFELE
HMBEFRERMAERAE (B EIK
E) K ELESREDHBRARA
8 (TR LEYHFINB AT =5k
P08 B IR TR B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHMEEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)
5 Profit before taxation 5 FR#RENEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRI ahaM PR 0E GtA) F4&
BEBER
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
(@) Finance costs (a) BEERZS
Interest on bank borrowings IRTTERFE
(note 24(c)) (Bfs rJ$24(o)) 170,449 59,088
Interest on lease liabilities HESENE
(note 24(c)) (M 5E24(c)) 878 786
171,327 59,874
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AE®ET T
(b) Staff cost by EIRZE
Contributions to defined REMFBRAKRETRIHR
contribution retirement
plan 41,933 50,453
Salaries, wages and e TERAEMERN
other benefits 761,414 854,031
Equity settled share-based M= EENRMD
payment (note 31) S0 (B E231) (2,153) (7,211)
801,194 897,273
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HAFEERERMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BEIEEIN > UARIEZIT)

5 [FRBENEF) (2

5 Profit before taxation (continued)

2023 2022
—E-= —E--
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AEREBTT
(c) Other items (c) HthIEH
Amortisation of intangible assets BB E#H
(note 13) (Hra£13) 4,007 3,579
Depreciation charge* (note 10(a)) EZ W BzE10(0)
— owned property, plant and —BEEYE -BEK
equipment AR 349,689 371,884
— right-of-use assets —FREEE 89,946 91,435
(Reversals of impairment losses)/ B 5 ERIE
Impairment losses on trade (RBEEEER)
receivables BB E (996) 322
Impairment losses/(Reversals of Hfih FE SR IE R B E5 18
impairment losses) on other (RERE#EE)
receivables 294 (79)
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B4 B s B
— Audit services — BT RS 2,963 2,207
- Review services — B RRP 57 57
— A share IPO audit services* —ARBERAEEESE
BEtIRH" 3,842 3,868
— Other services — HEMpRFS 144 919
Cost of inventories* (note 18) FERA (HEE18) 12,231,892 13,407,567
# Cost of inventories includes RMB965,972,000 (2022: # EFERANEIFEARE65,972,000
RMB1,052,549,000) relating to staff costs and depreciation T (ZTEBEZZ® ! AR

1,052,549,0007T) » 8 T A Kz
NERSZABR ZETREITAZ
ERBHBEITE LXEBFERN
M EES)IN BN S IBAE SR

expenses, which amounts are also included in the respective
total amounts disclosed separately above or in note 5(b) for
each of these types of expenses.

* Kunshan QT China, which is one of the Company’s subsidiaries, & XRNEIMBATE z—E WL EEH
has submitted the listing application for the proposed initial EMERNFENE SRS FTE Kk
public offering of its A shares to be listed on ChiNext of the E'ﬁ'{@ﬁ;ﬁé AHyJ:FE?E' X ETHER
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (the “A share IPO”). Please refer to 5 (TARRE R ABEE]) - F1E5H
relevant Group’s announcements for details. During the year, the ﬁ'}_g AEBMEREA /\/_-I: oA A

audit fee for A share IPO amounted to RMB3,842,000 (2022:
RMB3,868,000).

H“E‘T\/Aﬁaﬁéﬁf’iéﬁr%)ﬂ%)\ﬁﬁﬁ
3,842,000t (ZCE - _F : AR
3,868,0007T) ©
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B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement 6 dHiEEKEEME2EKER

of profit or loss and other comprehensive FERIER
income
(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of () EHEEREMEEWRERP
profit or loss and other comprehensive income R IETS -
represents:
2023 2022
&=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARF T
Current tax BVERTR IR
- PRC Corporate Income Tax - PE TS R EHAih
and income taxes of other tax ~ RFEEER Z FT5R
jurisdictions 106 2,367
— Over-provision in respect of - BEEERERE
prior years - (15,230)
106 (12,863)
Deferred tax RIEFRIE
Origination and reversal of B E R E & R
temporary differences (Ht5£32(b))
(note 32(b)) (15,504) (52,235)
Effect on deferred tax balances TS —F — HIEIE
at 1 January resulting from a MIBGERNEE
change in tax rate - 1,952
(15,504) (50,283)
(15,398) (63,146)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BEIEEIN > UARIEZIT)

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represents: (continued)

(i)

(i

(ii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands (“‘BVI”), the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and
BVI.

Kunshan Q Technology (Hong Kong) Limited (“Kunshan
QT Hong Kong”) is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax at
16.5%.

Kunshan Q Tech Microelectronics (India) Private Limited
(“India Q Tech”), Q Technology Korea Limited (“Korea
Q Tech”) and Q Technology (Singapore) Private Limited
(“Singapore Q Tech”) are subject to the local income tax at
25.17%, 9% and 17% respectively.

BifEm R EMEERER
PEIFREH (&)

(a) EHEZmREMEEEEIERTP
HIRIEE | (&

(i)

RERSEEREBRELEHS
(TRBEXESE)) BRAK
ERAERBEANREES
REBEUBESHMNERFRE
M o

Kunshan Q Technology (Hong
Kong) Limited (TR E#%E
B1) BIE16.5% NN EBMNE
HBF)IFR

Q Tech
Microelectronics (India) Private
Limited (TEDE B #k1) ~Q
Technology Korea Limited (&
B E#k1) Q Technology
(Singapore) Private Limited
(THET % F8K1) 2 A E#Z
25.17% ~ 9% e 17 % RY A = 4
MEMPTISHE o

Kunshan
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% HET5EEIN > UARIEZ

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represents: (continued)

(iv)  The PRC statutory income tax rate is 25%.

Kunshan QT China was qualified as a High and New
Technology Enterprise (“‘HNTE”) in 2009, which entitled
to a preferential income tax rate of 15% according to
relevant regulations in the PRC Corporate Income Tax
Law. Kunshan QT China successfully renewed the HNTE
qualification in May 2012, July 2015, October 2018 and
November 2021 respectively and continued to enjoy a
preferential income tax rate of 15% for another three years

commenced from 1 January 2021.

Shenzhen Q Technology Limited (“Shenzhen QT
Subsidiary”) was qualified as a HNTE in 2019 and
renewed the HNTE qualification in December 2022 to
enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15% for three years

commenced from 1 January 2022.

Kunshan BR Subsidiary was qualified as a HNTE in 2022
to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15% for three
years commenced from 1 January 2022.

Kunshan QTech Optoelectronic Technology Limited (“QT
Optoelectronic Subsidiary”) was qualified as a HNTE in
2022 to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15% for
three years commenced from 1 January 2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represents: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

v)

According to the two-tiered profits tax rate regime
introduced under the Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No.3)
Ordinance 2018 (the “Ordinance”), the first HK$2 million of
assessable profits earned by a company will be taxed at
8.25% whilst the remaining assessable profits will continue
to be taxed at 16.5%. There is an anti-fragmentation
measure where each group will have to nominate only
one company in the group to benefit from the progressive
rates. The Ordinance was first effective from the year of
assessment 2018/2019.

Accordingly, the provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax
for Kunshan Q Technology International Limited ("QT
International") for the year ended 31 December 2023 is
calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits tax
rate regime, under which Profits Tax for the first HK$2
million of assessable profits is calculated at 8.25% while
the remaining is calculated at 16.5%. Such tax treatment
is consistent with the basis adopted for the year of
assessment 2021/22 (i.e. for the year ended 31 December
2022).

6

BifEm R EMEERER
PEIFREH (&)

(a) EHEmREMEEmEREIERSR
HIRIELE ¢ (&

MisE : (&

(v)

REC2018FRFH (B5]) (5B
35%) B0 (TG 3IARIF]
SRM RS —RA BRI
BE2EEBBTERR G K
128.25% 8% > M &R T ERR
ia M 1216.5% MR o R IfF
DERRE SEEEEER
LEBRN—RATERRE
MEFHE_ZF—-N\/"_F
—NFRRFEEFTRER -

At - BEZZ-_=F+_A
=+—HBEFENRURHK
HEEEBERAR (TEHE
BR1) BEFBREBETRERN
BRMMAARSGITE I §%2
BEBTERRERNFER
¥8.25% 51 E » MeR T3 0%
16.5%5T & - BRATR U FFiB H
TR EBREE A
BE_Z-__F+A=+—
BLIEFE) FRRBANEE—-
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SHMEEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represents: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(vi)  According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its
implementation regulations, dividends receivable by non-
PRC corporate residents from PRC enterprises are subject
to withholding tax at a rate of 10%, unless reduced by
tax treaties or arrangements, for profits earned since
1 January 2008. In addition, under the Arrangement
between the Chinese Mainland and the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region for the Avoidance of Double
Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect
to Taxes on Income and its relevant regulations, a qualified
Hong Kong tax resident will be liable for withholding tax at
the rate of 5% for dividend income derived from the PRC
if the Hong Kong tax resident is the “beneficial owner”
and holds 25% or more of the equity interests of the PRC
company.

The provision of the related deferred tax liabilities, if any,
are based on the expected dividends to be distributed
from these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future in respect
of the profits generated since 1 January 2008. Deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised in respect of
the tax that would be payable on the distribution of the
retained profits as the Company controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it has been determined
that it is probable that these profits will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BEIEEIN > UARIEZIT)

Income tax in the consolidated statement 6
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

SHEmkHMEERRZR
PEIFREH (&)

(b) BERARERAEHNREHRZ A
Bt EMEHAR

Profit before taxation

Notional tax on profit before
taxation, calculated at the
applicable rates in the
jurisdictions concerned

Tax effect of PRC preferential tax
treatments

Tax effect of additional deduction
for qualified research and
development expenses

Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of unused tax losses
not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses

previously not recognised

Tax effect of additional deduction
on depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Effect on deferred tax balances
at 1 January resulting from a
change in tax rate

Over-provision in regards of
prior years

Actual tax expense

BRI AT A

PRI AN S A BB RIRIE
BHRERTEERR
MNBEARXHE

TEEENBHFEBNRELE

BB 3R B ERIMOEBY
#EH E’5

AR N T E

BEZFRBANRBTZE

FHER A B ARIEEGEN
*H E’5

SR RSN EN AR IER 1B/
mEE 2

ME - BB R SR s B ITER
BN BT E

REREFHH—B—BELEREA
I\DE\%E’\JE;E

BEFEBERE

BRRBRX

2023 2022
—E”= -

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Tx ARET T
68,133 107,084
32,482 30,294
(7,487) (24,766)
(44,516) (47,788)
5,218 475
(1,218) (1,666)

352 951

(229) (1,340)

= (6,028)

= 1,952

= (15,230)

(15,398) (63,146)

202353 BB (RE) BRAR 243



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

7 Directors’ emoluments 7 FEEIHM
Directors’ emoluments during the years ended 31 December BE_E_=Fxr_F__F+_
2023 and 2022 are as follows: B=+—HIEEZEZFMT
T

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
Directors’ and other scheme  Discretionary payments 2023
fees benefits  contributions bonuses Sub-total Note 1) Total

Nk

LEA LT -2 G
ESHE RitiR  BRGERR BiETEA st ) it
RMB000 ~ RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB000  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTR  ARBTm  ARETR  ARBTm  ARRTR  ARBTm  ARRTRm

Executive directors ~ H{7EE

Mr. He Ningning WERLE 324 324 16 - 664 - 664
Mr. Hu Sanmu B=A%E 60 947 2 - 1,028 - 1,028
Mr. Fan Fugiang PEBEE - 866 14 - 880 - 880

Independent non-  BUFHTES

executive directors
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang ~ FIFRH%E 90 - - - 90 - 90
Mr. Ko Ping Keung BRERE 90 - - - 90 - 90
Mr. Ng Sui Yin RRERE 90 - - - 90 - 90

654 2137 51 - 2,842 - 2,842
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

7 Directors’ emoluments (continued)

7 EFHM E

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
Directors’ and other scheme  Discretionary payments 2022
fees benefits  contributions bonuses Sub-total Note 1) Total
BB A
5e RER O 2
EE L0k AR BAREEER WETEA NGt Wi1) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR
Executive directors ~ H{TEZ

Mr. He Ningning HEEEE 309 309 15 - 633 - 633
Mr. Hu Sanmu o Vit 60 493 17 - 570 (255) 315
Mr. Fan Fugiang TERLE - 304 15 - 319 (255) 64

Independentnon-  BUFHTES

executive directors
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang X HEE 86 - - - 86 - 86
Mr. Ko Ping Keung BRERE 86 - - - 86 - 8
Mr. Ng Sui Yin RRERE 86 - - - 86 - 86
627 1,106 47 - 1,780 (510) 1,210
Note 1:  These represent the estimated value of share options Kizt1 . ZELREIERIEAEEEG

granted to the directors under the Group’s share option
scheme. The value of these share options is measured
according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-
based payment transactions as set out in note 1(r)(ii) and,
in accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to
reverse amounts accrued in previous years where grants
of equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed under
the paragraph “Share option scheme” in the directors’
report and in note 31.

During the year, no amounts was paid or payable by the
Group to the directors or any of the highest paid individuals
set out in note 8 below as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of office.

ESTEHEEEHNEREN
EstBE ZEERENBE
R B 51 (r) (i) BT 85 2 &= [ 1L
D AERNACRZZ g5t
KRt E MEBZBEK &8
EHEBORTEERETSEN
BMECHARATEMEERE
SEEAIEHEI -

ZEBYRAEE (BFEE
RUBRENEIEZHRRNKRH
B)REFERS BRE
B — B M EES 1R ER o

RAEFE AEEHMERESEH T

XMESFENERRSH ALE

B RIBE BB EMAL

ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂﬂ)\?ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁtﬁf’ﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁf
VTR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8 EmE#mAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one A EsHFALTHRE—% (ZF
(2022: two) of them are directors whose emoluments are ZTF MR AER HiFN £
disclosed in note 7 above. The aggregate of the emoluments XHEE7TIRE Htmes (T2 -
in respect of the other four (2022: three) individuals are as F =) ATBEFMWAEZED T -
follows:

2023 2022
—E=-= =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREF T
Salaries and other emoluments Fse K E A ETEN 4,315 2,059
Contributions to defined contribution & Z8 £ FUR IR 51 2=
retirement plan 60 42
4,375 2,101
The emoluments of the four (2022: three) individuals with the FegrMG (CE - —_F . =4) B8
highest emoluments are within the following bands: FHALBEFMAFEUTER
2023 2022
—E-= —E-
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A#
Nil — HK$1,000,000 = Z1,000,00078 7T 1 3

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001t £ 1,500,000/ 7T 3 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HAFEERERMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BEIEEIN > UARIEZIT)

9 Earnings per share 9 HKREH
(a) Basic earnings per share (@) SREXEF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is SERERBFIIUERANETZE
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity BEEEAE A G AR
shareholders of the Company of RMB81,917,000 81,917,000 (Z&E ==
(2022: RMB171,151,000) and the weighted average of AE®171,151,0007T) &5
1,184,538,000 (2022: 1,183,902,000) ordinary shares in AN BT EEKGE I #EEY
issue during the year, calculated as follows: 271,184,538,0008% (Z& - —
£ 11,183,902,000/%) A E#
STREWT
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BRI B
2022
‘000
TR
Issued ordinary share at R—B—HBWNBETZER
1 January 1,184,538 1,181,986
Effect of share options BTHERENTE
exercised - 1,916
Weighted average number of R+ZA=+—HEER
ordinary shares at n#EF gk
31 December 1,184,538 1,183,902

20235 5H EHEHE E) BRAE 247



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

9 Earnings per share (continued) 9 SREHN @)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) SRE#EEET
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the NEE_E2E_-_=9F+_H1
year ended 31 December 2023, and therefore, diluted —t+—HLIEFE  SiEmgEE
earnings per share is equivalent to basic earnings per TEEKR RIEEREERT
share for the year. HERERNEREREF o
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the calculation BE_ZE__F#+"-BA=+—
of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit HIEFE SR&EEE2H
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the URANBTZEEBEIZTE ARE
Company of RMB171,151,000 and the weighted HEFARK171,151,000
average of ordinary shares of 1,184,043,000 shares, o) K E BN EFE Y Y
calculated as follows: 1,184,043,000f 8 A EZETE
wr
Weighted average number of ordinary shares LERIETF2 (1)
(diluted)
2022
‘000
T
Weighted average number of R+ZA=+—HNEER
ordinary shares at MHEFHE
31 December 1,184,538 1,183,902
Effect of deemed issue of RIERBEAR QB HERES 2
shares under the Company’s BITRMNEE
share option schemes - 141
Weighted average number of R+ZA=+—HWNEER
ordinary shares (diluted) INHEFEHE E#E)
at 31 December 1,184,538 1,184,043
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HAFEERERMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

10 Property, plant and equipment 10 % R E Rtk 232 1H

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREEHER
Ownership
interests in
leasehold
land and Other
buildings  properties Office
held for  leased for Motor and other Construction
own use ownuse  Machinery vehicles  equipment Sub-total in progress Total
BREELH
RIEFH BRHE AR
BAEEGD HttE  BERE AE Hih It TEIR i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Cost: A
At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—%-B—-H 1,016,206 45,008 3,115,037 1,220 324,071 4,502,441 234,117 4,736,568
Additions HE 59,303 22,261 224,020 345 22,748 328,677 179,238 507,915
Transfer from construction in progress B EARTR 257,602 = 1,340 = 27,991 286,933 (286,933) =
Disposals be . (16464) (111,182 1) (393 (131,797) - sten)
Exchange adjusiments EQEY (.75 (124) (2509 - 863) (6.250) 2,040) 8.290)
At 31 December 2022 and RIBZZE+ZA=+-AkK
1 January 2023 “%3°-%-A-H 1,330,356 51,581 3,226,706 1,362 370,009 4,930,004 124,382 5,104,386
Additions HE 3,326 7,020 89,555 - 6,769 106,670 52,807 169,477
Transfer from construction in progress EEBERTRE 85,058 - 1,877 - 6,378 93,313 (93,313) -
Disposals e @319 (2842 (56366 @04 (35185  (204,59) - [04,59)
Exchange adjustments EREZ 1,732 173 1,998 - 827 4,730 787 5517
At 31 December 2023 RIZZ=5+ZR=+-H 1,335,153 30,352 3,264,770 1,048 348,798 4,980,121 84,663 5,004,784
Accumulated depreciation: RitiE:
A1 January 2022 W_B-—£-B-A 061424 (4091)  (1,008124) @25 (4730)  (1,541,891) S (1,541,891)
Cherge for the year ERik ©3507)  (1718) (338279 (13 @219 (463319 - e3319
Written back on disposals HERER - 15,578 68,485 192 2,384 86,639 - 86,639
Exchange adjustments EREZ 17 174 394 - 162 47 - 747
At 31 December 2022 and
1 January 2023 (4914 (552 (1277519 @70) (2890000 (1,917,824 o978
Cherge for the year 778 (10801)  (318707) (o) (@2261)  (439,6%) S (6396%)
Written back on disposals 70,539 22,062 39,461 274 29,387 161,723 = 161,723
Exchange adjustments ERBE (26) (104) (331) - (169) (630) - (630)
At 31 December 2023 BIZZZ£+8=+- (332,145) (14365  (1,557,095) 71 9204 (2,196,366 S (2,196,366)
Provision for impairment HERE
A1 January 2022 R-B--£-B-A 20,182) - (30,027) - - (50,209) - 0209
Written back on disposals HERER - - 3,466 = = 3,466 = 3,466
At 31 December 2022 and RIBZZE+ZA=+-HkK
1 January 2023 ECZE-B-§ 20,182) - (26,561) - - (¢6,743) S 674y
Written back on disposals HERE 20,182 - 3,186 - - 23,368 - 23,368
At 31 December 2023 RoB-ZE+CAT+-B . - (23,375) - - (23,375) - (2337
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2023 RIZZ=%+ZA=+-H 1,003,007 15,987 1,684,300 331 56,755 2,760,380 84,663 2,845,043
At 31 December 2022 RIEZZE+ZA=1-H 985,260 26,059 1,922,627 482 81,009 3,015,437 124,382 3,139,819
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

10 Y% - BE K%k (@)

(b) EREEE

10 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets

REREESNS D ZEAE
BEZREFEDROT :

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets
by class of underlying asset is as follows:

2023 2022
—E°= =
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Viok=3 ARETT AREF T
Included in “Property, EPNE/ER Y
plant and equipment”: R
Ownership interests in ~ fERE R ENEIRITERE
leasehold land and TR EBEE LMK
buildings held for BFNEEERR
own use, carried at FIFTEERA
depreciated cost in the
PRC and India, with
remaining lease term of: (i)
- between 28 to 76 years — 282765 1,003,007 985,260
Other properties leased  IZITE L AFIERBY
for own use, carried at B EAESHE MY E
depreciated cost (i) 15,987 26,059
Machinery, carried at BHTER AT ERH
depreciated cost AR - 1,400
1,018,994 1,012,719
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HAFEERERMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BEIEEIN > UARIEZIT)

10 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 10 Y% - RERI%2RH[E (&

(b) Right-of-use assets (continued) (b) FEREEE &
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases REZFAEINEEREZHES
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: BEESWFWOT :

2023 2022
—FE=— = == —

—_— — — — e

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETT ARETT

Depreciation charge of right- REREEENS 22
of-use assets by class of EHEESEITERS :
underlying assets:

Ownership interests in leasehold ~ MNIAE M RIEFH

land and buildings mEEER 77,745 63,507
Other properties leased for own use Hfth 5 RS2 10,801 17,183
Machinery 1231 1,400 10,745

89,946 91,435
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEMNE HtsaE)

(note 5(a)) 878 786
Expense relating to short-term BRIGHAEEZ X

leases 473 2,333
During the year, additions to other properties leased for FRCAEERBEEMYE
own use and machinery carried at depreciated cost were MBI ERAT ERNKSS A
RMB7,020,000 (2022: RMB25,670,000). This amount AR #7,020,0007c (ZE ==
primarily related to the capitalised lease payments F: ARM25,670,0007T) ° %
payable under new tenancy agreements. THRFIEHENEERZEETE

REXZENBENRER-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHMEEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

10 ¥ - BB K% a3kl (B

(b) FREEE (&

10 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(b) Right-of-use assets (continued)

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 24(d) and
28, respectively.

(i) Ownership interests in leasehold land and
buildings held for own use

The Group holds several industrial buildings as
manufacturing facilities. The Group is the registered
owner of these property interests, including the
whole or part of undivided share in the underlying
land. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire these property interests from their previous
registered owners, and there are no ongoing
payments to be made under the terms of the land
lease.

(i) Other properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its factory, warehouse, staff dormitory
and administrative office through tenancy
agreements. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 5 years. Lease payments are usually
increased every year to reflect market rentals.

2 5 2 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

Investments in subsidiaries

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

1 RIBARNKRE

TREZIZTBREXEEXR
EENERNNBRATZER [
SAEBRPIN FIFRODENSEE

stated. B o
Proportion of ownership interest
BHEREGELA
Place of incorporation Paid-up capital/  Direct interest Held by the Held by
Name of Company and business registered capital of the Group company asubsidiary Principal activities
EEE BAAE HEAR
A4 HRRIRE LY L T % 5 1EER
Kunshan Q Tech Microelectronics Co., Ltd. People’s Republic of China (‘PRC") RMB2,887,588,000/ Manufacture and trading of
Notef) and i) RMB2,887,588,000 Camera Modules
EUERNEFHERAERAR R \RHAE (ThE)) AR 2,887,588,0007,/ 100% - 100% HEREBRGHEEM
VETV( AR #2,887,588,0007
Kunshan Q Technology (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,001/HK$10,001 Trading of Fingerprint
& 10,001%7.,/10,00137 Recognition Modules
100% - 100% BERGHERNRE
Kunshan Q Tech Microelectronics (India) India US$5,152,513/ Manufacture and trading
Private Limited HE US$5,152,613 of Camera Modules and
515251857/ Fingerprint Recognition
5152513570 Modules
100% - 100% E
R E G
Kunshan Q Technology International Limited Hong Kong US$10,000,000/ Trading of Camera Modules
BUEHREERERAF &E US$10,000,000
10,000,00057/ 100% - 100% EERGEESR
10,000,000% 7
Kunshan QTech Biological Recognition Limited PRC US$72,426,000/ Manufacture and trading of
Notefj) and i} # 15$290,000,000 Fingerprint Recognition
ELERENENREARAT 72,426,008 7/ Modules
ViE (] 290,000,000% 7 100% - 100% REREEENHAEE
Kunshan QTech Smart-Forward Limited PRC/ 21 July 2023 RMB720,000,000/ Manufacture and trading of
Note () and (i) B/ E_=f£+tA-+-R RMB2,150,000,000 Camera Modules
BUEHETRENRERAT AR 720,000,007,/ 100% - 100% RERBERGERME
ViEDN(] A 2,150,000,0007
Huizhou DEPAM Precision Automation Co., Ltd PRC/8 December 2021 RMB27,000,000/ 100% - 100% Manufacture and trading
Notefj and fii) B/ %" -£+_F\B RMB27,000,000 of Automated Precision
BN EERRERLERAT AR 27,000,000/ AR Equipment
Vi)l #27,000,0007C
HERBEEDRERE
Notes: MtsE -

(i) The official name of this entity is in Chinese. The English

translation is for identification purpose only.

(i) This entity is a foreign-invested enterprise established in

Chinese Mainland and registered as a joint stock limited

company.

(iii) This entity is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise established in

Chinese Mainland and registered as a limited liability company.

() RERNEXNBBERTX
SRR

3¢

RIDBRABNIIERERRE

(i) FZBE RS AR E P Y AL 5T 2

BEREERFANIIEBEBERRE
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SHMEEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

12 Interest in an associate

12 R—RBE AT ER

Proportion of ownership

interest
LA EER
Place of
incorporation Group’s Held Held
Form of business and effective by the by a
Name of Associate structure business Paid-up capital interest company  subsidiary Principal activities
ALK FEE  mARE ANEAR
G e TET H ¥R BRIREX ERER ] BE IEEH
Newmax Technology Co., Ltd. Incorporated Taiwan TWD1,841,918,480 35.47% 30.95% 4.52%  Design, research,
("Newmax') (SR RIA BIRAR) development,
manufacture and
sales of optical lens
(Note)
MERERNBRAE (FE) B AT 8% B 1,841,918,4807T FatERIBELT
HRBEE ()
Note: Newmax is a company incorporated under the laws of MizE . $hbAa—EiEEeE 22T

Taiwan and listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. Newmax

is a strategic partner for the Group in developing optical

lens business where Newmax has extensive experience.

As at 31 December 2023, the equity interests of Newmax

Technology Co., Ltd. held by the Group was approximately

35.47%.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HAFEERERMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BEIEEIN > UARIEZIT)

12 Interest in an associate (continued) 12 R—HBEQTINER (&
As at 31 December 2023, 26,160,850 (2022 26,160,850) WoE-—=—&£+-A=+—8>
shares of Newmax held by the Group were pledged as RNEEIIFAMN26,160,85081 (==
security for short-term bank borrowings (see note 25(a)). T F:26,160,8508%) KN E

EIREARBBPRETERNER (B
fizE25(a)) ©

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in the SN T NS 7Rk R P #E
consolidated financial statements. mE AR
Summarised financial information of the associate, adjusted TXHEBME AT 2T HEER G
for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to B ZEEN OISR ZF M
the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements, EEBEHFEE THESHEEHmRE
are disclosed below: ZEREEHER :
2022
~ RMB'000
AREFIT
Gross amounts of the associate’'s K& AT Z 48%8
Current assets RENEE 379,334 502,913
Non-current assets EMENEE 992,478 1,058,983
Current liabilities mEAaR 287,307 267,396
Non-current liabilities ERHHEE 460,988 541,393
Equity [ 623,517 753,107
Revenue = 350,185 361,459
Loss for the year FEREE (139,774) (103,299)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) EHM &2 EK S, (E518) 965 (1,462)
Total comprehensive loss P HEEIEAEEE (138,809) (104,761)
Reconciled to the Group’s interest Zs£ B Bt AT
in the associate w2z HiR
Gross amounts of net assets of the BfE /AT E E R EALZE
associate 623,517 753,107
Group’s effective interest NEEBERER 35.5% 35.5%
Group’s share of net assets of the ~ AEEEGLBE ABEEFE
associate 221,161 267,127
Goodwill e 57,874 57,874
Carrying amount in the consolidated & #f ##RF A REE
financial statements 279,035 325,001
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SHMEEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

13 Intangible assets

3 BIEE

Computer
software
sHE G
RMB’000
AREFIT
Cost: s
At 1 January 2022 R-EBE__F#—H—H 22,877
Addition hE 9,754
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 RIE2E-_—_F+"A=+—HkK
—_E-=F—HA—H 32,631
Addition RE 394
At 31 December 2023 RIEZ=%+Z"H=+—H 33,025
Accumulated amortisation: HetiEy -
At 1 January 2022 W_E__F—HF—H (2,750)
Charge for the year FRMEE (3,579)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 RIEZ_F+-HA=+—H8xK
—_E-=F—HF—H (6,329)
Charge for the year FERIOR (4,007)
At 31 December 2023 RZE-_=%+"H=+—H (10,336)
Net book value: ERENFE -
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=%+"H=+—H 22,689
At 31 December 2022 A _E - "HF+"A=+—H 26,302

The amortisation charge for the year is included in
“administrative and other operating expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HAFEERERMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BEIEEIN > UARIEZIT)

14 Equity securities designated at fair value 14 EAFEEFAHMBEIRE

through other comprehensive income MIEE IR EE S

2023 2022

—_E-= B &

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREFTT

Investments in unlisted equity KEFLEmRESES

securities 5,600 5,000
The unlisted equity securities are shares in Dongguan Attach GRS AR E e
Point Intelligent Equipment Co.,Ltd (‘Dongguan Attach HERRE (TREHER > —ERH
Point”), a company established in Chinese Mainland. The A I AB) WM A&
Group designated its investment in Dongguan Attach Point at BERNEEENEEIEEAR
FVOCI (non-recycling), as the investment is held for strategic ANFEFAHMEETRW T 0 #
purposes. No dividends were received on this investment ) O BRAZKELEIEERKEE
during the year (2022: nil). He-FRNZKRBELRKMERE (ZF

—ZF ) o

15 Financial assets measured at amortised 15 IRBSHR At ENERMEE
cost

2023 2022
—E2°= S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
— Negotiable Certificate of Deposit ~ —PJ&2:E7FEE 473,976 =
Current assets BB E
— Negotiable Certificate of Deposit ~ —RJ§Z: &7 E 121,589 =
Annual interest rate of negotiable certificate of deposit held by N TE T =F+"_H=+—H'&
the Group as at 31 December 2023 is from 2.70% to 3.30% EFEFANIEZEENENEN
with maturity date from February 2024 to November 2026. F2.70%E3.30% HIFHA-ZE

_mE_RAREBE_FT—A-
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B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

16 Prepayment for acquisition of non-current 16 URBEIEREN S EMTFEFIE

assets
Prepayment for acquisition of non-current assets represents WEEIEmEh B EW BTN IBIE N EE
the prepayment for acquisition of property, plant and ME-BEREELELEMMEA
equipment and intangible assets. BEENTEMRIEB
17 Other non-current assets 17 HthIERBEE
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREFT
Other deposit Hithizs 9,550 9,550
18 Inventories 18 &
2023 2022
—E-= —EF-
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREF T
Raw materials and low-value EME R EEHER
consumables 760,174 471,167
Work in progress & 464,890 330,386
Finished goods DA 552,451 382,899
1,777,515 1,184,452
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A HAFEERERMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BEIEEIN > UARIEZIT)

18 Inventories (continued) 18 & &)
(@) The analysis of the amount of inventories (a) HRAHHEZFAEBEPNES
recognised as an expense and included in profit SEHENSHWOT .

or loss is as follows:

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFIT
Carrying amount of inventories sold BHEEFESMIREE 11,971,551 13,233,640
Carrying amount of inventories BRAWZERNEFEN
recognised as research and IRMEE
development expenses 224,507 203,990
Write down of inventories FEMUA 39,650 51,467
Reversal of write-down of inventories 77 & /8 # 2] (3,816) (81,530)
12,231,892 13,407,567
The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior years BEFEFREMEEBLR I TEARE S
arose due to an increase in the estimated net realisable value ERHmEREFNESETFE RNGEST
of certain goods as a result of a change in customer and AT R E 0 o

market preferences.
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SHMEEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

19 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables

— third parties

— related parties (note 37(c))
Bills receivable

— third parties

Trade and bills receivables

Less: loss allowance

Other deposits, prepayments
and receivables

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be

8 7 EIRIA

—%=5

— M7 (Ba237(c))

FE i
—E=5

8 7 BUGRIE K R

IR

Hi#g s AIRIER

FEW IR

recovered or recognised as expense within one year.
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19 B 5 KR EthEUTRIE

2023 2022
—E=F =BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®ET T
3,880,699 3,295,149
2,229 2,692
33,157 11,226
3,916,085 3,309,067
(858) (1,837)
3,915,227 3,307,230
286,062 128,976
4,201,289 3,436,206
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HAFEERERMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BEIEEIN > UARIEZIT)

19 Trade and other receivables (continued) 19 B RHEHMEWTEIE (&)
Ageing analysis ARES MR
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of NI ESHEkR HEEZEHEBI O K
trade and bills receivables (which are included in trade and R EEEEENESEIRFTIER
other receivables), based on the invoice date and net of loss FEWERE (Bt ABZ REMEL
allowance, is as follows: FIE) MERE DT -

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR¥FT
Within 1 month NN(EVERPEN 2,815,371 2,307,905
Over 1 month but B 1E A ERSE R UR
within 3 months 1,092,546 868,151
Over 3 months but BiE3E A EreEAs UK
within 6 months 5,150 129,553
Over 6 months but Bia6fE A B 1EURN
within 1 year 140 1,621
More than 1 year BiE1E 2,020 -
3,915,227 3,307,230
Trade and bills receivable are generally due within 30 days to BEEKHZIBLREREE —K B
90 days from the date of billing. HEEBHIEST30EHEI0OH AN E
Hf o
Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk EANEBREERELEZERI
arising from trade debtors and bills receivable are set out in ERERZEEMESNEERRD
note 34(a). FLEBE N EE34(a) 0
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B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

20 Financial assets measured at fair value 20 BAFETAEENERE
through profit or loss =3

2023 2022

—g-=

—_ — e

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T

Wealth management products and IR E R R B R

structured deposits 511,242 1,172,751
The amount represents investments in wealth management ZEZEIENHAPEAME L S %
products and structured deposits issued by reputable BT 2B ERREBEER
financial institutions in the Chinese Mainland. There are no KB ZEEBEVMEMRERER
fixed or determinable returns of these wealth management R E E ek n] PR E B UR AR ©

products and structured deposits.
21 Derivative financial instruments 211 TTEEmMT A
2023

—EC=F

Assets Liabilities

BE afR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT

Foreign currency derivative instruments  SMNETTE T A

— Forward foreign exchange contracts ~ —3&2 HB9MNE & 49 - (43,771)
— Foreign exchange option contracts —INEHREE A - (8,529)
- (52,300)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HAFEERERMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BEIEEIN > UARIEZIT)

21 Derivative financial instruments (continued) 21 T4 £ T A (&

2022
B F
Assets Liabilities
BE afE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETT AREETTT
Foreign currency derivative instruments  MNESTHE T B
— Forward foreign exchange contracts ~ —3&2 HAJMNE & 49 11,111 (7,656)
- Foreign exchange option contracts ~ —9MNEHBREEAY = (730)
11,111 (8,386)
22 Pledged bank deposits 22 BiEIFERITERR
2023 2022
2= .

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT

Pledged for ABUTHIEEF

- short-term bank borrowings - SHRIRTT B

(note 25) (Bt5#25) 967,979 904,742
— letters of guarantee — FERE 333,797 14,439
1,301,776 919,181
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SHMEEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

23 Fixed deposits with banks with original
maturity over three months

Fixed deposits with banks with FREHA R A =@ 8 iRTT
original maturity over three months  TEHB1Z X

Annual interest rate of fixed deposits with banks with original
maturity over three months as at 31 December 2023 is
ranging from 5.03% to 5.86% (31 December 2022: 1.94% to
6.22%).

24 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash
flow information

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

23 REIFIRAE={EARRITRE
HATE R

2023 2022
—E_=F BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREF T

296,557 521,553

Cash in hand FERSE
Deposits with banks RITEM

As at 31 December 2023, cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank deposits and fixed deposits with banks
with original maturity over three months with aggregate
amount of RMB4,063,485,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB2,298,423,000) were placed with banks in Chinese
Mainland. Remittance of funds out of Chinese Mainland
is subject to relevant rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control.
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W_EBE_=ZH#+°"A=+—8>
REHAB=-ERMNRITESRRT
MERNE%R5.03%%E5.86% (ZF
“TEFTZA=+—H:1.94%%
6.22%) °©

24 RERIFEFEYREMIR
EREER

() RERFESFEWEIE:

N — < — —

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
72 142
2,893,012 1,348,742
2,893,084 1,348,884

N ZEZ=F+ZA=+—
B> &ANEBEGFAFEKERT
NIRERBEEEY BIEF
BTERERIARB =S
HIRITEHRFERNAERES AR
#4,063,485,00070 (Z& ==
F+__A=+—H:@ AR
2,298,423,0007T) - K E L E
H AR E A BEBESTHRBEINES
BRI R oA #R o
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A HAFEERERMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BEIEEIN > UARIEZIT)

24 RERREEBYI R EMIR
TREEN @

(b) BRIRATEF L EFRFRER
HER

24 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash
flow information (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash
generated from operations:

2023 2022
—_F-= =8 =
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
G ARKETT NG
Profit before taxation BR#2 BT @ A 68,133 107,084
Adjustments for: MU T EIERHE
Depreciation e 5(c) 439,635 463,319
Amortisation of intangible B EE#H
assets 5(c) 4,007 3,579
Finance costs MER A 5(a) 171,327 59,874
Interest income FEUWA (148,988) (25,299)
Loss on disposal of property, FBEEYE  BE &I RH
plant and equipment BE 18 4 3,709 5,066
Write-down of/(Reversal of FEEMORL (iR EE)
write-down of) inventories 18(a) 35,834 (80,063)
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ BHERE 5 KR H fthFE IR B
impairment loss on trade (R {ERs1E#[E])
and other receivables AEEIE 5(c) (702) 243
Equity-settled share-based MEREENRMDIRES
payment expenses 5(b) (2,153) (7,211)
Net fair value changes on BATEFAEB=EN
financial instruments at FVPL ~ &Fi T EMAF(E
EE)FEE
— foreign exchange option —IMNEHRE S AT
contracts 4 (33,751) (30,730)
— forward foreign exchange —SMNERHBEA
contracts 4 31,883 (20,634)
— wealth management —IR E R AR R
products and structured
deposits 4 (42,853) (12,081)
Reversals of impairment losses R —E#=E AR BER N
on interest in an associate AE RSB - (22,222)
Share of loss of an associate ~ FE{L— R E: = A B 548 49,578 36,640
Net foreign exchange gain HNEE W 2R 7R RR 4 (7,988) (10,398)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

24 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 24 IRERIIRESHXEY R EMIR
flow information (continued) EREBEF &

(b) BRIEATEF EHEEMRFREN
Hik: (@)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash
generated from operations: (continued)

Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in

EEETEE
=8 (g

2023 2022
—me—= —em——

—_—<—— — e ——

RMB’000

RMB’000
ARR T NSRS

inventories (628,897) 1,103,787
Increase in contract assets BHEEED (3,637) =
(Increase)/decrease in trade B5 hEMEWIE

and other receivables (1&m) b (776,171) 927,007
Increase/(decrease) in trade B5 MEMENSRIE

and other payables
Increase in pledged deposits

g GRib)
BIERIRIT B M

825,798  (1,507,332)

with banks (317,828) (8,955)
Decrease in contract liabilities ~&& & &RV (10,757) (7,666)
(Decrease)/increase in BEIEU A CRZL) /180

deferred income (34,962) 47,568

Cash (used in)/generated &&E (PR /FiERE
from operations (378,783) 1,071,576
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BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BEIEEIN > UARIEZIT)

24 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 24 IR RIRESZXEY R HEH A
EREEN &

flow information (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash
flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

(c)

MEFHEEZERYEEK

TERB/EEERETHELEZ

B2y -MELTHEEZR
BAARERBARKREERRM
ERNFEEGHESRERS
DESMELIHREREZE

S o

Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
RITIEM HEER 4t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFTT ARBTT ARETFT
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-_=%—H—H
Bank borrowings RITIER 2,615,977 27,520 2,643,497
Changes from financing MERERELE !
cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans  #TiR{T & FTE A 5,141,794 - 5,141,794
Repayment of bank loans BIRETEMN (3,454,201 - (3,454,201)
Interest paid EAHME (139,196) - (139,196)
Capital element of lease ENHERENEATER
rentals paid - (12,307) (12,307)
Interest element of lease BHEEHENMETE
rentals paid - (878) (878)
Total changes from financing ~ BAEIRSMESLEN4EEE
cash flows 1,648,397 (13,185) 1,635,212
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

24 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 24 IRERIRESZXEYWRHEHMIA

flow information (continued) EREEN @)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) MEEHEEZEEHKR @)

financing activities (continued)

Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
RITIER HE&R Bt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT ARETT

Exchange adjustments ERAE 38,381 - 38,381
Other change: Hithisg) .
Interest expense (note 5(3)) MERZ (HfaE5(a) 170,449 878 171,327
Settlements of trade BEEHERSEEEE

payables directly by the B 5B

bills endorsement 3,411 - 3,411
Maturities of bills endorsed MiBREEE = EIE

with recourse (5,616) - (5,616)
Increase in lease liabilities from FWFIILFMEEEE 2

entering into new leases HE&EE

during the year - 7,020 7,020

Decrease in lease liabilities from R4 IFTAERZESE

terminating lease agreement  Z fH & & &7 /L

during the year - (6,360) (6,360)
168,244 1,538 169,782

At 31 December 2023 BRZIEZ=
+-B=+—H 4,370,999 15,873 4,386,872
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BEIEEIN > UARIEZIT)

24 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 24 IR RIRESZXEY R HEH A

flow information (continued) EREBEN &
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) METHELEZABHIKR (&

financing activities (continued)

Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
RITER HEaRE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREBTT ARETT

At 1 January 2022 RS- _5—HF—H
Bank borrowings RITRE™ 1,757,670 30,734 1,788,404
Changes from financing HEREREELH .

cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans #7887 SRS RIE 3,280,792 - 3,280,792
Repayment of bank loans BERIRTER (2,649,884) - (2,649,884)
Interest paid BOFE (44,825) - (44,825)
Capital element of lease ENHEHENEATR

rentals paid - (27,180) (27,180)
Interest element of lease ENHERENFETER

rentals paid - (786) (786)

Total changes from financing ~ RER & RS ENBE
cash flows 586,083 (27,966) 558,117
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

24 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 24 IRERIRESZXEYWRHEHMIA

flow information (continued) EREEH @)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) MEITBHELEZABHIK (&)

financing activities (continued)

Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
RITIER HE&R Bt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT ARETT

Exchange adjustments ERAE 139,536 - 139,536
Other change: Hithgs) .
Interest expense (note 5(3)) MERZ (HfaE5(a) 59,088 786 59,874

Settlements of trade payables EBiFHETABEOZ
directly by the bank through ~ ZERMELEES

import trade loan facilities ANEAQE 67,984 - 67,984
Settlements of trade payables BHIEFRZEREEEZ4AE

directly by the bills B 5 I RIA

endorsement 5,616 - 5,616
Increase in lease liabilities from FWNFIUFHHEEEEXZ

entering into new leases HESEE

during the year - 25,670 25,670

Decrease in lease liabilities from A4 IEFAEHZESE
terminating lease agreement  Z A& & &R

during the year - (1,704) (1,704)
132,688 24,752 157,440

At 31 December 2022 RZEZZ
+-B=+—H 2,615,977 27,520 2,643,497
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BEIEEIN > UARIEZIT)

24 BWERBREFEYREMIET

24 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash
flow information (continued)

(d) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases

comprise the following:

Within operating cash flows
Within financing cash flows

SEAKERTRE
SFARERTRE

These amounts all relate to lease rentals paid.

25 Bank borrowings

Long-term bank borrowings
- unsecured

Short-term bank borrowings
— secured (note (a))
— unsecured

REFIRITERX
—EIE

DHAIRIT AR
— BRI (B 5E(a)
— AT

Bank borrowings bear interest ranging from 2.40% to 5.77%
per annum as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022:

1.44% 10 5.62%).

EREEN @)

(d) BREEZRESHHELE
MEEFARERER S
BEUTRIE

2023 2022
—E-= —=E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T ARET T

473 2,333

13,185 27,966
13,658 30,299
ZELELHEACNESERS
Ao
25 $RITIEM
2023 2022
—=——
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARET T
219,493 -
977,190 926,185
3,174,316 1,689,792
4,151,506 2,615,977
4,370,999 2,615,977

R-ZEBE_=F+"_RBR=+—H"&17

ER:SE=SRIRS

5.62%) ©

NFE2.40%FES.77% (=
E__—F+"H=+—8":

1.44% %
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SHMEEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

25 Bank borrowings (continued)

(a) Assets pledged as security for bank borrowings

At 31 December 2023, the secured bank
borrowings of RMB977,190,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB926,185,000) were secured by the following assets
of the Group:

25 RITIER (&

(@)

Pledged by shares of an

associate (note 12) (Htat12)
Pledged bank deposits BEFRITER
(note 22) (Bizt22)

(b) The analysis of the repayment schedule of bank

borrowings is as follows:

MU —iE R B R fEIE IR

ERERIRTERERNEE

RN_E_=F+_B=+—H"'B
R IRITRE AR H977,190,0007T
(ZEZZFE+Z“HB=+—H:' A
EE #926,185,00070) U 5 K EE
BEEEIRF .

2023 2022
—E= - 5
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AEBTT
111,660 130,143
967,979 904,742
1,079,639 1,034,885

(b) SBITERNEERBEDHAOT

Within 1 year or on demand —FERRRERER
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEBERMER
After 2 year but within 5 years MEBERILER

(c) Several banking facilities and borrowings of the Group

are subject to the fulfiiment of covenants relating
to certain of the Group’s subsidiaries’ statement of
financial position ratio. This requirement is commonly
found in lending arrangements with banks and financial
institutions. If the Group was to breach the covenants
the drawn down facilities would become repayable on
demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance
with these covenants. Further details of the Group’s
management of liquidity risk are set out in note 34(b).
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2022

RMB’000

AR T T

4,151,506 2,615,977
138,821 -
80,672 -
4,370,999 2,615,977

(c)

KREEETRITHE RERBEST
BITHEAEEETH B AR
MIEEXRBFEANZE -ZHREER
REIBTAREHEBNEELHE-
WAEEERZHE BIRNNHRE
BREREE KAEBTHHETH
BTFRENER BREKLKERRD
ESRMEENE T EBEHNE
££34(p) °
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BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BEIEEIN > UARIEZIT)

26 Trade and other payables

26 B 7 K EthE (4 TRIE

Trade payables

— third parties

— related parties (note 37(c))
Bills payable

— third parties

Trade and bills payables
Accrued payroll
Other payables and accruals

B 5 RE
Bz
—BAM S5 (W2257(0))

RS
Bz

B3 EA PUE R E E
st TE
HhfE B R ETE R

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on

demand.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
the trade and bills payables (which are included in trade and
other payables), based on the invoice date, is as follows:

2023 2022
—E-= ===
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREFIT
4,209,719 3,438,861
24,529 43,573
993,424 704,691
5,227,672 4,187,125
78,321 77,775
131,038 319,143
5,437,031 4,584,043

FREBZ REMBENRIBRRAN —
FRBEREDBHWMARBRER

B

Within 3 months

Over 3 months but within 6 months
Over 6 months but within 1 year
Over 1 year

INCHEERON
HBiE3ME B B 6fE R A
HBiE6E B BIi1FEUR
HBiE1F

As at 31 December 2023, trade and bills payables include
accrued trade payables of RMB706,654,000 with no invoice
received (31 December 2022: RMB472,756,000).

PR EHBER FEEHBR
N 2EZRBRNMNEREN
ZE (BETE S KHME
THIER) ZEREDFWOT
2023 2022
—s-= -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARF T
4,032,954 3,329,777
482,518 378,834
3,160 4,259
2,386 1,499
4,521,018 3,714,369

AN _E_=F+"_B=+—H &
5 FE A 7R I8 K FE (T 4R B 1R a1 4 N
NEEZNEFESENIRBARK
706,654,00070 (Z&E - —_ &£+
B=+—H: AR#472,756,000
JT) ©
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27 Contract assets and contract liabilities

(@) Contract assets

Contract assets BNEE

Arising from performance under REHESHNEBLH
sales contracts of equipment  FrE 4RI E FH

Receivables from contracts BRI 5k &S #E R FE1555 58 F
with customers within the ANE RS EIRERIE
scope of IFRS 15, which are 3t A8 5 KR H Mt AEUWERIE)

included in “Trade and other  (#7z£79)
receivables” (note 19)

The Group typically agrees to a one year retention
period for 10% of the contract value of sales contract
of equipment and software. This amount is included
in contract assets until the end of the retention period
as the Group’s entitlement to this final payment is
conditional on the Group’s products keep properly
functioning during the retention period.

All of the contracts assets are expected to be recovered
within one year.
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(@ GHEE

2023 2022

—g-=

—_ — e ———

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T

3,637 S

3,915,227 3,307,230

FEBRBERBURERIMF
HESHNNGNEEBER10%F
—FHNRER -ZETBFAG
NEEEEREHER RA
SEEBRERESERREN
ME R R A EE B E R R
BHRRITEBSEF-
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27 Contract assets and contract liabilities
(continued)

(b) Contract liabilities

(b) EHNETR

27 BNEERGNER (&

2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREF T AREF T

Receipts in advance FAEWEIE 5,548 16,305

BNERETERLER IR
BNMEBEER HEREME
KRR ERFIETE B MBS i

Contract liabilities primarily relate to the advanced
consideration received from customers, for which the
underlying products are yet to be delivered to the

location designated by customers or yet to be accepted R E SR
by customers.
Movements in contract liabilities BB EEE
2023 2022
—£T—= - —
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR ARBT T
Balance at 1 January BN—B—BnEER 16,305 23,971

Decrease in contract liabilities  F#st AR EENERN

as a result of recognising W EREREN

revenue during the year that a@mRD

was included in the contract

liabilities at the beginning of

the year (16,305) (23,971)
Increase in contract liabilities as & AUWENE £ FE(TIBEE

a result of receiving advances & & &EE 0

from customers during the

year 5,548 16,305
Receipts in advance B R IE 5,548 16,305
All of the contract liabilities are expected to be FrESHNBaEEztERN—FR

recognised as income within one year.

FESRASURA o
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28 Lease liabilities 28 fHE&E
At 31 December 2023, the lease liabilities were repayable as R_EBE_=F4+_H=4+—H &
follows: 2HESENEINOT :

2023 2022
bty T F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT N

Within 1 year 1ER 8,389 13,131

After 1 year but within 2 years 1EBEBR2ER 5,821 7,906

After 2 years but within 5 years 2EBERSERN 1,663 6,483

7,484 14,389

15,873 27,520

29 Deferred income 29 EIEYT A
Deferred income represents government grant recognised in IRE U AR R M 5E 1 (u) (i) (D) P &k
according with the Group’s accounting policy as set out in B 7 £ SRR EIT &
note 1(u)(ii)(b). Bfo
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30 Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution retirement plans

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in various defined contribution retirement plans
organised by municipal and provincial governments for its
employees. The Group is required to make contributions to
the retirement plans at 5% - 16% of the salaries, bonuses and
certain allowances of the employees. A member of the plan is
entitled to a pension equal to a fixed proportion of the salary
prevailing at the member’s retirement date.

The Group operates a MPF scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions
to the plan vest immediately, there is no forfeited contributions
that may be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contribution.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
pension benefits beyond the contributions described above.

30 B ERAEF

FEHFR KRS E

MUWPEERRE  AEBAHE
EEZ2EBETHRNGENE TR
BT RREE - AEBEBEREEF
S NTEARE T RN %E16%E
BARETEMERER-FENMER
HERMEERZKRERKERF =
[E E EE B A iR R o

AEBERB(EERGMEABES
BIFRD) BB (ERIEA) EE
THEREETHREZE -BRE
SEIARBUIRTEAEENRE MR
R E - REBEESE B
TRERERD A AEEAETRH
EEABHSKIERMER 5 HEME
A BRI EIR#30,000% 7t © # 5t &l
F By H R BB 57 U8 B SRR (AT 08
WH A A EEBIER L IRE
HRRKFE o

B 2t FR DS » s 55 B AR H A
X BRREEBMHNERSE
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31 iSRRG S

RZEZZEFNAA+TAAH X
NBEEI19BLEARARE G H
17,879,600 ERE (TE =
H%ER*%D‘I—ilJ)  LISREEARN AT &1L
17,879,600 &R EE0.01B T2
L@ o

31 Equity settled share-based transactions

On 16 September 2020, the Company granted a total of
17,879,600 share options (the “2020 Share Option Scheme”)
to 119 grantees to subscribe for a total of 17,879,600
ordinary share of HK$0.01 each of the Company.

The terms and conditions of the grants are as
follow:

R RRRAFHMT ¢

Vesting conditions

B

Number of Years from the Contractual life
share options date of grant of options
BREHE BiRH B et 2 FE R BRENSHER
2020 Share Option Scheme I:
T EEBRESEN
Granted to directors:
RYIESE:
- on 16 September 2020 552,000 6 months 1 year and
3 months
-RIZ2ZZFNA+RH 61& A 1E23MEA
- on 16 September 2020 414,000 1 year and 2 years and
6 months 3 months
-RIZEZZFENATH 1FZ6EA 2FZ3MEA
- on 16 September 2020 414,000 2 years and 3 years and
6 months 3 months
-RIZ2ZZFNA+RH 2EZ6EA SFZ3EA
Granted to employees:
BEYES:
- on 16 September 2020 4,495,840 6 months 1 year and 3 months
-RIZEZZFENA+RH 61& A 1EZ3EA
- on 16 September 2020 3,371,880 1 year and 6 months 2 years and 3 months
-RIZZEFNA+H 1EZ61EA 2FEZR3MEA
- on 16 September 2020 3,371,880 2 years and 6 months 3 years and 3 months
-RIBEZEFNA+H 2FZ6fEA 3FZ3MEA
Total 12,619,600
Ha st
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31 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

The terms and conditions of the grants are as
follow: (continued)

31 UEEmGEENRNBRS (@)

RENFERRESHOT @ @)

Vesting conditions

BRI

Number of Years from the Contractual life
share options date of grant of options
BRkEHE B ARt 2 FER BRENSHEDR
2020 Share Option Scheme II:
T EEBRESAN
Granted to employees:
BT ESE !
- on 16 September 2020 2,104,000 1 year and 6 months 2 years and 3 months
-RIZEZZFENA+RH 1EZ6ME A 2EE3EA
- on 16 September 2020 1,578,000 2 years and 6 months 3 years and 3 months
-RIZZZFAA+H 2EZ6EA 3FEZ3EA
- on 16 September 2020 1,578,000 3 years and 6 months 4 years and 3 months
-RIBZZHENA+H 3FZ6EA 4FZ3EA
Total 5,260,000

The number of the options to be exercised after each vesting
period is subject to a performance guarantee mechanism with
reference to compound annual growth rate of revenue of the
Group for the respective financial year as set out in the 2020
Share Option Scheme.

ERBIRETTENBRENDZE
MRBRHIFR LESE S _BF
7 AR M B B FT A5 SR B S Y BUE U
M FEEE.
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31 Equity settled share-based transactions 31 UEREENRGR S (&)
(continued)

The number and exercise prices of share options BERREMNEE RITEEWT
are as follows:

2020 Share Option Scheme | T EFERRESZ
2023 2022
—EC=F ZETHE
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
IfEE BREHE e EREHE
HKD ‘000 HKD ‘000
BT Tt AT T
Outstanding at the beginning REDERITHE

of the year 9.22 - 9.22 3,467
Forfeited during the year RERBRM 9.22 - 9.22 (3,467)
Outstanding at the end of the year RERHKRITE 9.22 - 9.22 -
Exercisable at the end of the year RERATE - -

2020 Share Option Scheme Il ZECTFEEREZI

2023 2022
ZEZ= ZRICE

Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
IfEE BREKE TEE  BREHE
HKD ‘000 HKD ‘000
BT Tk BT T
Outstanding at the beginning of the year FE 4] 8 Kk 71 9.22 995 9.22 2,644
Forfeited during the year RERBERM 9.22 (995) 9.22 (1,649)
Outstanding at the end of the year REXRHKRITE 9.22 - 9.22 995
Exercisable at the end of the year RERATHE - -
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31 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted.

The estimate of the fair value of the share options is measured
based on a Binomial Option Pricing Model. The contractual
life of the share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the
model. The significant input into the model are listed as
follows.

2020 Share Option Scheme I:

31 UEEmGEHENRGRS (&

BRENATERRR

MEHBREREYRBNATE
2ERLBRENATENE

BRENATEMGFE-IRIHE
EERESE-BRENGHEH
ERBRERESBMABIRER 12
ETENEREEHAZERER-
ZIREEBE R\ ABERHIIAOT

—E—EEFEEREZN:

Vesting date )=
Maturity date FHH

Fair value at measurement date 7 st2 HEIRNAFE

Share price &
Exercise Price TEE
Expected volatility FEHR R 18
Risk-free interest rate R A=
Expected dividends BRRE

01/04/2021 01/04/2022 01/04/2023

31/12/2021 31/12/2022 31/12/2023
HKD2.25 HKD2.89 HKD3.34
2.25% 7T 2.89% 7T 3.347% 7T

HKD9.22 HKD9.22 HKD9.22
9.227%8 7T 9.227%7T 9.227% 7T
HKD9.22 HKD9.22 HKD9.22
9.228 7T 9.228 7T 9.2278 7T

56.02% 54.90% 54.00%
0.14% 0.24% 0.28%
0.81% 0.81% 0.81%
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31 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

31 UEmGENRNBRS (&

BRENATERRERR (B

(continued)

2020 Share Option Scheme lI: ZE_EFERESZ:
2020 2020 2020
Employee Employee Employee
Share Options  Share Options  Share Options
—EZEE —ECZ —E_EE
EERRE EEREKRE EERKE
Vesting date = 01/04/2022 01/04/2023 01/04/2024
Maturity date FEH 31/12/2022 31/12/2023 31/12/2024
Fair value at measurement date 7R st= HEIRNAFE HKD2.89 HKD3.34 HKD3.82
2.8977T 3.34%7T 3.8287T
Share price RE HKD9.22 HKD9.22 HKD9.22
9.227 7T 9.227 7T 9.227 7T
Exercise Price TfEE HKD9.22 HKD9.22 HKD9.22
9.2278 7T 9.2278 7T 9.2278 7T
Expected volatility bEEEN] 54.90% 54.00% 55.17%
Risk-free interest rate mE = 0.24% 0.28% 0.33%
Expected dividends EHRE 0.81% 0.81% 0.81%

The expected volatility of each Share Option Scheme was
referenced to the average of daily historical share price
volatility of comparable companies operating in similar
industry of the Company. Expected dividends are estimated
as the average of the Company’s historical dividends. The
option scheme was granted under a performance condition,
and management of the Company estimates the probability
of attaining revenue growth target. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value

estimate.
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32 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents:

32 BHMBRRRPEIFFEH

(a)

Current tax payable FE{FENHRTRIE
PRC Corporate Income Tax FE{ZFRE

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(i) Movement of each component of deferred tax
assets and liabilities
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position and the movements during the
year are as follows:

Fair value
Fair value change of
change of equity

financial securities Unrealised
instruments ~ designated at intra-group

Deferred tax arising from: EEREELE: atFVPL Fvocl profit  Impairment

BOTE  BOATEIA
$ABEH He2ERD
$HIA GRHEES  Rum
ATEED  ATEED  SEARH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

#f
RMB 000

AERTR  ARRTR  ARETR  ARETR

BHMBRRZPHENAARIE

= .
B -

2023 2022
—T=H B CHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT

11,708 11,567

(b) EMBNEERFEEERER:

Depreciation

i
RMB 000
ABBTR

() LBEBREEEREKEESHLE

2H9E 5

FAR G H Y BRI RE
RNELERBEE (&8
&) AN E D R EEW
T

Right-of-use Lease Deferred  Cumulative
asset liabilities income tax losses Total
FREEE HERHR S VN S @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2022 RZEZZF-A-B 163 - 2,93 20,04 Y] (3.268) 3,084 30,295 56,297 109,989
(Charged)/credited to
profit or loss (ot 6fa)) (1,313 - (534 (5,439) (5,903) 62 64 6,863 56,493 50,283
Exchange difference on translation 5 45 - - 43) - - - (1,232 (1,230)
At 31 December 2022 and
1 January 2023
(1,109) S 2,401 14,559 (5,461) (3,206) 3,148 37,148 111,568 159,042
(Charged)/(credited to (ks
profit or loss fnote 6/3)) (W) 6,528 - (1,866) (5,453) 756 1,758 (1,758) (6,244) 20,783 15,504
Charged to other comprehensive BB A2 ENE
income - (90) - - - - - - (90)
Exchange diference on tranlation  AEERZE - - - ] - - - - 943 983
At 31 December 2023
5423 90) 5% 9146 4705) (1,448) 1,39 31,904 133,284 175439
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32 Income tax in the consolidated statement 32 &{HBAFEK REBPRHETER

of financial position (continued) (#Z)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) BREZIMNIEERESERAR:
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of (i) BHHBERXTLRHER:
financial position
2023 2022
—F-= =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREF T
Net deferred tax assets in R E B R ERH
the consolidated statement RIERIBE EFE
of financial position 180,292 165,666

Net deferred tax liabilities in R EHM BRI RESEN
the consolidated statement IRILIRIE & (E/F 58

of financial position (4,853) (6,624)
175,439 159,042
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised (c) KRERIEERIEEE

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note RIEMTEE1(S)FTE I T TSR »
1(s), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets NREBTRFERAMIEEIE A
in respect of cumulative tax losses of RMB36,901,000 R 136,901,000t (Z& -
(2022: RMB40,204,000) as it is not probable that future F . AR 140,204,0007T) FED
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised FIEMIBEE  BERATHE
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and MEEEHHERNERAXNOAE
entity. The tax losses do not expire under current tax EEOHANIKEBEENRIK
legislation. FERREF - RIFEIRITHRE>

MIBBENEEH -
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32 BHMBRRRPEIFFEH

32 Income tax in the consolidated statement

of financial position (continued) (#E)

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (d) KEERIEERIEERE
At 31 December 2023, temporary differences relating B E = E +=H=+—
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted H B F kx 7} B & F
to RMB1,308,154,000 (2022: RMB1,234,706,000). B B OB MM % EAs AR

pllﬁg

Deferred tax liabilities of RMB65,408,000 (2022:
RMB61,735,000) have not been recognised in respect of
the tax that would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it has been determined
that it is probable that these profits will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.

33 Capital, reserves and dividends

1,308,154,000c (& -
£ AR #81,234,706,0007T) ©
HRARBIEFZENB A
MEEHR BEEBEZS G
MEATEENRKRITERE
DEOMERAMDEZERE
i F FE AT 1R IB FE BB AR JIE MR 18
aE AR 65,408,0007T (—
=" ANR¥61,735,000
7o) °©

33 EE -HERERE

(@) Movements in components of equity (a) REEZBHESH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REFBSHEZZIXIDBNEL
balances of each component of the Group's &E;E“\Dﬁmﬁﬁgﬁxﬁg\é\{#@
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated B EIR o AN B K& E B ER

statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in
the Company’s individual components of equity between

DPRENEFRNEHFFEH
HIINE

the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

Equity settled
share-based
Exchange payment Retained
Share capital ~ Share premium reserve  Other reserve reserve profits Total
NEREEY
23 RiEE ERfE it RIEREE RBER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTFT NS AEBTFT AEBTR AEBTFT AEBTR AEETFT
33(d)f) 33(dlfi 33(d)(v) 33(d)(vi)
As at 1 January 2022 i F-F—H 9,466 1,426,835 4,504 66 12,768 - 1,453,639
Share issued under share option 1R iEFE R #1817
schemes 20 13,018 - - (3,404) - 9,634
Equity settled share-based WESHEENRATRRS
payment transactions = = = = (7,211) = (7,211)
Total comprehensive income FRZARGEE
for the year - - 95,602 - - 12,612 108,214
Asat31 December 2022and ~ RZEZZ£+ZA=+-Ak
1 January 2023 —3_=%-f- E! 9,486 1,439,853 100,106 66 2,153 12,612 1,564,276
Equity settled share-based WESHEENRATRRS
payment transactions - - - - (2,159) - (2,159)
Total comprehensive income FR2ERGER
for the year - - 19,095 - - (6,713) 13,382
As at 31 December 2023 RZ-®-=F+-A=+-H 9,486 1,439,853 119,201 66 - 6,899 1,675,505

202355 ERRH (RE) ARAR
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33 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 33 BE-{#ERIRE (&)

(b) Dividends (b) BE
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the () FERAEAETELTRIEFE
Company attributable for the year ANRBE
The directors of the Company did not recommend KANBESELAEFZIKA
the payment of any dividend for the year ended 31 BHE_ZT_=—#£+_"A
December 2023 (2022: nil) =t+—BHLEFEFENEM[E
B(CEZfF  \) o
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) FEABHERRTZ _E—FH
Company attributable to the previous financial FEEMELGRIEFEAR
year, approved and paid during the year |
No dividend in respect of the previous financial e — =
year was approved or paid during the financial year +_A=+—HLIHBEERH
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. EHLE SR A R L — B EE
ERKE-
(c) Share capital (c) B&Zs
Number of
shares Amount
v ¢=] EEE
000 HK$’'000
Thz FAT
Authorised: EE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each &R EE0.018 Tt L &R 50,000,000 500,000
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33 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(c)

(d)

Share capital (continued)

3B EE-HERKRE &)

(c) R#E (&

Number of Nominal value of
shares ordinary shares
BaREd= EEKREE
‘000 HK$'000 RMB’000
T TAT AR®EFT
Ordinary shares issued and fully paid: E&TREELER:
At 1 January 2022 R_BE__#-HF—H 1,181,986 11,819 9,466
Shares issued under 2018 REZZ—\FRkKE
share option scheme HEIETRM 2,543 25 20
Shares issued under 2019 RE_Z—NFREE
share option scheme HEIRITRM 9 = —#
At 31 December 2022, 1 January 2023 R_E__&+_4
and 31 December 2023 =t+—-HA-Z8-=%
—B—BRIZZ=F
+-B=+—H 1,184,538 11,844 9,486

* The amount is less than HK$500.

# The amount is less than RMB500.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)  Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of
the Company are distributable to the shareholders
of Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividends is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.

(i) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
financial statements of operations outside Chinese
Mainland which are dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies as set out in note 1(v).

Y ZEREES008TT 0

t RSB ARARES007T
(d) EENHERBSR
(i) RBRHEE

BREREEERAE XL EE
5]) A RBERMEERLE
WEEADIKTERFR
RORREASEBRZEIKE
KREERZ®  =RFA1MN
BERENEBEEHBES

BEEIEARE

(i) EERHE

EREEERERERER
Hh LUSN S 5 B9 B B #R AR Py
EEN—INEET A
BB THIRB I 521 (V)P &L
GEt B REE-
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33 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

PRC Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Group’s PRC companies and relevant statutory
regulations, appropriations to the statutory
reserve fund were made at 10% of profit after tax
determined in accordance with accounting rules
and regulations of the PRC until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of the registered capital. This reserve
fund can be utilised in setting off accumulated
losses or increasing capital of the PRC companies
provided that the balance after such conversion is
not less than 25% of their registered capital, and is
non-distributable other than in liquidation.

Share of other reserve of an associate

The share of other reserve of an associate
represents the share of unrealised gains or losses
on fair value changes in equity securities designated
at FVOCI of an associate and the share of exchange
reserve of an associate.

Other reserve

The other reserve of the Group mainly represents (i)
the difference between the carrying amount of share
capital of QT Great China and the nominal value
of the share issued by the Company in exchange
for all the issued share capital of QT Great China
under the reorganisation of the Group completed
on 26 June 2014; (i) The retained profits and PRC
statutory reserve of Kunshan QT China transfer out
under the shareholding reform completed on 29
December 2020.

288 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2023

33 B HERKRE &

(d) HEOUHERRRE @)

(i) HBEEEFE

REAEEDEATNE
BERMA RAERREER
Bl EZEREZZRPE
Gt B MEREE R
MEBEBEAN1I0%ETIR BEE
HERBEIEMEERDN
50%7 1k - &= f#EH = A A
RBEHRSABEIFELR
BIEARBIN AERREA
HEBRENEHRILDNHE
HMBEAN25% HERB
BINF D EC o

(iv) EIE—RME R R M #E

v)

G —EEE R B EMEE
ERGE—EBEAREATE
stAHMZE W@ AYEE R E
RN AT EZSHRER D
S EU KR EL—EBE AT
BYBE SR 1 o

Hithf#fsE

REBNWAEMBEEETETR
()QT Great Chinafy p& Z<B&
HEEAABREBEAEER
RIZE—OENRBZ+X
HREMMWERBZHBQT
Great ChinaZ B 17T
BAMmMBITZRMHBZ2EE
ZEHELE (B WL R
HER B -2F+_"A
Z+HAHTERBRS G2
ETEHENRBHEF RS
B K TE kB o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMEHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

33 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(vi) Equity settled share-based payment reserve

The equity settled share-based payment reserve
comprises the portion of the grant date fair value
of unexercised shares options granted to the
directors and employees of the Group that has
been recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in note

1(r)(ii).

(vii) Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
securities designated at FVOCI under IFRS 9 that
are held at the end of the reporting period (see note

1(f) (i)

(e) Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

3B EE-HERKRE &)

d) HEOMERRR (&

(vi) HUHEmAZF BRI Tk

DU 45 SR B AD 1T TR
BB FERIE M 1 () (i) Fr &L
LIRS SRR MBI & 5T
REIBRTFTAEEREER
BEZAR{THEBERENE
HHBAFEEIS

(vii) 2 FEFE (FaI#EB)

R EHEE (THRE) &
BRREHRAAREE
MBS RS ERIBOREA
FEGAHMEER
EEREESHAFER
stEEE) (RMEE10)

(e) BEFXREHR

FrEBEEEANEZERS
REAEBEFELCEES
BEARRBKTRERER
URUEGEMARGHE
B IR R IR B ¥R e A H A
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33 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)
(e) Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose,
adjusted net debt is defined as total debt (which includes
bank borrowings and lease liabilities) less cash and cash
equivalents.

The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31
December 2023 and 2022 was as follows:

)

33 B HERKRE &

Note
HtaE

Current liabilities: mEEaE

Short-term bank borrowings DHRIRTTERR

Lease liabilities HEAa®

Non-current liabilities: ERBEE

Long-term bank borrowings  EHIIRITER

Lease liabilities HEa®

Total debt BE48%E

Less: Cash and cash B IRERIREEEY
equivalents

Adjusted net debt RARBEBEFE

Total equity T AR KR

Adjusted net RAREARBEFELE

debt-to-capital ratio
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(e) BEAXEIRE (B)

FEBUKERHABRERERERE
ERSAEEEREGARREB
MUIEMS  EHABEEREETE
EoRBGRE (BERITEMR
REEER) RERERREE
HEEY-

R_B_=FKk_-_EB__
+TZR=+—H ' FxEBEKEH
REABRFELXNOTAR
™ -

2023 2022
—E==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
4,151,506 2,615,977
8,389 13,131
4,159,895 2,629,108
219,493 -
7,484 14,389
4,386,872 2,643,497
2,893,084 1,348,884
1,493,788 1,294,613
4,831,751 4,767,405
30.9% 27.2%
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34 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade receivables. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents, financial assets measured at FVPL, pledged
bank deposits, financial assets measured at amortised
cost, fixed deposits with banks with original maturity over
three months and derivative financial assets is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions, for which the Group considers to have low
credit risk.

The Group does not provide financial guarantee which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk in industries or countries in which the customers
operate. Significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting period,
25.63% (2022: 33.25%), 17.55% (2022: 20.46%) and
79.13% (2022: 74.11%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer, the
second largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

34 TMIAZE/MEAMREERR

AT

$$E§ BERBEDELEE
E-ngEs MNEKERCR-

TXRAFEREERZS R BRI
MRFEBEEZSRARAHFARN
TR R EEBR R E -

(@) EERK

SERBIEXRSGHFREET

m,\ﬁﬁi‘kﬁ'ﬁfﬁzkﬁgéiﬁﬁ
?Eﬂﬁﬁ’]ﬂﬁwozﬁﬁlﬁwa%ﬁ
REFERRNES B
B-AEERRERIEEEE
M-BAFEFABZNEH
EE -CDRBRTEDR ZE
AT ENEREE R
HA R 8 =@ B MiRIT EHER
ERITETHEEMEENEES
REER BAXRSZHFAE
EERAGEERARRENIRT
K& i AE o

KEETBIEHMBER
ZK%.EEDE'TD J_Hg”” °

AREBERFEPKEMMETER
lajt;ﬂt\ SERBEEEF-
CERBEEEHRFETLAE
l*”‘-“*%kﬂﬁlﬁu F R B B
éﬁfi RBEHR BEFZEW
RIBHEEZEM25.63% :%::
E.33.25%) v17.55% (Z&
T T H 120.46%) &79.13%
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EWBEAREBREREATFR F -
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34 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different type of
customer, the loss allowance based on past due status
is not further distinguished among the Group’s different
customer bases.

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

4 TMIAZEMAREERER
QFE @

(a)

Expected loss

receivables:
Current (not past due) BOER (GRaifp)
1-90 days past due #HEA1E90H
91-180 days past due #IHA91ZE180H
181-365 days past due #1HA181E365H

More than 1 year past due  #iHA#BIE1E

2 9 2 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2023

rate

BEHGRE

0.01%
0.32%
1.43%
95.28%
100.00%

EERE (@)
ES KR (&)

FEBREERFEATRNAE
EBEENTE (BEAEERES
B) R EEZRWNREEGRE
BE REAEENBEEES
BERRERTARENER
FEEREENBRER 8%
BMRESENBERERRA
ErEBIREREBE—D
&)

TEREJAERRBREERR
OB E R K E 5 R WRIER
TEREERE -

2023
T

—_———

Gross carrying Loss

amount allowance
BRE4AE BIRRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT

3,879,884 (425)
2,463 8)

140 @)

381 (363)

60 (60)
3,882,928 (858)
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4 TMIAZE/MEAREERER
QFE @

(@) FERR (&)

34 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued) B S EIEIE (42)
2022
g &
Expected loss Gross carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
TRHBEX REAEME EiERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% AREFT ARETFIT
Current (not past due) BPHEA (R HR) 0.01% 3,183,544 (309)
1-90 days past due A1 E90H 0.71% 112,292 (795)
91-180 days past due #IHA91E180H 15.60% 1,494 (233)
181-365 days past due #IHA181E365H 64.52% 31 (20)
More than 1 year past due ~ #1HAEBHE 14 100.00% 480 (480)
3,297,841 (1,837)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 12 months. These rates are adjusted to
reflect differences between economic conditions during
the period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic

conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
trade receivables during the year is as follows:

ARG EESENBE12(EA
MWERERER ZELLXREME
L S > LUz B Ly B2 E Sk #5095 HR
BIBYAS AR I~ BRI ST AR A
EEHEUGRIRTARFERAL
BEAR TR ER R 2 IRV ER ©

FREZRERBEBREERRK

BENT :

2022

—=_= —ECCHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREF T

Balance at 1 January BN—B—Bn4EeER 1,837 1,842
Impairment losses recognised B ERE - 322
Written-off 6] (996) (349)
Exchange difference on translation HMEEREZLE 17 22
Balance at 31 December K+IZHA=+—HB84%&ex 858 1,837
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34 Financial risk management and fair values

of financial instruments (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

34 TRMTAZERMERE

)

H

QFE @

(b)

The treasury function is centrally managed by the
Group, which includes the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of funds to cover expected
cash demands.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

2023
—E-=

—F_=

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

mlﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂki

PR A EEE R
HPAERERROENEE
REEESLUEIBHNRS
Bk o

ZK%@E@BZ”EEHH&@?%’%@J

ST ERKEGBEXLFENEST
|E/R DEREEFTHRE
FERRNSIEZETHEBERMH
BHNEAEES UEMHEHSE
HBEEHARBEETE K.

TRIITAEENEMEBERN
REPAXRZENREBRENR
E (BEREONER WBZ
/\_.\) RIBERREHARBITHAFN
XAENMNEMR BRTHE
HNEBHFBERAEERTREX
NHRNREBE

2022
—m——

—F_—

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BAHRBRRE RN BHRBRRERE
More than  More than More than  More than

1 years 2 years Within 1 years 2 years Carrying
Within 1 but less but less Carrying 1 year or but less but less amount
year or on than 2 than 5 amount at on than 2 than 5 at
demand years years Total 31 Dec demand years years Total 31 Dec
BE-F BEME ®+Z8 BE-F BEmMEF ®+ZR
—FRE /oK S =+-B —FAg [EE3S [EE =+-H
EEX [if:3 iE @ WREE EEXR k3 i A WREE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTT ARETR ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARBTFRT
Bank borrowings BITER 4,202,438 144,699 81,823 4428960 4,370,999 2,658,542 = - 2658542 2615977
Lease Liabilities HEEE 8,597 6,268 1,911 16,776 15,873 13,480 8,516 7,381 29,377 27,520
Trade and other payables B A REMERRE 5,437,031 - 5,437,031 5,437,031 4,584,043 - - 4584043 4,584,043
At 31 December 2023 RIZZ=F+"A=+—H 9,648,066 150,967 83,734 9,882,767 9,823,903 7,256,065 8,516 7,381 7,271,962 7,227,540
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34 Financial risk management and fair values 34 £RITEZSREAMSER

of financial instruments (continued) NIEE #B)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIERAME
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future MEXRAMEIES T ENRAFEE
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because FAREEREBEETRTHHEF
of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest KRS B & [ o 2~ £
rate risk arises primarily from bank borrowings and lease A XE MG FETEREETE
liabilities. Bank borrowings at variable rates and at fixed TAREEEGE B YIENEXR
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk [&E E F) = D+ BWIRITEHS &
and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group’s ERNPEASHEESRENEXE
interest rate risk profile as monitored by management is NS I = Bl = =
set out in (i) below. BES R A E BT X A T
I XEHE
(i) Interest rate risk profile () FIEEGEET
The following table, as reported to the management TR ERXNEESIEEZE
of the Group, details the interest rate risk profile of W FHAREFBRHREEFR
the Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting BN 18 0K 3K J&) Bas i o
period:

Notional amount

mfE

2023 2022
—EC=F “ECCF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARETT

Fixed rate borrowings: EEER:
Bank borrowings RITE 3,912,156 2,508,066
Lease Liabilities HEaf 15,873 27,520

Variable rate borrowings: FEEM:
Bank borrowings RITER 458,843 107,911
Total instruments TER@H 4,386,872 2,643,497
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)

34 Financial risk management and fair values 34 £RiTEZSREAMSER

of financial instruments (continuead) NG (43)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) ©) FIEER (&

(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2023, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits by approximately
RMB1,950,000 (2022: RMB444,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after tax
(and retained profits) that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the
end of the reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period.
In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end of the
reporting period, the impact on the Group’s profit
after tax (and retained profits) is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or income
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as 2022.

(i) #BESHT

RWR_ZE_=%+_RA8
=+—H > Hst A XERE
=, W50 E B (Fra
HMEHRFTALAE) » B E
K%@Bﬂﬁ?ﬁ 3 HM) K R B8

%IJH"\/i‘méﬁ/\Em
1 950,000t (&~ —
AR #444,0007T) ©

T ELIMETRBR
MESEHNHESHARE
o MEANRSHARE
M E2XAEBEMEEME
¢$Z$$l@ /NS ERIES
SNSRI AR AEE
E’Jlg?ﬁfﬁélmﬂ (RRE &
) BN EB) o LA EE
REREHERFENFTEF
METITEREEENERERE
MERBEMS  HEAEE
HEREEN (KRB A
M) FTERNFEE 2B R
MEESHEENFEEILH
EHZHWMANEEES
fd 5t o ?ﬁt/\_’g__iﬁ
BEINEZEETON

(d) Currency risk d) SRR

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
bank borrowings, and sales and purchases which give
rise to loan balances, cash balances, receivables and
payables that are denominated in a foreign currency,
i.e. a currency other than the functional currency of
the operations to which the transactions relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United
States dollars (‘USD”) and Renminbi (‘RMB”).
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4 TMIAZE/MEAREERER
QFE @

(d) E¥EE &)

34 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)  Exposure to currency risk () EiEmEpEAE
The following table details the Group’s major TRFVWNEEBRNSZSHSG

exposure at the end of each reporting period to HizkFr A SN EE S E
Bz > 5% 35 B B R b LUER
HEANEBRINEEE 2
SNBSS ENERRE
ERBBE-MERENM
the exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated = BEfEEMUAREY R
I DA 4% B RV BN AA BB =R 4
H-BMERIINEZOMF
BRERAEBZEEFR
EENEREASHETAR

currency risk arising from recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of

using the spot rate at the year end date. Differences
resulting from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency are excluded.

2023 2022
—ECZHE -
USD RMB’000 uUSb RMB’000
Et  ARETR T ARETR
Cash and cash RERREEEY
equivalents 577,274 40,651 801,071 51,172
Trade and other B2 RAMERIE
receivables 748 - 65,096 -
Intercompany receivables /A ] FEUR 1B 4,044,340 120,504 2,151,447 82,348
Trade and other payables & 5 K EL & {1 218 (66,315) (40,083) (63,915) (46,486)
Intercompany payables ‘A= B[ A (3,781,454) (174,730)  (2,868,221) (79,515)
Bank borrowings RITER (2,382,082) - (1,740,105) =
Gross exposure arising  EEREERBEEEN
from recognised assets A {E4AER
and liabilities (1,607,489) (53,638)  (1,654,627) 7,519
Notional amounts EXTETANAEZSE
of exchange rate
derivatives
- Forward contracts —-BHEHY 1,527,738 = 1,169,618 =
- Option contracts —HREN 959,706 - 1,365,062 =
Net exposure arising from BERREERGBEEN
recognised assets and  AIEFEE
liabilities 879,955 (53,638) 880,053 7,519
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34 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) that would arise if foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure at the end
of the reporting period had changed at that date,
assuming all other risk variables remained constant.

4 TMIAZEMAREERER
QTE B

(d) E¥EE &)

(i) SRESHT

IR E ST PO
5 ¢ A 5K [ 6 B A S BB A
5 00 FE 2 5% 2 B 8 (1828
PR A AL IR B B RIS T
) ME RN & EERRE
WA (R ARG WA B0 BD B
28

2023 2022
—E”=F TEICHE

Increase/
(decrease)
in foreign

exchange

rates
ShEERE SR
R/
()

usb e

RMB AR

Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the group entities’ profit after
tax and retained profits measured in the respective
functional currencies, and then translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling as at the end
of the reporting periods for presentation purposes.
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®)

Effect on Increase/ Effect on
profit (decrease) profit
after tax in foreign after tax

and retained exchange  and retained

profits rates profits
HiFHE SEER HiF%
il )-aa /. BRREE

ptil)-£ (FH&) vl
RMB’000 %  RMB'000
AREFT % AREFT
42,581 5 44,024
(42,581) (5) (44,024)
(2,236) 5 314
2,236 (5) (314)

ERZFB D ITRIAE R4
ETREEBEREUERD
FEESEBHNRRNEET
REBGEMOENREZE

Mk EBIKREHARIR
TEXBRESARE L
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34 Financial risk management and fair values 34 £RITEZSREAMSER
of financial instruments (continued) NIEE #B)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(d) EWER (&

(i)  Sensitivity analysis (continued)

(i) EBEDH ()

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables within the
Group which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The analysis has been

BRE DT THBRRINEE
EWEBERENEMTE
NEBRBESHARAFS
AREBHEEBRIIERRNE
BTE SEEEARAQE
R FE 1 7R 18 K FE R IE >
BERREBEUERASXGER
ANNEEBUINN & KT
Bl FBERBEIN
(XBUBEBRRREALE
B2 EKEENERE-
DRTBUE — =B~ —F4F

performed on the same basis for 2022. BB E #E ST o
(e) Fair value measurement (e) RTEE
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () BATFEAENEZHEERE
value &
Fair value hierarchy WNFEER
The following table presents the fair value of the TREJNAEBREHMTA

Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

WAFE ZFEMIE
RBREHREEEMEREE
StE WD EBERME
WEEREIBHE R TES
EBRAEN=HMRTFER
B-RAFESFEDEN
HFWMPBEZEN T EES
EFT R B A BB RE
MREZERERE -

s EBHRIHE::EFEHE
A1 8 A BUE (BD R &t
EHHEREERA®E
RORERM BN RKH
BRE SAENQATE
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34 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BEIEEIN > UARIEZIT)

34 Financial risk management and fair values 34 £RITEZSREAMSER

of financial instruments (continued) NEE &)
(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e) AFEHE (B
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () BATFEAENETHEERE
value (continued) A=
Fair value hierarchy (continued) LWNFEER (B

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2023 categorised into
B ZE+ZASH-ANATEHENEAR

Fair value at
31 December
2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
tZA=+-H
HAFE B4 B2 E#3
Recurring fair value RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
measurement BEWATHEAE ARETFT ARETT ARETRT AREFT
Financial assets: EREE.
Financial assets measured at AT EF ABZNEREE
FVPL 511,242 - 511,242 -
Equity securities designated AT B AEMZE KRN
at FVOCl ISR EES 5,600 - - 5,600
Financial liabilities: ERERE:

Derivative financial instruments $74£ 48 T A
- Forward foreign exchange  —REISNESK)

contracts (43,771) - (43,771) -
- Foreign exchange option ~ —NEERERH
contracts (8,529) - (8,529) -
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34 Financial risk management and fair values

4 TMIAZEMAREERER

of financial instruments (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

QFE @

(e) AFEE #E)

() HATFEAENZTHEERE

=&

AT EER ()

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2022 categorised into

RIFZZE+ZA=+—HNATEHENES

Fair value at
31 December
2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
s S
+-R=+-H
NAFE B4R B2 B3
Recurring fair value RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
measurement REUATEFE AE®EFTR AR®FTT AR®FT AR®EFT
Financial assets: ERBE:
Financial assets measured at AT EFFAB TN EH
FVPL BE 1,172,751 - 1,172,751 -
Equity securities designated at AT Et ARt 2 ERE
FVOCI e RIS 3 5,000 - - 5,000
Derivative financial instruments f74£ &8 TE
- Forward foreign exchange ~ —&HSMNESH
contracts 11,111 - 11,111 -
Financial liabilities: ERaRE:
Derivative financial instruments #7428 T &
— Foreign currency option —MEHREEL
contracts (730) - (730) -
- Forward foreign exchange ~ —EHASMNE A
contracts (7,656) - (7,656) -

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and

_:E‘f'_ﬁ :‘f'—ElJJ:
FE>EBHR1EEHK2 2 [
WM REBEANE
H g #3 e K%W%%

2023, there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the

reporting period in which they occur. RN ERE K2 B IR E
BHR S Xﬁﬁuuﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁ}
B o
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

34 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

0

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

The fair value of financial assets measured at FVPL
in Level 2 is determined using discounted cash flow
models. The discount rate used is derived from the
relevant government yield curve as at the end of
each reporting period plus an adequate constant
credit spread.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts
in Level 2 is determined by discounting the
difference between the contractual forward price
and the current forward price. The discount rate
used is derived from the relevant government yield
curve as at the end of the reporting period plus an
adequate constant credit spread.

The fair value of foreign currency option contracts in
Level 2 is determined by using the Black-Scholes-
Merton model.

4 EMIAZERMARE

Hx

AT ()

(e) AFEHE #E)

)

BATEAENETHEERR
" (#E)

MReRTlEE BT ARIILE
Tt RN B

B2z &~ FEF AIE
TN EMEEZANFET
FRLEREESREENE
EofiEAZIRETR
BERSHREHARNVERK
NEEHESNTERTE
HEEEE-

[B#r2 2z ZHASMNE S Z A
FELEBRIRSLIZAA
EBRERTERER ZE
NEZEMEBET FIERZ
BRIRETVRERREHHR
B A8 B U 22 2 A AR 55 0
TREENEEEE-

Bz StERESHNZ A
FEDLEAENZ—FW
H—SRREMEE -

202353 BB (RE) BRAR 303



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

4 TMIAZEMAREERER
QFE @

(e) AFEE #E)

34 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i)

BATEAENEHEERR

value (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Equity securities designated at FVOCI mainly
represented investments in Dongguan Attach Point.
The fair value of Dongguan Attach Point was mainly
determined with reference to the latest available
financial information, adjusted by unobservable
inputs such as latest-round financing of the funds’
underlying investments, when applicable. The
higher the price of the latest-round financing for
these underlying investments, the higher the fair
value of the FVOCI would be. The movement during
the year in the balance of this Level 3 fair value
measurement is as follows:

& (&)
B RBARIL T EE BHIEH

BAFESAHMEEK
mEEREESTERE
RENREEE - R<ME
M AFEEEHES
ERWMASYBENERE
B WRBEATER®EA
BEETHE JUNER
HEKRENRT— W E
(MBER) ~ZFHEAR
BERNRM—HREERE
S BRAFEFAHEME
ERZHNAFERES -

ZBRIA T AT ELERN

Py EEN N -
2023 2022
T = =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFT
Unlisted equity securities: JE TR HEES .
At 1 January n—HB—H 5,000 -
Payment for purchases BENR - 5,000
Net unrealised gains recognised £ XX EM L2 E WS
in other comprehensive income  psn gy sk B IR I 35 E 28
during the year 600 -
At 31 December B+ZHA=+—H 5,600 5,000
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34 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

0

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

Any gain or loss arising from the remeasurement
of the Group’s unlisted equity securities held for
strategic purposes are recognised in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) in other comprehensive
income. Upon disposal of the equity securities,
the amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income is transferred directly to retained earnings.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost were not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2022 and 2023.

35 Commitments

Commitments outstanding at 31 December 2023 not

provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

4 TMIAZE/MEAREERER

NEE @)
(e) XFEHE &)

() HATFEFAENZTHEERE
" (#E)

B RB RN T EE BHIEH
(&)

EMEAERSRER
BIFFFFRYIE £ TH IR 58 55
FTEENEAEmIER
REMEE R T AEE S
NFERFE (TR EE) -
£ E R e se o5 By 0 H A
EEHBE RN EERE
BREBAFREET -

(i) FFELFEFREZHEE
REEIAFlE

233 F8 FLEIN T
ST ANKEERILL
T ECTEFERIEZ=
TSR +-BmATE
B AR o

35 JKIE

R_E_=ZF+"_A=+—HKE=X
EEANRMBRRITETIREEN
AREWNT -

2023 2022
—E_=F - =——
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR T

Contracted for acquisition of BEYE- WERHIER
property, plant and equipment N&E#H

& 1

140,246 124,474
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36 HAEH

36 Contingencies

Kunshan Q Tech Microelectronics (India) Private Limited
(“India Q Tech”) has been involved in inspections initiated
by relevant Indian authorities including the Income Tax
Department and the Directorate of Revenue Intelligence in
relation to compliance with relevant income tax regulations
and custom duties regulations.

In connection with one of the inspections mentioned above,
on 30 December 2023, India Q Tech, a subsidiary of the
Company, received a draft assessment order ("DAQ”")
from Government of India Ministry of Finance Income Tax
Department Office of The Assistant Commissioner of Income
Tax, Central Circle 30, Delhi ("the relevant Indian authorities”).
The DAO is looking into the treatment of costs and expenses,
including purchase costs of raw material and machineries
paid to companies within the Group, when computing its
taxable income during the year ended 31 March 2021.

Management assessed the aforesaid matter related to India
Q Tech, taking into considerations of all relevant facts and
circumstances including opinions from tax advisors, and
concluded India Q Tech has valid grounds to object to the
relevant Indian authorities. The Group, hence, has not made
any provision as of 31 December 2023 pertaining to the
matter.

Tax disputes of this nature is expected to take a long period
of time and involve various levels of government and court
authorities before a judgment or settlement can be reached.
The Group could receive judgments or enter into settlements
that may adversely affect its operating results or cash
flows. Considering the current early stage of proceedings,
quantifying the related financial effects is not practicable at
this stage.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 BT58EI > UA R IE3IT)

37 Material related party transactions

In addition to the related party information disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions:

Name of related parties

R Bk 75 % 78

37 EXFABBE RS

frz E M B IREREME 0PIk E Y
BE S ERN AEEBESTIULUT
BERMBARS !

Relationship with the Group
A Btk 75 % 78 B s [ YRR (R

CK Telecom Limited* (“Heyuan CK”)
(MErBERMm®RE (R BRAE)
AR A E M & E CR) BARAB (DREE))

Van Telecom Limited* (“Van Telecom PRC”)
(MgZRXHRAB)
WZRRAERAT (LR HRE))

C-Flex Electronic (Huangshi) Ltd. * (“Huangshi C-Flex”)
(EaAEEFRZBRAB)
EOAAEETFREARAE (EAAE))

Heyuan Youhua Micro Electronic Technology
Company Limited* (“Heyuan Youhua”)
(DRRZEMIEER B R AE
ARREMEERRBRAR (DRAZEE)

Dongguan Xinxu Optical Limited* (“Dongguan Xinxu”)
(TREMBHBERAF)
REHMBHEFRAE] (TREHBI)

Xiamen Zhonghui Microelectronics Co., Ltd.*
("Xiamen Zhonghui") (TEFIH R EMEFHBRAE)
EFTREMEFAERAS (EPIRED)

SHENZHEN CK Telecom Limited* (“Shenzhen CK”)
(MR AR EBERNREBRAF)
AT EERERMRERRAR (NRIIFER)

* The English translation of the companies’ names is for reference
only. The official names of these companies are in Chinese.

Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
BRI B

Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
A B S A 4

Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
el S B S AR 4

Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
==k R ]
A subsidiary of an associate of the Group

AEEBHERTHNME AT

Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
B fn] 88 58 5 A 42 1

Controlled by Mr. He Ningning

ERO =R e |

Y RERERBZEXBEERSE R
S ABINERBBEAF o

PR
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37 Material related party transactions
(continued)

(a) Key management personnel

(@) TEEBEASHM

Salaries, wages and other e IEREMEFR
benefits
Contributions to defined REMFEEAKREIMHET

contribution retirement plans

The above remuneration to key management personnel
is included in “staff costs” (note 5(b)).

(b) Other transactions with related parties

37 EXEAMBRSZ #E)

2023 2022
—®_= B —

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AERBTT

8,216 5,409

148 149

8,364 5,558

FHRFESBASFMEL
rE T a4 (F5E5(b)) ©

(b) ERAERAREMZ S

Sales of products to ERET
— Xiamen Zhonghui —EFIRE
- Heyuan CK —ALRF R
Purchases of products from EmEE
— Huangshi C-Flex —=0E%
— Heyuan Youhua — R RE
— Dongguan Xinxu —HREME
Lease of equipments to REHEET
— Xiamen Zhonghui —EfRE
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2023 2022
—EZ= TECCF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREEFT
11,771 23,821
210 92

11,981 23,913
136,673 120,379
163,864 39,379
6,230 22 845
306,767 182,603
830 591
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37 Material related party transactions 37 EXMMARS #E)
(continued)
(c) Balances with related parties (c) EARAHEE S 45ER
(i) Due from related parties () USRI A
2022
RMB’000
AREBETT
Trade-related B 5 18R]
Trade receivables B 5 EWRIE
— Heyuan CK —ARPR R 229 =
— Xiamen Zhonghui —EfRE 2,000 2,692
2,229 2,692
Other receivables H A E R IE
- Shenzhen CK —#YIFET] 68 68
(i) Due to related parties (i) FETEIH
2023 2022
ZEZ=F R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
Trade-related =RZR L
Trade and bills payable B 5 N IR EN R
- Huangshi C-Flex —E=ORE 17,603 26,779
- Heyuan Youhua —R AR EE 5,539 12,267
— Dongguan Xinxu —HEME 1,387 4,527
24,529 43,573
. N — &R — T — = — —
The amounts due from/to related parties as at 31 \ZET=FRIEC
December 2023 and 2022 were expected to be F+ZHA=+—H > EBIK
recovered/repaid within one year. / FEAT BRI B 5 AR IB TR A

R—FERuE fEE-

023555 EaHE G AR2E 309



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HFEERRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% B1EREI > UA R EEFIT)

37 Material related party transactions 37 EXMAMARS &
(continued)
(c) Balances with related parties (continued) (c) HLRAEtA4EER (B2)
(iij) Lease Liabilities (i) THEBE
2023 2022
—Z=-= —E-
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREEF T
Lease liabilities HEaRE
— Van Telecom PRC —ME LR 8,033 16,823
— Shenzhen CK —ZIFg ] 922 399
8,955 17,222

The Group entered into leases in respect of certain
leasehold properties from its related parties, with
lease terms of 2~3 years. During the year, the
amounts of rent paid by the Group under the lease
to its related parties were RMB5,244,000 (2022:
RMB6,436,000).
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38 Company level statement of financial 38 ARIREMFTIRREK
position
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
&t AREF T AREFIT
Non-current assets ERHEE
Investments in subsidiaries R EABNEE 158,871 161,021
Investments in an associate R—EEE AN E 275,236 275,236
Amount due from a subsidiary & W — B A 5718 566,643 557,195
1,000,750 993,452
Current assets RENEE
Amount due from subsidiaries FEULHT B A B =18 572,381 569,493
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEBEY 2,701 2,810
575,082 572,303
Current liabilities REIAE
Trade and other payables B5 REMENRIE - 552
Amount due to a subsidiary I —EH B AR RIE 327 927
327 1,479
Net current assets MEEERE 574,755 570,824
Total assets less current MEERTHERE
liabilities and net assets rREEZRE 1,575,505 1,564,276
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B KB
Share capital [N 33(c) 9,486 9,486
Reserves 15 33(d) 1,566,019 1,554,790
TOTAL EQUITY AR %E 1,575,505 1,564,276

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 25 March 2024.

He Ningning
Executive Director and
Chairman

Hu Sanmu
Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer

EFgRN _E_WNE=B_+AH
i = |

AEZE =K
RITEFFRLE RITEFFRITH
k=4
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39

40

Immediate and ultimate controlling party

As at 31 December 2023, the directors consider the
immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group
to be Q Technology Investment Inc., which is incorporated in
the BVI, and be Mr. He Ningning, respectively.

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2023

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB has issued a number of new or amended standards,
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2023 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.

39

40

BEERR&EERS

N_E_=F+"_HBA=+—H'&
$u,u%$$l5’]§hz!’&7)§zai,.\
ERAEDNANREBERES
L IZAIQ Technology Investment

Inc. R A/ EE S o

:-I- EIJJ:EEE';ﬁEﬁEl‘EF:'ﬂ'
REXBERT =T ER 2
ETERY I RERCE

BEZFMHRERTEEH  BER
S EEZEERBIZIENEE
—E_=HF+_A=T—HIEEE
M R E XA FTE] BT 2R ZF
Eﬂ“%ﬁ%‘%]ﬁﬁﬂmﬁhmﬁ%ﬁﬂgﬂ&
ZR - ZEUREELUTAIERAS
EEMEREE -

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
R BRBAHZEREH
BEtHAREX

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements:
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current ("2020
amendments”)

BREstEREIE (BSTR) - HHFREXZES -
BESEZRELIFTE ((ZEZEFEETA)

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements:

Non- currenz‘ liabilities with covenants ("2020 amendments”)

Bl S st 2R B 15% (1&?2&) 53‘%%5%%%’% ;
WA E B EE ([ —F _—FFETE))

Amendments to IFRS 16, Leases: Lease //ab///z‘y in a sale and leaseback
CEBRMEEIXZPHEESE

BUFR B3R S 2RI SE165% (BET &) - HE

Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows and IFRS 7,

Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Supplier finance arrangements

' BEREBRREEHFEIREZER

R 53R S RSB 798 (1BET )

BrREMITA  WKE REBHELH

Amendments to IAS 21, The effects of changes in foreign exchange

rates:Lack of exchangeability

SR 5t 2 RE2158 1EF]X) SMNEEFEGHIZE | th= Rt

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on

the consolidated financial statements.
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